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Introduction from the Chairman & Chief Executive5

During the year the context in

which we have operated has

changed significantly. For well over

a decade the Trust has grown year-

on-year providing an ever wider

range of high quality services for

the people of Devon and beyond.

Although we continued growing

during 2010/11, it is clear that we

have now entered a period in

which we will need to do more for

less both now and well into the

future. Moreover, the squeeze on

public finances, the significant NHS

savings programme, and changes

to the future direction of policy for

the NHS has created a much more

uncertain environment.

In times of uncertainty it is more

important than ever to keep

focusing on our core business –

delivering high quality patient care

for the community we serve. That

is why over the last year we have

continued to press forward in a

number of key areas in line with

our corporate strategy. In

particular, we would highlight:

� our continued and relentless

focus on maintaining and

enhancing the quality of

healthcare whilst reducing our

overall expenditure

� investing in services in line with

the needs of our community to

ensure that we offer the very

best healthcare

� engagement with our Members

as representatives of the

broader community.

A key priority during the year, and

which will continue for the

foreseeable future, is to raise the

levels of productivity and

efficiency and reduce cost across

the Trust whilst maintaining or

enhancing quality and patient

safety. We have – through our Fit

For The Future programme –

engaged with our staff to focus on

our safety and getting it right first

time, and to redesign how we work

to provide, maintain and improve

outcomes for more people at a

lower cost.  We have also worked

with our partners and colleagues

across Devon to drive

improvements by working

collaboratively to make best use of

the resources available for health

and social care.  These initiatives

have helped the Trust do more for

less without making any

compromise on quality or safety. In

our Quality Report (page 72) you

can read about examples of areas

where we have been able to

improve the responsiveness and

quality of our services at the same

time as identifying efficiencies. We

have also focused on responding to

feedback we have received from

our Members and Governors - we

have reduced the number of ward

transfers patients experience

through our ‘Right Care Right

Treatment Right Place’ work

programme. We have made

progress on establishing single sex

wards, and, through initiatives

such as the mobile glaucoma

clinic, have been able to provide

care closer to home.   

Through the hard work, creativity

and engagement of our staff, the

Trust managed to save some £18

million over the year - almost

three times higher than previous

initiatives to reduce cost.  This is a

significant achievement and one

which will need to be replicated in

future years as the pressure on our

finances continues.  

Welcome to the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS
Foundation Trust’s seventh annual report and
accounts.
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Despite the challenging financial

environment, the Board

understands that it is vital for the

Trust to continue to invest in

improving the healthcare services

we offer. That is precisely why we

aim to make a surplus as a

Foundation Trust. In 2010/11 we

invested our surplus in a number of

new schemes including a third

linear accelerator and CT scanner,

a new integrated theatre for

keyhole surgery, the completion of

the South Devon Satellite Kidney

Unit, and a new haemodialysis unit

at our Heavitree site.

We have continued to perform well
against the key NHS targets. The
Accident and Emergency target of
seeing everyone within four hours
proved challenging, particularly
over what seemed to be a long
winter period with a high volume
of people coming in to hospital.
Fortunately we achieved the
overall target, but not without
considerable effort by many staff. 

Through the year we have
improved the level and quality of
our engagement with Members. In
challenging times, we understand
that it is more important than ever
to ensure that what we do and how
we do it fits with the needs and
expectations of our community.
This is the cornerstone of what
being a public benefit corporation
is all about. Our membership base

is broadly reflective of the wider
community so improving our
knowledge and understanding of
Members and then comparing this
with the views of our patients is
helping us design services and set
priorities which are genuinely
people-centred. Working closely
with our Governors, we have run
three Members’ Say events
attended by over 500 Members.
These events, which use a variety
of techniques to engage with
attendees, together with our
membership surveys, have
provided us with a much greater
insight into the priorities and
concerns of our Members. This
feedback has proved invaluable in
building our new strategic
direction that will take the Trust
forward over the next four years. 

The Board appreciates the hard
work and commitment of our staff
who play a crucial part in
delivering high quality services.
Our staff are what makes the RD&E
such a good hospital because they
are prepared to go the extra mile
time and again. Their dedication
and endeavour is reflected in the
positive feedback we receive
about our staff and in the NHS
Staff Survey.

This year’s Annual Report &
Accounts paints a picture of a
Trust that:

� Prioritises safe, high quality

healthcare above all else and

continues to perform

excellently

� Is in a healthy financial

situation

� Has a skilled, committed and

hard working staff

� Continues to invest in

improving healthcare

� Is successfully tackling the

need to reduce expenditure

while protecting quality and

patient safety

� Is seeking to better

understand and engage with

the wider community it serves

� Is aware of and acts on

its obligations towards

sustainable development

This puts the RD&E in a strong

position to maintain and improve

the service it provides to the

people of Devon and beyond into

the future.

Introduction from the Chairman & Chief Executive

Angela Ballatti Angela Pedder OBE

Chairman Chief Executive
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Some of our patients come from further afield in the South West because

we have national and internationally recognised excellence in specialist

fields, including the Princess Elizabeth Orthopaedic Centre, the Centre

for Women’s Health (maternity, neonatology and gynaecology services),

Exeter Mobility Centre and Mardon neuro-rehabilitation centre.

Increasingly we are providing patient care closer to home including

managing the day case surgery activity in community hospital theatres,

community midwifery services, renal dialysis units and our innovative

mobile eye clinic for glaucoma follow up appointments.

The Royal Devon & Exeter provides specialist
and acute hospital services to a core
population of about 420,000 people living in
and visiting the city of Exeter, and East and
Mid Devon. 
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We pride ourselves on being a

forward-thinking healthcare

provider with a commitment to

improving the quality of patient

care and experience through

skilled, professional staff who

want to learn new improved ways

of working and leading research

and development work.

The RD&E has 797 inpatient beds

and 80 daycase beds. During

2010/11 the Trust spent £350

million and employed 6,700 staff. 

As one of the first NHS Foundation

Trusts in the country, we have

fostered close links with the

community we serve. We have

developed, through public

membership and locally elected

Governor representatives, a range

of ways to find out from local

people what they expect and need

from the RD&E. This feedback is

invaluable when shaping and

planning future services. 

We also work closely in partnership

with a number of organisations

including NHS South West strategic

health authority, NHS Devon

primary care trust, Devon

Partnership Trust (mental health

and learning disabilities), Northern

Devon Healthcare Trust, South

Western Ambulance Service NHS

Foundation Trust, Devon County

Council Adult & Community

Services and Peninsula College of

Medicine and Dentistry, which links

Exeter and Plymouth universities

with the NHS.

www.rdehospital.nhs.uk
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This year started with the unconditional registration of

the RD&E as a provider of NHS services by the Care Quality

Commission. This confirmed there were no issues regarding the

safety and quality of the care provided at the Royal Devon & Exeter.

The RD&E also took on the management of day case theatres at

local community hospitals and midwifery services in parts of Devon. 

In May the NHS Inpatient Survey results presented a positive picture of

patient experience at the RD&E – the results placed us in the top 20%

nationally of trusts for the majority of aspects of care. Areas where our

patients rated their hospital highly included cleanliness, privacy &

dignity, pain control, being informed about their treatment, having

confidence in the staff looking after them and feeling safe. 

In June a new £2.2 million

haemodialysis unit was officially

opened at the RD&E Heavitree

hospital. Up to 144 renal patients

receive their life saving

treatment each year in this unit

which was designed and planned

with the involvement of our

patients and staff. This was

shortly followed by the opening

of a similar unit in Torbay.
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In October a new mobile eye clinic was launched – taking the

service out to Devon towns so that 1,500 Glaucoma patients per

year can have their follow-up care closer to home. Three eye unit

nurses qualified for a HGV licence so they could drive the 12-tonne

converted lorry themselves out to local communities. 

In July the RD&E and Peninsula

College of Medicine & Dentistry

announced a multi-million pound

capital funding award to develop a

world class Centre for Translational

Medicine in Exeter.  Patients stand

to benefit from the focus of this

centre on improving our

understanding and treatment of

diabetes and other related

conditions. Building is scheduled to

start in 2012 on a part of the RD&E

Wonford hospital site which is

establishing an identity as the

research, innovation and learning

zone. 

In August the strengths of the

RD&E acute stroke services were

highlighted in a national audit

published by the Royal College of

Physicians. The specialist care

provided on Clyst Ward and the

rapid access of patients suspected

of having a mini stroke to

preventative clinical care

contributed to this service being

independently placed in the best

25% in the country. 

In September the RD&E cervical screening programme for North & East

Devon was applauded as ‘exemplary’. The South West Regional Quality

Assurance Reference Centre report commended the calibre of this service

saying:  “All individuals in key roles are knowledgeable, efficient and

have time for the role with good accountability arrangements.”  Cervical

screening services provided at the RD&E include cytology, histology,

colposcopy. 



In January 2011, cancer

patients heaped praise on RD&E

staff for their kindness,

understanding and

professionalism in the National

Cancer Patient Experience

Survey. This month was our

annual opportunity to recognise

and applaud the extraordinary

achievements and dedication of

our staff with the Chairman’s

Awards. Colleagues from a wide

range of clinical and support

services received awards for

their outstanding contribution

to patient care and quality

services. 

Highlights 2010/1111

In November after a £300,000 investment, a new hi-tech operating

theatre suite for keyhole surgery was opened. More patients will benefit

from the less invasive surgery, for example, to remove the appendix or

gall bladder and for taking biopsy samples. Compared with conventional

techniques, keyhole surgery involves less scarring and a quicker recovery.

This theatre is also a superb teaching facility equipped with broadcast

and recording equipment with a video link to a conference suite. 

In December building work started on extending the RD&E Oncology Centre. The Trust has invested £6 million

in the phased development of cancer services.  This final phase involves installation of a new dedicated

radiotherapy wide bore CT Simulator for radiotherapy treatment planning. More patients will have access to

the latest technology, which captures three-dimensional images of the cancer so that the specialist

Radiotherapy staff can accurately plan and tailor treatment to the specific clinical and individual needs of their

patients. The equipment makes it possible to accurately scan patients in various positions required for

radiotherapy treatment without compromising comfort and the quality of the image. The new CT simulator is

expected to be operational at the end of 2011. 
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In February the Clinical Research

Site of the Year award was given to

the RD&E Stroke Research Team.

This was an endorsement of the

successful and safe running of a

wide range of studies in stroke at

Wonford and in our linked

community stroke units in Devon. 

In March this Trust was placed in

the best 20% of NHS Trusts for 11 of

the key measures in the NHS Staff

Survey including recommending

the RD&E as a place to work and to

receive treatment. We were also

national finalists in the 2011 

Patient Safety Awards ‘Changing

Culture’ category for our work

using patient feedback on the care

they received to inform ward team

safety briefings and identify where

we can improve what we do.

www.rdehospital.nhs.uk
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Over the last year, the Trust has made significant

progress towards delivery of its current strategy, “Strategic Directions

2007-2012”.  All key financial, performance and quality targets have

been delivered and the Trust has increased its delivery of care closer

to home in line with the strategy, in particular in relation to

community outpatient and day case surgical activities and community

midwifery.

A recent internal governance

review has strengthened the Trust’s

internal assurance systems and

structures and this has been

complemented by ongoing

improvements in safety and quality

reporting.

Since the previous Trust Strategy

was published in 2007, the Trust has

continued to develop and improve

the range and quality of its

services.  It has a strong history of

clinical excellence, high quality

care, delivery of performance

targets and financial stability, all of

which have been produced by the

highly valued work of the Trust’s

clinical and non-clinical staff.  

The Trust has a high standing in the

local community and beyond and

we recognise that this gives us a

duty to uphold the highest

standards and thereby maintain

the affection and respect with

which the Trust is regarded.  

The RD&E is continuing on its

journey toward becoming a robust

public benefit corporation capable

of maximising the mutual and

financial benefits and freedoms

associated with NHS Foundation

Trust status. 

We have become increasingly

confident in our role in engaging

with the communities we serve

and ensuring that we respond to

their needs and aspirations. 

This has been made possible by the

contribution and engagement of

the Council of Governors,

supported by the Board of

Directors, our staff and our links

with local people and our

membership community. 

The priorities of our Members

from the 2010 ‘Members Say’

event are summarised as follows:

� A hospital where I am seen as

soon as possible

� A hospital that has access to the

latest technologies and drugs

� A well maintained environment

that is clean, safe and modern

� A seamless NHS service from GP

through to the hospital and

beyond.

The Trust strategy has been

further developed in the context

of these Members’ priorities and a

range of further key internal and

external influences, including:

� The Trust’s role as a teaching

hospital within the Peninsula

College of Medicine & Dentistry

� The Trust’s strength as a base

for research

� The attractiveness of the Trust

as an employer

� A history of high achievement of

quality, performance and

financial targets
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� The change in commissioning

arrangements and the

development of GP

Commissioning Consortia with a

strategic intention to move care

closer to home

� Anticipated changes in the

healthcare market with the

development of ‘any qualified

provider’ provision and

increased competition

� Continued pressure on

healthcare services as a result

of an increase in the age of the

population; increased incidence

of diseases caused by, for

example, obesity; and

technological advances in

healthcare

� The savings requirements on the

NHS as a result of wider

economic pressures

� Environmental & sustainability

requirements.

The Board of Directors has

considered the Members’ priorities

and other key influences and it is

expected that the Trust will have a

revised corporate strategy in the

next financial year for the period

2011-2016.  

Strategic Directions 2007-2012

We will focus our attention and build our services around three key

themes: Respond Deliver & Enable.

1) In responding we aim to:

Be the provider of choice, delivering care in the most convenient

and appropriate location, with no delay

Eliminate all avoidable hospital infections

Deliver services in a comfortable, friendly environment in which

staff can care for patients effectively

Recognise our wider responsibility to the environment and local

community by using resources wisely

2) We aim to deliver:

A high standard of care delivered by experts, which meets the

needs and aspirations of patients, staff, carers and the public

A full range of cost-effective accessible local hospital services

A range of excellent specialist services

3) We aim to enable:

Staff to do their jobs to the best of their ability, by valuing them,

ensuring they have the right skills and giving them the opportunity

to focus on meeting the needs of patients, so making the RD&E the

employer of choice

Staff to have a good work/life balance, and achieve their full

potential

Research and innovation

Future and sustained success through good financial management

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



About the Board of Directors15

The Board, led by the Non-

Executive Chairman, is made up of

both Executive and Non-Executive

Directors (NEDs). There are six

Non-Executive Directors who,

together with the Chairman, form

a majority on the Board. The six

Executive Directors manage the

day to day operational and

financial performance of the Trust.

The Board of Directors works on a

unitary basis, being collectively

responsible for the performance of

the NHS Foundation Trust and

exercising all the powers of the

Trust. In so doing, Board Members

bear full legal liability for the

operational and financial

performance of the Trust.

The Board normally meets at least

ten times a year and takes

strategic decisions and monitors

the operational performance of

the Trust holding the Executive

Directors to account for the Trust’s

achievements. The papers for the

monthly Part 1 Board meeting and

the approved minutes of the

previous meeting are published on

the Trust’s website in advance of

the Board meeting.  Items of a

confidential nature are discussed

by the Board in private in a

monthly ‘Part 2’ meeting. Ten

formal Board meetings and three

development meetings were held

during the year alongside

additional briefing meetings and

seminars.

The framework within which

decisions affecting the work of the

Trust are made are set out in the

Trust’s published Standing

Orders, Standing Financial

Instructions and Scheme of

Delegation, copies of which may be

viewed on the Trust’s website

(www.rdehospital.nhs.uk) or on

request from the Foundation Trust

Secretary. The composition of the

Board is in accordance with the

Trust’s Constitution and the Policy

for the Composition of NEDs on the

Board. The Board considers it is

appropriately composed in order to

fulfil its statutory and

constitutional function and remain

within Monitor’s Terms of

Authorisation.

The Board of Directors is legally accountable for services

provided by the Trust and is responsible for setting the strategic

direction, having taken account of the views of the Council of

Governors, and for the overall management of the RD&E.
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There is a clear division of

responsibility between the

Chairman and the Chief Executive.

The Chairman heads the Board,

providing leadership and ensuring

its effectiveness in all aspects of

its role, and sets the Board

agenda. The Chairman ensures the

Board receive timely and pertinent

information to ensure that

Members can exercise their

responsibilities and make well

grounded decisions. The Chief

Executive is responsible for

running all operational aspects of

the Trust's business, assisted by the

team of Executive Directors.

The Board of Directors are

accountable to the membership via

the Council of Governors. The

Chairman informs the Council of

Governors about the work and

effectiveness of the Board at each

Council Meeting. 

The business of the Trust is

conducted in an open manner and

annual schedules of meetings for

the Board of Directors and Council

of Governors are published twelve

months in advance.

The Chairman and all Non-

Executive Directors meet the

independence criteria laid down in

Monitor’s Code of Governance

(Provision A.3.1). The Chairman

has no other outside interests. The

Board is satisfied that no direct

conflicts of interest exist for any

member of the Board. There is a

full disclosure of all Directors’

interests in the Register of

Directors’ Interests which is

available upon request from the

Foundation Trust Secretary.

Directors and Governors may

appoint advisors to provide

additional expertise on particular

subjects if required.
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In February 2010, the Board

collectively agreed a development

and capacity building programme

that was based on the Board’s own

analysis of the key issues facing

the Trust over the short, medium

and long term alongside a self-

evaluation on Board effectiveness.

The analysis consisted of a self

evaluation and the outcomes from

a PESTLE (Political, Economic,

Sociological, Technological, Legal,

& Environmental context) analysis

to identify the key issues facing

the organisation. 

On the basis of this work the Board

considered its development needs

under the four following

categories:

� Skills/capacities

� Common purpose / unitary

approach

� Board processes

� Information & knowledge.

On the basis of the agreed plan the

following developmental activities

occurred during the financial year:

� An externally facilitated session

on Board behaviours, etiquette

and developing a unitary Board

� Continued work on the

development of the

organisation’s strategic direction

� A session on NHS transactions,

competition and cooperation

� Regular lunchtime discussions

and seminars on new

innovations and on key national

policy initiatives

� On-going improvement of key

Board processes and planning.

The Board has more recently

undertaken a self assessment

process to identify its

developmental priorities for the

coming financial year. 

The Board recognises that a regular
evaluation of its collective and individual
director performance is critical to continuous
development and high performance. 
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The Chairman met regularly with

individual NEDs to discuss their

personal development and

performance issues. These

discussions focussed on issues such

as continuing professional

development and capacity building

to enhance personal performance.

The outcome of Non-Executive

Director appraisals (carried out by

the Chairman) were reported to

the Nominations Committee when

considering re-appointment, and

routinely reported annually to the

Governors. 

The Chief Executive undertook a

similar process with the Executive

Directors and these discussions

were enhanced by seeking the

views of the NEDs in examining

performance and identifying future

development needs. The outcome

of the appraisals is fed back to the

Executive Director Remuneration

Committee (EDRC).

The Chief Executive is appraised by

the Chairman, with the outcome

reported to the EDRC. The process

for the appraisal of the Chairman

is led by the Senior Independent

Director and is also reported to the

Council of Governors.

The Board of Directors and Council

of Governors held a joint

development day during the year

which focused on the new policy

direction emerging from the health

white paper as well as the

Governors “fundamental review”. 

In addition, a subset of Governors

was invited to attend seminar

sessions with the Board. These

sessions primarily focused on the

progress and outcome made by

Governors as part of their own

review of their role. The Deputy

Chairman of the CoG was invited to

attend one Board meeting as an

observer as part of his induction

process into his role. 

Board members regularly attended

Council of Governors meetings to

keep abreast of Governors’ views

as well as attending Member

events. Induction programmes are

arranged for all newly appointed

Directors and Governors which

include the provision of

information necessary to enable

them to perform their function.
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Angela Ballatti, Chairman

Joined the Trust as Chairman in

May 2006. She was previously the

Chair of County Durham and

Darlington Acute Hospitals Trust.

She has an extensive background in

business management and

governance, having worked, among

others, as a senior consultant for

Coopers Deloitte and been a senior

tutor at the University of Durham

Business School. The Chairman has

had no other significant external

commitments over the course of

the year.

Brian Aird, Vice-Chairman 

Brian joined the Trust in April 2008.

He has considerable previous NHS

experience as a Chief Executive of

an  NHS Trust and a Health

Authority. He was previously a Non-

Executive Director of Trent SHA

and more recently has run his own

company offering organisational

development and executive

coaching services.  He is also a

trustee of United Response, a

national charity providing services

to people with learning difficulties

and mental health needs.

Appointed Vice-Chairman in May

2010. Brian also chairs the Trust’s

Organ Donation Committee.  

James Gaisford,
Non-Executive Director

James joined the Board in May

2010 and has a Chartered

Accountant background having

trained with Ernst & Young in

London.  He has spent most of his

career in Director roles within the

retail and publishing industries.

He has lived near Exeter for the

last 22 years and is also a School

Governor and Chairman of an

Almshouse Charity.

John Rackstraw, 
Non-Executive Director

A Board Member since August 2006,

he has spent his career in the

construction industry and is

accustomed to dealing with

contract law from an industry

perspective.  He is a Chartered

Director and past Chief Executive

and Deputy Chairman of Pearce

Group Ltd.  He has lived in

Somerset for 34 years and has

extensive knowledge of the local

community and a range of both

local and national contacts.

David Robertson, 
Non-Executive Director

David joined the Trust in October

2010 and is a Fellow of the

Institute of Chartered Accountants

in England and Wales and a

graduate in Business Studies.  He

was Finance Director of Viridor

Limited, the waste management

subsidiary of Exeter-based Pennon

Group Plc until March 2011.  He

was with the Pennon Group for 20

years, prior to which he was with

KPMG for 14 years.  He is also a

trustee of South West Lakes Trust,

a regional environment charity.

Andrew Willis, 
Non-Executive Director

Joined the Board in February 2011.

Previous board experience includes

service on two NHS acute provider

boards and in the housing sector. A

corporate lawyer by profession he

has worked for City and regional

law firms and now specialises in

legal training. He is also a

Leadership Associate of the Kings

Fund focusing on corporate

governance and NHS board /

director development. 

This section sets out brief details of each
Director and their record of attendance at
Board meetings:
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David Wright, 

Non-Executive Director, 

Senior Independent Director

David joined the Trust in April 2008

and is now retired but spent the

majority of his career with Save

the Children UK where he was a

Country Programme Director for

various areas both in the UK and

abroad.  He was also Chairman of

Swindon PCT and a Non-Executive

Director with Wiltshire NHS

Community Trust. David became

the Senior Independent Director in

February 2011.

Gerald Sturtridge, NED, 

Vice-Chairman and Chairman of

the Audit Committee

Gerald joined the Board in

November 1998, took over as Vice

Chairman in June 2004, and served

until October 2010.  He retired

from accountancy practice in 1997

to develop other business

interests, was involved with

voluntary agencies working with

disabled and disadvantaged

people, and was a Member of the

Foundation Trust Financing Facility

Committee. 

David Bishop, 

Senior Independent 

Non-Executive Director (SID)

David joined the Board in February

2005 and served until January

2011, having been reappointed by

Governors for a second term in

January 2008.  He was a retired

senior partner of KPMG and led the

strategic financial management

and governance parts of the

practice. He also served on

Government working parties.

Bob Baty OBE, NED and

Chairman of the Governance

Committee 

Bob joined the Board in September

2004 and served until April 2010

having been reappointed by the

Council of Governors for a second

term.  He was a chartered civil

engineer who has worked all his

life in the water industry and was

CEO of South West Water Ltd until

2006. He was awarded the OBE in

2002 for services to the water

industry.

Non-Executive Directors not in post at 
year end:
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Executive Directors 
Angela Pedder, OBE, 
Chief Executive

Joined the NHS in 1975. Was Chief
Executive of St Alban’s & Hemel
Hempstead NHS Trust before taking
up her post as Chief Executive at the
RD&E in 1996. Angela was awarded
the OBE in the New Year Honours List
2007 for services to the NHS.

Mr Martin Cooper,
Joint Medical Director

Martin was appointed to the RD&E
in 1988 as a Consultant General
Surgeon with an interest in Upper
GI and Breast disease. He
previously worked as a Lecturer and
Senior Lecturer in Bristol and spent
18 months at the University of
Chicago. In addition to his clinical
role Martin has a major interest in
the management of cancer, acting
as the Clinical Director of Cancer
Services from 1995 until taking up
his current position 2009.
Regionally, he was the Medical
Director of the Peninsula Cancer
Network from 2000 to 2007. 

Elaine Hobson,
Chief Operating Officer

A trained nurse, she has held a
number of positions at the RD&E,
becoming Director of Operations in
December 2000 and Chief
Operating Officer in 2008. Elaine
Hobson is a Governor at Exeter
College.  

Lynn Lane, 
Human Resources Director

Joined the RD&E in July 2006 as HR
Director with over 20 years HR
experience having held senior
management positions at both the
BBC and NHS in Oxford. 

Dr Vaughan Pearce,
Joint Medical Director

Dr Pearce qualified from St Mary’s
Hospital in 1972 and was senior
registrar in Cambridge prior to
joining the RD&E in 1980. Has
worked here as a consultant in
care of the elderly and general
medicine. Special interests include
Parkinson’s disease and dystonia.
Chairman of the board of
examiners for the Diploma in
Geriatric Medicine of the Royal
College of Physicians.

Suzanne Tracey,
Director of Finance & Business
Development

Joined the Trust in August 2008
from Yeovil District Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust where she held
the post of Director of Finance /
Deputy Chief Executive. 

Em Wilkinson-Brice, 
Director of Nursing 
& Patient Care 

Em joined the RD&E as Director of
Nursing & Patient Care in July
2010. After qualifying from nursing

in Exeter she subsequently worked
in Oxford specialising in critical
care.  She was Director of Nursing
at Derby hospital before joining
the RD&E. 

� Elaine Hobson is the only

Executive Director to hold a

Non-Executive Director portfolio

in any other organisation.

Executive Directors not
in post at year end:

Jane Viner,
Acting Director of Nursing
& Patient Care

Following registration, Jane Viner
worked in the specialities of
Emergency Medicine and Critical
Care for over 20 years. In that time
she held a number of clinical,
teaching and management posts.
Most recently she has been Nurse
Consultant for Critical Care,
Associate Nurse Director and Deputy
Director of Nursing and Patient Care.
Her special interests include
managing the deteriorating patient
and measuring patient experience.

The Directors’ Register of Interests
is available for inspection from the
FT Secretary (01392 402993)
or on the Trust website
http://www.rdehospital.nhs.uk/tr
ust/ft/documents.html 

Directors can be contacted via
email at foundation.trust
@rdeft.nhs.uk
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NAME Apr May Jun Jul Sep Oct Nov Jan Feb Mar

A Ballatti * * * * * * * * A *

B Aird * * * * * A * * * *

J Gaisford n/a * * * * * * * A P

J Rackstraw * * * A * * * * * *

D Robertson n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a * * * *

A Willis n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a * P

D Wright * * A * * * * * A *

G Sturtridge * * * * * * n/a n/a n/a n/a

D Bishop * * * * * * * * n/a n/a

B Baty * n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

A Pedder * * * * * * * * * *

Mr M Cooper * A * * * * * A * *

E Hobson * * * * * * * * * *

L Lane * * * * A * * * * *

Dr V Pearce * * * * * * * * * P

S Tracey * * * * * * * * * *

E Wilkinson-Brice n/a n/a n/a * * * * * A P

J Viner * * * n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

* - Attendance

A – Absent

P – Part attendance (March 2011 Board took place over two days)

n/a - Not applicable

Attendance
Board Attendance for 2010/11 was as follows:
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The Chairman and Non-Executive

Directors are appointed by the

Council of Governors (COG) acting

on the recommendation of the

Nominations Committee, which is

a committee of the COG.  The

Chairman chairs the Committee

when appointing Non-Executive

Directors. Membership of the

committee can be found in the

Governors’ section on page 32.

Prior to the appointment of a Non-

Executive Director, the Board and

the COG undertake a review of the

‘Policy for the Composition of NED

on the Board’ to ensure the

necessary mix of skills and

experience on the Board is

achieved. 

Three Non-Executive Directors

stood down from the Board during

the financial year as their terms of

office came to an end. The Board

acknowledged the contribution

made by Bob Baty, who served on

the Board between 2004 and April

2010. Bob chaired the Governance

Committee for the latter part of

his terms on the Board.

The Board also recognised the

contribution of Gerald Sturtridge

who served on the Board for over

12 years. Gerald was the vice

Chairman as well as Chairman of

the Audit committee. 

The Board recognised the work of

David Bishop who served on the

Trust’s Board from 2005 until

January 2011. David was the Senior

Independent Director.

During the year, three new Non-

Executive Directors were

appointed to the Board of

Directors. These were James

Gaisford, David Robertson, and

Andrew Willis. Each has been

appointed for an initial term of

office of three years.

The Chairman led the search and

selection exercise to identify

suitable candidates for

appointment, whom the

Nominations Committee then

reviewed, and short-listed. The

process leading to the

appointment of Mr Robertson and

Mr Gaisford was undertaken in the

previous financial year.

The Nominations Committee met

once during the year (when the

Chairman was absent) to agree on

a recruitment process that

resulted in  a strong field of

candidates.

As a result of this process, an

experienced Non-Executive

Director – Mr Willis - was

nominated for appointment by the

Council of Governors. 

The Chairman and Non-Executive

Directors are initially appointed for

three-year terms, as approved by

the COG.  Reappointment for a

further three-year term can be

made, subject to satisfactory

appraisal and the approval of the

Governors.  Consideration of

extension beyond six years is

subject to rigorous review, in line

with the agreed processes. At its

meeting, the Nominations

Committee considered a second

term as Non-Executive Directors

for Mr Brian Aird and Mr David

Wright. On the recommendation of

the Committee, the Council of

Governors approved a second term

for both of them.

Non-Executive Director Appointments
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Expiry dates of current terms of office

are as follows:

Ms Ballatti 30 April 2012

Mr Aird 31 March 2014 

Mr Rackstraw 31 July 2012

Mr Wright 31 March 2014 

Mr Gaisford 30 April 2013

Mr Robertson 31 October 2013

Mr Willis 31 January 2014

An appointments committee of the Chairman,

Non-Executive Directors and the Chief Executive

appoint the Executive Directors. Following a

rigorous search and selection process,

Em Wilkinson-Brice was selected as the new

Director of Nursing & Patient Care. Em moved from

Derby Hospital where she was Director of Nursing.

The Board acknowledges the contribution of Jane

Viner who was the acting Director of Nursing &

Patient Care for three months during the financial

year. 

Executive Director Appointments
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The Non-Executive Director

Remuneration Committee (NEDRC)

comprises five elected Governors

and is chaired by the Deputy

Chairman, Council of Governors. 

Recommendations for any changes

to remuneration for the Chairman

and other Non-Executive Directors

are made by the NEDRC for

consideration by the Council of

Governors at a general meeting.

NEDRC held meetings in Spring

2009 to review the levels of

remuneration and made

recommendations to the meeting

of the Council of Governors in July

2009. Following a detailed

discussion the Council of Governors

decided to award increases in

remuneration to the Chairman and

Non-Executive Directors reflecting

increases in the cost of living only. 

Full details of Chairman and Non-

Executive Director remuneration

are set out in the Accounts on page

70.

NEDRC Members are:

Richard May 

(Deputy Chair of COG and

Chairman) – 1/1

Monica Overy 

(Staff Governor) – 1/1

Kate Caldwell 

(Exeter & South Devon) – 1/1

Cynthia Thornton 

(Mid, North, West Devon &

Cornwall) – 1/1

Christopher D’Oyly 

(East Devon, Dorset &

Somerset) – 1/1

Executive Director
Remuneration
Committee (EDRC)

The Executive Director

Remuneration Committee

comprises of the Chairman and all

the Non-Executive Directors.  The

Chief Executive and Director of

Human Resources are invited to

attend the meetings in an advisory

role and are excluded on issues

directly relevant to them by the

Chairman of the Committee. The

Committee is supported by the

Trust’s Company Secretary.

The Chairman has taken the lead in

chairing the Committee throughout

the year, although the new Senior

Independent Director will take on

responsibilities for chairing the

Committee from the beginning of

the new financial year. 

The Committee’s main purpose is

to set rates of remuneration, terms

and conditions of service for the

Chief Executive and Executive

Directors, i.e. those persons in

senior positions having authority or

responsibility for directing or

controlling the major activities of

the NHS Foundation Trust. 

Board level Executive and Non-Executive Directors have

locally agreed remuneration packages. All other staff, except doctors,

have terms and conditions based on the NHS Agenda for Change (AfC).

Remuneration and conditions for doctors is agreed at a national level.

Non-Executive Director Remuneration
Committee (NEDRC)
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To this end, the Committee

successfully completed the

development of a policy framework

for Executive remuneration and

conditions. The policy framework

sets out the principles by which the

EDRC will manage the

remuneration and terms of service

of the Chief Executive and

Executive Directors. The policy

details the approach that the

Committee will take to executive

remuneration, how the policy will

be applied, and the duties and

responsibilities of key staff. The

policy has been developed in a way

that allows a reasonable level of

flexibility in its application to allow

responsiveness to external factors.

The Executive Director

remuneration policy sets out:

� Salary ranges for each Executive

Director (ED) post based on an

internal relativity to the

remuneration of the Chief

Executive

� The internal relativities are

based on assessments made of

the remuneration data from a

comparator set of similarly

sized FTs based outside London

and the South East. The

comparator data has been

derived from the 09/10 Annual

Reports of the agreed

comparator group

� On the basis of the comparator

information and internal

relativities, and taking into

account a wider range of

factors, the Committee will

make judgements on where

individual Executive Directors

sit on a salary range based on its

assessment of factors including

the advice of the Chief Executive

� Information on the comparator

set will be refreshed on an

annual basis

� Performance-related pay is not

included in the remuneration of

Executive Directors

� While this policy applies to the

Chief Executive and Executive

Directors only, in applying its

policies the EDRC will be

mindful of the wider

implications in relation to pay

levels determined through AfC

and on Non-Executive Director 

remuneration.

The approach taken to determining

the policy on Executive Director

remuneration was developed

through the advice of an external

consultancy – ATM Consulting – and

brought to its conclusion by the

Company Secretary.

In considering the new policy

framework covering Executive

Director remuneration it became

clear to the Committee that the

remuneration package for most

Executive Directors fell below the

lower quartile level  of the

identified comparator group.

Despite this, the Committee

agreed that the Trust was not in a

position to move the remuneration

packages of Executive Directors to

a point in which they were in line

with the median level of the

comparator data because of the

political and economic context.

The Committee agreed that in

looking at the comparator

information and the internal

relativities deriving from this data,

it became clear that the salary of

the Chief Operating Officer was a

significant outlier not only falling

below the comparator group lower

quartile but also below the level

commensurate with the internal

relativities set out in the policy.

The Committee therefore resolved

to adjust this salary accordingly

and this is reflected in the

declared remuneration levels (see

page 70).



Salary, Pension and
Other Information

A full declaration of salary,

benefits in kind, real increase in

pension and related lump sum at

age 60, total accrued pension and

cash equivalent transfer values are

stated in full on page 70.  The

accounting policy for pensions is

set out in a note 1.10 to the

accounts.

The total of salaries, alowances

and non-cash benefits in kind paid

to Non-Executive Directors and

senior managers for this and the

previous year are:  

2009/10 2010/11

£1,072k £1,133k

There have been no significant

awards or compensation to past

senior managers, nor any payments

to third parties for the services of

a senior manager.

Signed:

A M PEDDER, OBE,

Chief Executive

25 May 2011
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NHS Pension Scheme provisions apply to all Executive Director posts,

with the level of employer contribution determined nationally.

Executive Directors are on permanent pensionable contracts, subject to

standard NHS terms and conditions of service and their current notice

periods are:

Chief Executive 12 months

Chief Operating Officer 3 months

Director of Finance and Business Development 6 months

Director of Human Resources 6 months

Director of Nursing & Patient Care 6 months

Medical Directors* 3 months

* The Medical Directors are on permanent clinical contracts with the Trust.  This period

relates to the Medical Director appointment only. 

The EDRC has determined that, over time on recruitment, it will move

all EDs onto a uniform notice period.

Attendance at the EDRC meetings 2010/11

NAME June 10 July 10 Nov 10 Mar 11

A Ballatti * * * *

B Aird A * * *

J Gaisford * * * *

J Rackstraw * A * *

D Robertson n/a n/a n/a *

A Willis n/a n/a n/a *

D Wright * * * *

G Sturtridge * * n/a n/a

D Bishop * * * n/a
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Board Committee membership

NAME EDRC Audit Gov

A Ballatti *

B Aird * * *

J Gaisford * * *

J Rackstraw * * *

D Robertson * *

A Willis * *

D Wright * *

G Sturtridge✝ * * *

D Bishop✝ * * *

B Baty✝ * *

A Pedder *

Mr M Cooper *

E Hobson *

L Lane *

Dr V Pearce *

S Tracey *

E Wilkinson-Brice *

J Viner *

EDRC – Executive Director Remuneration Committee
Audit – Audit committee
Gov – Governance committee
✝ see appointments section
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The Audit Committee is a formally constituted committee of the Board of Directors, chaired until

October 2010 by Gerald Sturtridge, and from November 2010 by David Robertson (both Non-Executives with

financial backgrounds). While membership of the committee changed during the year, a further three Non-

Executives constituted the committee which is also attended by representatives of the External Auditors Price

Waterhouse Coopers (PwC); Internal Audit and the Counterfraud Service.  

The Audit Committee met three times during 2010/11.  The names of Members and their attendance at

2010 meetings is as follows:

Date of Gerald David Brian David John James

committee Sturtridge Robertson Aird Bishop Rackstraw Gaisford

(to (From (From

31/10/10) 1/11/10) 1/11/10)

June 2010 * N/A A * * N/A

November 2010 N/A * * * * *

February 2011 N/A * * N/A * A

* - Attendance

A – Absent

P – Part attendance (March 2011 Board took place over two days)

n/a - Not applicable
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A full description of the duties

and responsibilities of the Audit

Committee can be found on the

Trust website.  Some of the

committee’s key areas of

responsibility are to:

� Review the systems of

integrated governance across

Trust activities (both clinical

and non-clinical), which support

the achievement of the Trust’s

objectives

� Utilise the work of internal

audit, external audit and other

assurance functions to assess

the overarching systems of

integrated governance, risk

management and internal

control, together with

indicators of their effectiveness

� Oversee the monitoring and

management of those risks seen

to be fundamental to the

strategy and sustainability of

the Trust

� Ensure the existence of an

effective internal audit function

and to review the work and

findings of the external auditor

� Review the annual report and

financial statements and ensure

that systems for financial

reporting to the board are

subject to review. 

The work of the Audit Committee

is reported to the full Board of

Directors. During 2010/11 the

work of the Committee included:

� Reviewing the findings and

recommendations arising from

the work of External and

Internal audit and the

Counterfraud Service and

assessing the impact of these

findings on the overall system of

internal control

� Received the findings of a

review by PwC of the Trust’s

Cost Improvement Programme

Management Office 

� Review of reporting of

performance against efficiency

programmes

� Received the Head of Audit

opinion which stated that the

Trust assurance and controls

amounted to “significant

assurance”. The Committee

understood that this meant that

Internal Audit believed that the

Trust’s internal controls were

managed effectively.

The Council of Governors

reappointed Pricewaterhouse

Coopers as the Trust’s external

auditors in 2009 for a three year

period.  It is the responsibility of the

Trust’s Directors to produce the

Annual Accounts included in this

report. The external auditors

provide an independent opinion on

the Trust’s accounts and also audit

the overall position of the Trust’s

management and performance,

including an opinion on the quality

of the system of internal control.

The outcome of this work is

reported in the Audit Opinion

included with the accounts in this

report and the Annual Management

Letter to the Board.  

For the year under report, the

external auditor provided an

unqualified opinion on the Trust’s

accounts and expressed

themselves satisfied with the

Trust’s management procedures

and control processes.
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The Code of Governance published

in September 2006 (last updated

April 1, 2010) contains

recommended best practice to be

followed by FTs in areas of

corporate governance.  The Code

contains main and supporting

principles, which are subject to

‘comply’ or ‘explain’ reporting

procedures.  Any provisions with

which the Trust does not comply,

must be disclosed in the Annual

Report.

The compliance action plan agreed

by the Board in March 2010

contained actions for completion

by 31 March 2011.  The aim was

that by 31 March 2011 the Trust

would be as compliant as possible

with the code provisions, except

for those which the Board agreed

to declare under the ‘explain’

category. Good progress was made

against the previous compliance

action plan, as reported in

previous Annual Reports. 

In the 2009/10 Annual Report, the following provisions were reported

under the ‘explain’ category:

C.2.1 Terms of office not exceeding five years for Chief Executive

and Executive Directors

E.1.1 Executive pay determination

E.2.2 Definition of senior management.

In the Action Plan presented to the Board in March 2010 there was an

action relating to the Governors’ review of their own effectiveness (Code

provision D.2.2). This action has now been completed with the

Fundamental Review of Governors having reported to the COG and

Board in July 2010.  

In addition, in previous years the Trust had placed at ‘explain’ status: 

(C.2.1.) Its reasons for not complying with the Code provision those

terms of office for Chief Executive and Executive Directors should not

exceed 5 years. This provision has now been deleted from the Code;

(E.1.1.) The provision relating to Executive pay determination.

This issue has now been dealt with by the EDRC meaning the Trust is

now compliant with this provision. 

Compliance with the NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance
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Consequently the only provision requiring reference in the Annual Report

with ‘explain’ status, as in previous years, is:

(E.2.2) Definition of senior management.

The following provision is therefore declared:

E.2.2 Definition of senior management

Remuneration committee should have delegated responsibility for

setting remuneration for all Executive Directors, including pension rights

and any compensation payments. The committee should also

recommend and monitor the level and structure of remuneration for

senior management. The definition of ‘senior management’ should be

determined by the board but should normally include the first layer of

management below board level.

Explanation: The Board has defined ‘senior management’ to be

limited to Board members only.  All other staff to be covered by Agenda

for Change.
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Much of the year was spent on

clarifying the role of the Governors

and how this role could best be

implemented. This was an

important process that was led by

the Governors and marked a step

change in the evolution of the

Governors as a core component of

the Trust’s governance structure

with a unique and useful

contribution to make to the work

of the Trust. The sense of progress

was underlined by the election of

nine new public Governors to the

Council – a significant influx – and

elections for a new Deputy Chair of

Governors (or Lead Governor)

following the resignation of the

previous post holder. The interim

Governors Steering Group also

provided a sense of continuity and

momentum for the Council of

Governors over the last year. 

In July, the Council of Governors

concluded the “fundamental

review” that was first agreed as a

key project for Governors by the

Trust Board and the COG in mid

2009. The fundamental review

provided an opportunity to take a

comprehensive look at the role of

Governors in a process that was led

by the Governors themselves. It

was recognised that securing

significant changes to the

governance structures and to the

role of Governors required genuine

consensus to be achieved between

the Trust Board and the whole

COG. In July 2010, the Board and

the COG agreed the outcomes of

the review which covered two key

areas:

1. Defining and clarifying the

role of the Governors/COG

2. Improving COG structures

and processes

On the basis of the review, it was

concluded that Governors have

both an internal facing

“assurance” role involving holding

the Board (though not the

organization as a whole) to

account and having some limited

but significant powers over the

composition of the Board together

with an externally facing role. This

conclusion was in line with the

roles outlined in the NHS 2006 Act

and sets out two broad functions,

namely:

� holding the Board of Directors

to account for the performance

of the Trust including ensuring

the Board of Directors acts so

that the FT does not breach its

Terms of Authorisation as well as

a number of roles specifically

set out in statute relating to

their role on Audit, Non

-Executive and Chair

appointments 

In 2010/11, the RD&E’s Governors made a
number of significant strides forward.



Council of Governors 34

www.rdehospital.nhs.uk

� representing the Members’ and

stakeholders interests and

bringing these to bear on the

governance of the NHS FT as

well as feeding back

information about the Trust, its

vision and performance to the 

communities that it serves.

The review considered that the

COG provided what could be

described a “double lock

assurance” - providing a tier of

independent assurance that the

Board, particularly the NEDs, have

effective performance and

assurance mechanisms in place and

have acted on any concerns in

relation to issues in Trust

performance that might affect the

Trust’s risk rating / or a shift from

the planned risk levels / or any

other issues that might concern

the regulator. It also helped clarify

that the Governors’ role is

sufficiently distinct from the role

of Directors who are ultimately

responsible and legally liable for

the Trust’s performance. So the

COG role is not to act as a shadow

Board but to assure themselves

that the Board has the right

people, processes and frameworks

in place and is taking the necessary

action to maintain or improve

performance. Thus Governors are

not performance managing the

Trust by proxy through the

Directors but assuring themselves

that the Board is acting in such a

way so as to assure the overall

performance of the Trust.

Therefore in enabling Governors to

effectively engage in its “double

lock assurance” role the review

underlined the importance of the

Governors having:

� The right level and type of

information. In particular that

Governors understand past and

future trends in performance on

a quarterly basis linked to

Monitor’s risk ratings (ideally

delivered by an Executive

Director) and the analysis and

actions undertaken by the NEDs

in challenging performance

where this may cause a material

breach

� A good understanding of the

governance framework and

their distinctive role within it

� An understanding of corporate

risks and what is being done

by the Board to manage and

mitigate risk particularly in

regard to those that may affect

the Terms of Authorisation

� A good understanding of the

Trust’s strategic objectives, that

the Board articulates progress

against these objectives, and

are broadly satisfied with the

pace of progress

� Assurance from the Board that

it has in place a proactive

assurance framework

� Access to information from

Internal Audit that assesses

assurance mechanisms and

provides another perspective of

assurance against plan.
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In addition to the development of

the double lock assurance role, the

review also considered how to

ensure that Governor’s were

fulfilling all aspects of their

statutory duties as well as setting

out how and in what ways

Governors would enhance their

external facing role. The

Governors have a number of roles

in relation to Members and the

Trust’s stakeholders:

� They have a quasi

representational role in that

they are expected to broadly

provide feedback to the Trust on

issues of interest or concern to

Members. However, although

elected, Governors do not

represent the views and

opinions of Members but use

their judgement, expertise and

mandate to provide input into

the Trust 

� Governors have specific areas of

expertise which can provide

added value to the Trust. This

may entail providing feedback

to the Trust on how it is

perceived or viewed by the

wider public and to ensure that

in its strategic positioning, the

Trust can continue to command

the support of the community it

serves. Another area of added

value may be the particular

locus that Governors represent

in the area of stakeholder

engagement and patient

experience 

� Governors have an

ambassadorial role ensuring

that communications from the

Trust are translated into the

wider community through local

representation 

� Governors have a particular role

on Trust membership

recruitment and strategy

� One specific aspect of the role

(which spans the internal/

external axis) relates to

Governors involvement in the

annual plan and broader

strategy development. In

relation to the annual plan, the

role of Governors is to ensure

that stakeholder views and

opinions are properly reflected

in the forward planning (and

broader strategy) of the Trust.  

The review set out a wide range of

recommendations to enhance the

Governors’ core accountability and

assurance role, the delivery of its

core statutory functions and ways

in which Governors could better

represent the views and opinions

of the Members.  The review also

made a number of

recommendations designed to

improve COG structures and

processes. 

On the back of the Fundamental

Review the Council of Governors

approved an annual business plan

which will be led and managed by

a sub group of the COG, and this

has helped to focus the work of the

Governors over the year. The plan

also acts as a benchmark against

which the effectiveness of the COG

can be examined. The review also

led to a number of changes being

made to the format and agendas of

the COG meetings – with a much

greater emphasis on holding as

much business in the public arena

as possible and providing

opportunities for the COG to hold

the Board accountable against the

Terms of Authorisation. Further

development of the relationship

between the Board and the COG is

expected over the coming year.

The external facing role of the

Governors has been enhanced over

the year through the development

of the Members’ Say events, focus

groups and the greater use of

regular surveys. This role is

covered in greater detail in the

section on Membership. 
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� The Fundamental Review of

Governors and the resulting

business plan

� Discussing and inputting into

the Trust Annual Plan 2010/11

� Regularly examining the Trust’s

performance against its Terms

of Authorisation

� Receiving updates on

membership and the

development of the Governor’s

engagement with Members

including the Members’ Say

events and the links to the

Trust’s wider engagement

strategy

� Updates on the work of the

Foundation Trust Governors

Association

� Annual Report and Quality

Report

� The work and makeup of its sub

committees

� Regular public updates on the

Trust from the Chief Executive

followed by open question and

answer sessions

� An overview of the work of the

Board from the Chairman as

part of delivering the COG’s role

of holding the Board to account

� Openness and accountability

� The revisions to the Trust’s

Constitution

� An overview of the appraisals of

the NEDs and Chairman.

It also held three development

days which covered issues such

as:

� The Annual plan and Trust

strategy

� A development session on

how the COG can hold the

Board to account against its

Terms of Authorisation

� Patient safety

� Membership development

� Openness and transparency

� Training and development

needs

� Updates on the new direction

of the NHS under the

coalition government.

The COG and the Board met

twice during the year. In July, a

sub group of Governors met with

the Board in a workshop to

discuss and agree the outcomes

of the fundamental review

process. In September, the COG

and Board met and discussed the

review of Governors and the

implications of the proposed

changes to the NHS from the

government’s Health White

Paper. 

The COG met four times during 2010/11. 
At its public meetings it covered a range of
issues including:
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Christopher D’Oyly 

(Sep 2011) 4/4 *

Christopher lives in Somerset but

was brought up in Exeter and

Topsham.  Commanded a regiment

in the Army and worked in the City

of London.

Jill Gladstone (Sep 2011) 4/4

Jill enjoyed a nursing career

mainly in acute and emergency

medicine. She has an MSc in

healthcare and has published

research into drug administration

errors. More recently she

established the team that supports

clinical audit in the district

hospital. Prior to retirement she

worked as a nursing adviser to the

Health Service Ombudsman and

was a Member of the local

Research Ethics Committee.

Peter Hull (Sep 2013) 2/2

Peter qualified as a Master Mariner

and spent most of his working life

in the Shipping Industry.  After

extensive treatment at the RD&E,

Peter is keen to support the Trust

and help it maintain its reputation

as a place of excellence, and

indeed one of the best hospitals in

the country.

Andrew Kyle (Sep 2013) 2/2

Andrew lives in Exmouth and is a

retired teacher. During his career

he was involved in teacher

education and one of his

responsibilities was helping NHS

staff improve their teaching skills.

He has long standing family

connections with the NHS and is

committed to community

involvement in decision making.

He has a special interest in

communication.

Nicholas Morse (Sep 2013) 2/2

Nicholas lives on the edge of

Exmoor near Dulverton and has

fairly recently retired from a 40

year career in communications,

advertising and marketing working

on many well known accounts at

London West End advertising

agencies and in the media scene

with the Guardian Newspaper and

House & Garden. 

Linda Vijeh (Sep 2012) 3/4 #

Linda has lived and worked in

South Somerset for over 20 years.

She has extensive experience in

the media and hospitality

industries both in the public and

private sectors, with a particular

emphasis on customer service, and

social responsibility within the

licensing trade. Linda also holds a

number of positions within the

voluntary sector, including her role

as District Councillor, Governor of

two local schools and trustee for

the local museum, with

responsibility for fund raising.

Lynne Wright (Sep 2013) 1/2

Lynne trained as a secretary.  After

working at executive level within

industry, for barristers and senior

partners in legal firms she moved

into office management and

financial control, and has over

thirty years commercial

experience.   She was a long term

Member and secretary of the

League of Friends of a South

Warwickshire cottage hospital, and

is now retired and living in

Budleigh Salterton.  She is on the

Board of Trustees of a

Warwickshire charity.

East Devon, Dorset & Somerset



The RD&E Governors 38

www.rdehospital.nhs.uk

Keith Broderick (Sep 2011) 4/4

Keith is an accountant who took

early retirement from the public

sector in 2005. Keith lives in Exeter

and is a committee member for the

City of Exeter Division of St John

Ambulance.

Janice Cackett (Sep 2013) 1/2

Janice worked in the Health Service

for 35 years, as a ward Sister and

then in nurse education.  She moved

to Devon in 1988 to amalgamate

three Schools of Nursing, retiring in

1993. Janice was ordained a Deacon

in the Church of England in 1999 and

a Priest in 2000. She was appointed

part time Priest in Charge of the

Parishes of East Budleigh and

Otterton in 2003 and retired from

this position in 2010.  She lives in

Topsham.

Richard May (Sep 2012) 4/4 #

Richard, who lives in Exeter, is a

chartered civil engineer and

latterly ran a waste management

company providing a range of

services within Exeter and the

surrounding areas.  He was elected

as Deputy Chairman of Governors/

Lead Governor by his fellow

Governors in July 2010. 

Ed Pitman (Sept 2013) 2/2

Ed was born, and has lived, all of

his life in Exeter. He's worked for

Thomson Reuters for over 22 years,

and is the Site Head for the Exeter

Office as well as Service

Improvement Manager for the

company's real time data delivery

infrastructure. Outside of paid

work and his role as a Governor, Ed

is a keen guitarist.

Kate Caldwell OBE

(Sep 2013) 4/4 * 

Kate was Director of Midwifery and

Deputy Director of Nursing at the

RD&E until 2002. She was a Non-

Executive Director of Exeter PCT

until 2006 and was Treasurer of the

Royal College of Midwives. She is

Chairman of Exeter Municipal

Charities. 

Exeter & South Devon
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Martin Perry CBE 

(Sep 2012) 4/4 #

Martin is a political consultant

living in Northlew, outside

Okehampton. He is widowed with

three children, Chairman of the

Friends of Okehampton Hospital,

Treasurer of St Boniface RC

Church, and was awarded the CBE

in 1994.

Dianah Pritchett-Farrell 

(Sep 2013) 3/4 

Dianah is a retired University

Lecturer, Examiner, Quality

Standards Assessor in social care

and Senior Probation Officer, with

a research background in doctor-

patient communication, criminal

justice, child protection and

mental health. She is currently an

International Assessor for the

Social Care Council. 

Dianah represents the RD&E on the

Foundation Trust Governors

Association, is Chairman of their

Communications Committee and is

active in Governor research and

development nationally.

Cynthia Thornton 

(Sep 2011) 4/4

Cynthia lives in Willand. She has

had wide nursing experience,

including ten years as a district

nursing sister. She has a PGCEA and

a MSc. in Care, Policy and

Management and held University

teaching and research posts in

London and Reading. Published

work focused upon Primary Health

Care for People with Learning

Disabilities and Innovation and

Change in Healthcare Practice.

Cynthia is Chairman of the

Membership Development Group.

Staff Governors
Tony Cox,
Allied Health Professional
(Sep 2011) 4/4

Tony joined the Trust in 1992 as

Head of Physiotherapy. His current

role is as Directorate Manager for

Professional Services and

Diagnostics.

Mike Jeffreys, 
Medical and Dental
(Sep 2012) 2/4 #

Mike is Lead Clinician for Elderly Care

Medicine and has been a Consultant

Physician in Exeter since 1994.

During this time he was a Member of

the Executive Committee of the

Exeter Primary Care Trust. Previous

medical training was carried out at

Guy’s Hospital London, Western

Australia, Southampton, Manchester

and Cardiff.

Monica Overy,
Nursing and Midwifery 
(Sep 2011) 3/4 *

Monica has worked as a nurse at the

RD&E for over 15 years and now

works in the Health Information

Centre.

Loveday Varian, 
Admin, Clerical & Managers 
(Sep 2012) 4/4

Loveday has worked for the NHS as

a hospital-based medical secretary

for the past 30 years. She joined the

RD&E over five years ago and is a

medical secretary within the renal

team.

Mid North West Devon & Cornwall

# indicates membership of

Nominations Committee

* indicates membership of NED

Remuneration Committee

(n/n) indicates the number of

Governor meetings attended in

year (e.g. 3/4 means 3 out of 4

meetings attended)
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The following people have been

appointed by the organisations

listed to serve as Governors: 

Cllr John Gill,

North Devon District Council

(Jan 2013) 1/4

Cllr Peter Halse, 

East Devon District Council 

(Jan 2013) 2/4

Mrs Rebecca Harriott, 

NHS Devon 

(Jul 2013) 0/2

Professor Mark Overton,

Peninsula School of Medicine &

Dentistry # (Apr 2011) 1/4

Cllr Norman Shiel, 

Exeter City Council

(Aug 2011) 3/4

The following people were also

Members of the Council of

Governors during 2010/11:

Public constituency area: 

East Devon, Dorset & Somerset

Jean Clark (until Sep 10) 0/2

Linda Fryer (until Sep 10) 0/2

Malcolm Harrington (until May 10)

1/1

Stanley White (until Sep 10) 2/2

Public constituency area: 

Exeter & South Devon

Rachel Jackson (until Sep 10) 2/2

Imraan Jhetam (until Sep 10) 1/2

Brian Perriss (until Sep 10) 2/2

Phil Jenkins (until Jan 11) 0/1

Ken Counter (until Mar 11) 1/2

Public constituency area: Mid

North West Devon & Cornwall

Dianne Pearson (until Sep 10) 2/2

Paul Nielson (until Oct 10) 0/2

Staff Governors

Jason Maddocks, 

Hotel Services & Estates 

(until Mar 11) 4/4 

Appointed Governors

Cllr Bob Deed, 

Mid Devon District Council 

(until Feb 2011) 2/4

The following Governors were

elected at the annual elections in

June 2010:

Public Governors
East Devon, Dorset & Somerset
Andrew Kyle, Lynne Wright, 

Peter Hull, Nicholas Morse elected.

45.1% turnout

Exeter & South Devon
Kate Caldwell re-elected. 

Phil Jenkins, Janice Cackett,

Edward Pitman, Kenneth Counter

elected.  

41.5% turnout

Mid, North, West Devon &
Cornwall
Dianah Pritchett-Farrell re-elected.

David Giles elected. 

41.2% turnout

Staff Governors
Nurses & Midwives
Monica Overy elected unopposed.

The Board confirms that all

elections to the Council of

Governors are held in accordance

with the election rules as stated in

the Constitution. 

Governors can be contacted via

email at foundation.trust

@rdeft.nhs.uk.  The Governors’

Register of Interests is available for

inspection from the FT Secretary

(01392 402993) or on the Trust

website.

Appointed Governors Elections 
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Anyone aged 12 or over who lives in the area we service, or who works

for the Trust on a permanent contract or one of 12 months or more, has

the right to become a Member of the Trust.

The three public constituencies, with membership numbers as at 31

March 2011, are:

East Devon, Dorset & Somerset – 4,607

Exeter & South Devon – 5,059

Mid, North, West Devon & Cornwall - 3,250

Although the overall number of Members has declined marginally over

the last year, the Trust is satisfied that it retains a healthy membership

base. We have and continue to test out new ways of recruiting Members.

Membership overview
Our membership now stands at 18,241, made
up of 12,916 public Members and 5,325 staff
Members.

On work undertaken by Membership

Engagement Services the following

issues emerge about the Trust’s

membership and its comparison to

the wider community served by the

RD&E:

� The index comparing the

percentage of membership to

that of the local population in

the area indicates that overall

membership is least well

represented in the East Devon,

Dorset and Somerset

constituency 

� Our membership is for the most

part very comfortably off,

coming from the upper ACORN

categories; although the area is

rural the base data shows that

there are a large number of

people in the Urban Prosperity

category. The index for this

group is particularly low in the

East Devon, Dorset and Somerset

constituency. The Hard Pressed

category is also under

represented

Membership profile
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� The broad ethnicity categories show overall that our membership

represents the local population fairly well, with the exception of

people of mixed ethnicity

� Unsurprisingly the membership is older than it is young

� As is typical of other FT membership, the membership is made up of

more females than males, but the index numbers do not indicate a

particular imbalance.

Recruitment
initiatives

The Governors’ Membership

Development Group has been

looking at different ways that

the Trust can recruit new

Members.   

The Committee decided to try

several new recruitment

methods to see which works

best. One of the new activities

involved Governors manning a

membership stand in the main

hospital restaurant at the RD&E

Wonford. Three sessions took

place with over 60 new Members

recruited.

The Trust also tried out a new

membership leaflet with all first

outpatient appointment letters

to let patients know about being

Member and how they can join

and get involved.  This proved to

be less successful.       
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Over the last year, there has been

a conscious move to step up the

quality and level of engagement

with our Members rather than

continue to grow membership. We

have undertaken a number of

surveys of Members on, for

example, this year’s Quality

Account and on Members own

views about our membership offer.

We have also revamped the design

of our Member newsletter in a way

that makes it more accessible and

eyecatching.

Since we became a Foundation

Trust, we have sought to find

different ways of engaging with

Members as part of its duty to

involve and consult Members,

patients and the local community.

Several years ago, the engagement

work undertaken in advance of

becoming an FT and then later on

our strategic directions were

valuable in providing a platform for

engagement. Our Medicine for

Members series, in which leading

clinicians give lectures to Members

on aspects of healthcare, continue

to be popular. However,

constituency meetings which

enabled Members to talk directly

to Governors and Trust staff,

proved to be far less successful.

Over the last year we have

established a new mechanism for

engaging with Members that is

proving popular as well as useful.

Members’ Say events offer the

opportunity for Members to come

together to think and talk about

the values and priorities they

would like to see at the heart of

the Trust’s future plans. A number

of activities are held during the

event which set out to capture as

many attendees’ views as possible.

These activities include focus

groups and interactive activities

designed to provide the Trust with

a more in-depth understanding of

Members’ views. The Trust has now

held three such events and we

intend to continue with the model

going forward because it offers a

productive way of improving the

Trust’s understanding about the

issues which matter most to our

Members. 

The reaction of the 500 plus

Members who attended these

three events has been

overwhelmingly positive and those

who attended were keen to have

their say in a number of different

ways.  Those Members that did

attend were both knowledgeable

and committed and were willing,

in many cases, to do more in their

communities as NHS / RD&E

advocates.  It was also striking

that, for the vast majority of

attendees, they hold the RD&E and

its frontline staff in high regard

even in situations where people’s

experiences was not all that they

would have wanted. In addition,

Members had a chance to listen to

talks about key medical issues

from some of the Trust’s

consultants as well as learn more

about the hospital from the

information and staff present in

the exhibitions.

The Member newsletter has

provide the vehicle for feeding

back to Members after the events

both in terms of the general issues

raised but also some of the specific

questions. The events also provide

a key opportunity for Governors to

better understand the views of

Members and a number observed

some of the focus groups at our

March 2011 event. The reports

from the events go to both the

Board and the COG and time is

given for both to understand the

outcomes, take them on board,

and, as necessary, influence

decisions or provide specific

feedback.  Although the primary

focus of the Members’ Say events

is on improving our services,

increasingly the focus groups are

providing a rich source of data on

related issues concerning

becoming the hospital of choice in

the locality and on branding. 
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Having your say

Over 120 RD&E Members braved

arctic conditions in November to

attend the RD&E’s second

Members Say event. 

Those who attended had the

opportunity to have their say

about the Trust’s future

priorities as well as listen to

talks about key medical issues

from RD&E consultants.

Members also attended

discussions groups, took part in

a “who wants to be a

millionaire” style quiz and other

interactive activities, and heard

from staff on information stands

about new initiatives to improve

patient care. 

The reaction of our Members to

this event was overwhelmingly

positive and Members told us

they hold the RD&E and its

frontline staff in high regard,

even in situations where

people’s experiences was not all

that they would have wanted.

The RD&E is clearly fortunate in

having such a committed,

knowledgeable and proactive

membership base keen to

contribute to the future

development of RD&E services. 

Activities included

� Four Medicine for Members talks by leading clinicians about

respiratory medicine & stroke care 

� Information displays about Trust Governors, diabetes, the Exeter Hip,

nursing care, infection control and outside the mobile eye clinic was

parked for tours

� Interactive activities – for example asking Members to use fake

money to choose their priorities for spending. 

Members voted with their cash as follows:

Priority How much?

Time spent whilst waiting at the hospital £190

Cleanliness of the hospital £570

Time between being referred by GP and being £560

seen by hospital doctor

Reducing hospital infections £990

Being treated with respect £310

Being informed £410

Total spent £3,030

Event highlights
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� Members were asked by RD&E Governors for their views to understand

the expectation of our membership. Members said they like being

informed on a regular basis about RD&E services, that membership

should be publicised more perhaps with a monthly draw and more

opportunities to have a say; more should be done to recruit middle-

aged Members, they have a strong liking for the style and content of

the newsletter and they would like to see more about what the

Governors do and future changes to healthcare services and issues. 

Members were asked what quality healthcare
meant to them – this is what they told us:

Meeting all Government targets, e.g.
waiting times

Average number of days patients stay
over night in hospital

Percentage of patients who rate their
care as ‘good’ or ‘excellent’

Percentage of patients who would
recommend the hospital to their
family and friends

Number of complaints, concerns and
compliments received

The rating or assessment given to the
hospital from independent
organisations

2%

23%

17%

19%

6%

33%

Useful indicators of quality



Membership 46

www.rdehospital.nhs.uk

Governor Keith Broderick said: 

"I enjoyed meeting Members,

staff and volunteers and

listening to their comments -

and a few issues that I later

shared with the Foundation Trust

office. It was stimulating visiting

stands manned by enthusiastic

staff and volunteers providing

insight into issues affecting the

Trust's activities. I recommend

anyone with an opportunity to

do so to attend a Members Say!

event - your views matter!"

1. A hospital where I am seen as soon as possible

2. A hospital with access to the latest technologies & drugs

3. A well maintained, clean, safe and modern hospital environment 

Membership feedback from these lively and interesting group sessions

were captured in a report to the Trust Board of Directors and Council of

Governors so they are aware of the issues Members feel most strongly

about and to respond to some specific comments made. A full report on

the outcomes of the Members’ Say event is available at

www.rdehospital.nhs.uk

Nine discussion groups were held to explore
more in depth previously identified
membership priorities including 



Stakeholder relations47

The Trust continues to work closely

with our partners in health and

social care to improve health

services locally.  We have and

continue to work closely with for

example, NHS Devon including on

issues such as the transfer of

maternity services to the RD&E and

the establishment of RD&E

theatres in community hospitals. 

The Trust also has sought to

develop a productive relationship

with other heath care

organisations and, more locally,

with the Local Authority and the

Heath & Adult Care Oversight and

Scrutiny Committee. 

The Trust has also invested in

working with, and alongside, the

emerging GP consortia in Devon. 

Clinical partnerships with

neighbouring Trusts have continued

to develop and expand.  The

partnership with the Peninsula

School of Medicine and Dentistry

and the University of Exeter has

also been strengthened via joint

work to develop a new research,

innovation and learning centre.

As part of its Governance Review,

the Trust has established a new

framework for managing its

engagement with all of its

stakeholders. A new Engagement &

Experience Committee involving

Non-Executive Directors, Governors

and others will drive a new

stakeholder engagement strategy

during the coming year and

beyond.
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This surplus, together with performance
against other financial indicators
ensured the Trust achieved a financial
risk rating (FRR) of 4 against Monitor’s
compliance framework at the end of
Quarter 4 2010/11.  This rating is higher
than planned (annual plan set out a
planned FRR of 3) and positions the
Trust well in its ranking against other
foundation trusts.

The Trust generates a surplus to fund
investment in capital expenditure to
maintain and enhance the facilities
and equipment to treat our patients.
During 2010/11 the Trust invested
approximately £14m (between
revenue and capital) in building
schemes and equipment.  During the
year, key schemes included increasing
radiotherapy capacity with the
procurement of the third linear
accelerator and CT scanner; the
completion of the South Devon
Satellite Kidney Unit and the provision
of an integrated minimal access
theatre at the Exeter Wonford site.
Actual expenditure on capital schemes
was lower in year than planned, due
to agreed slippage on a number of
large schemes including the upgrade
of the existing facilities in the Aseptic
Unit (for drugs manufacture) and the
implementation of an order
communications and e-prescribing
system which commenced in the last
quarter of 2010/11.  The slippage on
these schemes was to ensure that the
schemes were properly planned and 

procured and the delay does not have
any implications for the existing
quality of patient care.  These
schemes will proceed during 2011/12.
In future years the Trust will continue
to invest in schemes that ensure our
buildings are in a good condition, that
our equipment is replaced regularly
and that service changes are fully
supported.  The Trust plans to spend
approximately £16-17m per annum
over the next three years to achieve
this aim and RD&E will need to
achieve a surplus of approximately
£3.5m per annum to support this
investment.

During 2010/11 the achievement of the
Trusts £4.1m surplus was largely
dependant on the achievement of a
cost improvement programme of
£18.3m.  The need to achieve this level
of productivity was largely driven by
the national requirement for the NHS
to deliver £15-20bn efficiency savings
over the next three years.  The Trust
essentially met this target during
2010/11 and achieved a recurrent cost
improvement of £16m.  The represents
the highest level of efficiency achieved
by the Trust since its inception as a
Foundation Trust in 2004/05.  These
savings have involved all directorates
and departments within the Trust and
our mandate has been to ensure we
deliver the financial agenda whilst
maintaining and striving to improve
patient safety and quality of services.
Our Quality Report set out later in this

document indicates this mandate has
been achieved.

Over the next three years, the Trust
will need to achieve productivity levels
of around the same financial value.
These savings are driven by reductions
to national tariffs and our host
commissioner, NHS Devon’s intention to
transfer services from the acute sector
to facilities closer to patient’s homes.
During 2010/11 the Trust has
strengthened its arrangements for
management and monitoring of its cost
improvement programme to ensure it
is well placed to achieve financial
targets in future years.

The Trust has a good level of liquidity
when benchmarked against other NHS
organisations, with the ability to cover
its operating costs for 57 days as of 31
March 2011.  These cash levels put the
Trust in a good financial position to
deal with future risks and challenges
over the forthcoming period. These
risks are primarily the need to achieve
not insignificant productivity
improvements over the next three
years; the need for service redesign
across the local health economy to
respond to the national quality
innovation, productivity and
prevention (QIPP) agenda; the
transition of commissioning and other
providers, particularly social care,
structures.  The Trust will continue to
manage these risks and work with
others in the local health economy to
ensure their impact is minimised.

The Trust’s approach to staff
engagement, equalities, research and
environmental matters are contained
in sections with the Annual Report
and/or the Quality Report.

2010/11 was another successful year for the

RD&E both operationally and financially.  The Trust planned to

generate a surplus of £3.6m during the year, and at year end had

slightly exceeded this achieving a surplus of £4.1m.



Patient care49

Quality and safety are

our guiding principles and are the

threads that run throughout the

fabric of the Trust’s business. Last

year we undertook a survey to ask

you, our patients and public how

you would define quality care. You

told us that whilst meeting

Government targets and a

commitment to providing the best

technology was important, the

most important indicators of

quality were the percentage of

patients who rated care as ‘good’

or ‘excellent’ and the percentage

of patients who would

‘recommend the hospital’ to

family or friends. For this reason

we set ourselves challenging

targets to continue our focus of

continuous improvement and the

achievement of excellence.

The commitment of our staff to

delivering excellence is evident in

our National Survey results. The

2009/10 National Inpatient Survey

results showed that 60% of patients

rated the care they received at the

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS

Foundation Trust as ‘Excellent’;

well above the national average

and in the top 20% of Trusts. When

the scores for ‘excellent’ and
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‘good’ were combined, this

positive rating increased to 85%.

This year we have again improved

our scores in the National Inpatient

Survey with patients scoring us

within the top 20% of Trusts

nationally in 30 out of the 77

questions. This high level of

achievement is also evident in the

National Maternity Survey and in

the National Cancer Survey where

we are in the top 20% best

performing Trusts in the country.

This year has seen the

development of our ‘Ward 2 Board’

clinical quality framework. This

brings together quality indicators

measuring levels of hygiene,

cleaning, complaints, incidents

and clinical outcomes to provide

an overview of the clinical care

provided by each ward.

Challenging targets for

achievement are set and

monitored monthly by the senior

nursing team and by the Trust

Board. This enables us to monitor

month on month performance,

identify wards that may need

additional support, learn from

those wards that consistently

achieve all targets and to

celebrate improvement

In our last report we introduced

you to the Nursing Quality

Assessment Tool (NQAT) which we

continue to use to measure quality

of care at ward level. This provides

a way to assess the quality of care

through direct observation,

assessment of patient records and

through real time interviews with

patients. Throughout the year,

Ward Matrons and their teams have

received feedback on results so

they can make improvements

where needed. 75% of the 27

participating inpatient wards have

shown a significant overall

improvement since their opening

audit. Every time an audit takes

place six patients are invited to

take part, providing real time

feedback about the care they have

received and to date 712 patients

have participated. This year, the

patient survey responses show that

the number of patients who would

recommend us has remained at

98% and above, 97% report they

felt ‘cared for’ and 99% report that

they ‘felt safe’.

This year a number of wards were

awarded the NQAT Gold standard

of care which requires the team to

achieve a score greater than 95%.

The continued use of NQAT and the

introduction of the Ward 2 Board

framework has motivated the

teams in striving to achieve

improvement, with focus and

commitment to ultimately attain

Gold. 
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This year we have expanded our pre-assessment service so that over 70% of our patients now receive an

assessment of their health and fitness for surgery before they come in for their operation. In addition to a

physical assessment, pre-assessment ensures that patients have the right information so they can prepare

themselves for the procedure and ensure they have time to make arrangements for their return home. 

Baby Friendly

The maternity service at the Centre for Women’s Health, Royal Devon and Exeter Foundation Trust, is well on

the way to achieving full Baby Friendly Initiative (BFI) Accreditation, having passed stage 2 in October 2010.

We are in the process of preparing for stage 3 assessment (full accreditation), which is booked to take place

in October 2011.

What does this mean for our pregnant women and their families?

All grades of staff that work within the maternity and neonatal settings, and deliver patient care, have received

comprehensive training to implement the “Ten Steps” to successful breastfeeding. The ten steps were

developed by UNICEF and The World Health Organisation to improve practice in Maternity units. In order to

“Promote, Protect and Support” breastfeeding, they reflect evidence-based best practice standards. In passing

stage 2, our staff were externally assessed, and demonstrated that they have the knowledge and skills to

implement the ten steps and deliver best practice, thereby facilitating women to make informed choices about

feeding their babies, based on accurate evidence-based information. Improved breastfeeding initiation and

continuation rates have been shown in areas with full BFI accreditation, and we can look forward to improved

health outcomes as more of our mothers choose to feed their babies’ breast milk, the “species specific food”

designed by nature to nurture the human baby.  

Preparation for surgery
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Priorities for
2011/12

Our priorities for 2011/12 can

be seen in the Quality Report

section of the report.

Patient & Visitor Feedback cards

Introduced just over a year ago we are working on refining this process

so that each patient is given the opportunity to provide impartial

feedback relating to their experience. Our Trauma and Orthopaedics

department are leading the way in handing out the comment card as part

of their admissions process, delivering a clear message that we want to

know what the people who use our service think. The ‘What went well,

would be better if ….’ cards have proved very popular with patients who

value the opportunity to give direct feedback on their experience. This

innovative approach was recently recognised nationally, with the team

being finalists in the National Patient Safety Awards. All areas now have

bright red boxes displayed in a prominent area, stocked with our yellow

feedback cards. 401 cards have been returned so far. They are collected

and analysed to identify priorities for improvement. This is work in

progress, but we have been immediately struck by the amount of

complimentary feedback we receive via this route, amounting to 72% of

all comments received. A number of suggestions for improvement have

been made and these have been taken into account when deciding our

quality priorities for this year.

Whilst these methods of collecting patient feedback are valuable we are

aware we need to increase the number of patients we reach using new

survey methods. We will be investigating new ways to collect the views

of the people who use our services to increase the amount of feedback

we get.
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There are three risk ratings: 

� Financial Risk Rating assessed

on a scale from 1 (high risk) to

5 (low risk);

� Governance (see right)

� Mandatory Services assessed as

Green (good), Amber-Green

(limited cause for concern),

Amber-Red (material cause for

concern) or red (poor)

Description

No material concerns 

• governance score less than 1.0 

• self-certification complete and
satisfactory 

Limited concerns surrounding
Authorisation 

• either emerging issues or
returning to compliance

Examples include: 

• moderate CQC concerns, or
compliance 

• other third party concerns with
potential governance implications 

• self-certification concerns 

• service performance in one area 

Governance score >=1.0, <2.0 

Breach of Authorisation, including:

• service performance in a number
of areas 

• material third party concerns (e.g.
major CQC concerns) 

• CQC restrictive compliance
conditions

Governance score >2.0, <4.0 

Likely or actual significant breach
of Authorisation

• governance score >=4.0 or 3rd
successive quarter failure against
same national requirement or
other 1.0 rated targets. These
elements of the Compliance
Framework were changed marginally
in-year

• significant governance issues
emerging from CQC investigation,
e.g. actual / significant risk of
failure to be registered (including
failure to rectify registration
conditions within timescales agreed
with CQC)

• mandatory services breach

Rating Reporting requirements 

Self-certification and exception
reporting 

Depending on nature of risk, some
additional work/supplementary
information may be required to
scope the issue e.g.

• clinical governance review

• CQC input 

Once scoped, approach to address
the potential issue of concern to be
agreed, with specific reporting on
progress 

• e.g. action plan to address any
breach of the Authorisation

For all other issues – as per Green 

Action plan required within agreed
timeframe to address the issue(s) 
• Monitor will follow progress

against this plan, using additional
information if necessary

• any subsequent regulatory action
will depend on plan delivery, with
failure likely to result in formal
escalation

For all other issues – as per Green /
Amber-green  

The NHS foundation trust may be
required to attend a formal
regulatory meeting to

determine nature of breach 

Subsequent actions to depend on
meeting and other evidence,
including: 

• Monitor Board decision regarding
significance of breach

• detailed action plan and delivery
updates required

• potential for intervention under
section 52 of the Act

Monitor assesses the
performance of the
Trust using Key
Performance
Indicators, designated
as Regulatory Ratings.
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As the charts below show, the Trust’s performance has been in line with

the performance during the previous financial year. With one exception

in the third quarter in 2009/10, the Trust’s performance was in line with

expectations set out in the RD&E’s annual plan. The Trust was assigned

an amber governance risk rating, which reflects its self assessment of

failure to meet the four hour A&E wait target and a risk of failing the 18

weeks RTT (admitted) target at Quarter 4. The Trust was monitored

monthly against the risk declared against the 18 weeks admitted target.

Routine quarterly monitoring applied following the A&E target failure.

The risk of not achieving the targets did not in fact materialise and in the

final quarter the Trust returned to plan. 

Annual Plan Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2010/11 20010/11 2010/11 2010/11 2010/11

Financial 3 3 3 3 4
risk rating

Governance amber- amber- green green amber-
risk rating green green green

Mandatory green green green green green
services

The Trust was assigned an Amber-Green governance risk rating at Quarter

1 2010/11 as a result of its failure to meet the 62 day wait for first

treatment (for urgent GP referral to treatment) cancer target and the 31

day (diagnosis to treatment) wait for first treatment cancer target.  The

Trust had submitted an inaccurate declaration at Quarter 1, declaring

non-achievement of the 62 day cancer target wait for first treatment,

from consultant screening service referral, instead of declaring non-

achievement against the 62 day cancer, urgent GP referral to treatment

target. 

The Trust had flagged a  non-

achievement of the Cancer 62 Day

Urgent GP Referral to Treatment

for Quarter 4 and a potential risk

of future underperformance

against the Total Time in A&E (95th

Percentile) target.

The target All cancers: 62-Day

Wait For First Treatment is split

into two sub-targets those From

Consultant Screening Service

Referral and Urgent GP Referral

To Treatment. The submission

made incorrectly stated Failed to

Meet against the From Consultant

Screening Service Referral as this

should have stated Achieved and

the submission against the Urgent

GP Referral To Treatment sub-

target incorrectly stated Achieved

when it should have been Failed to

Meet. However, this had no effect

on the overall target as failure of

either sub-target would indicate

failure of the overall target.

Ratings are assessed at the outset of each financial year

and reviewed on a quarterly basis. Over the year the RD&E has

maintained a solid performance in staying on course to meet its plan

and Monitor’s regulatory ratings requirements. 
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Staff Engagement is a key

predictor for both Quality and

Productivity. It is now the headline

key finding for the NHS Staff

Survey. The Trust is fully

committed to staff engagement

across the Trust. This is a core part

of the HR/OD strategy for the Trust

with the mantra “Quality Staff =

Quality Care” and it has been the

overriding priority in our Staff

Survey Action plans for the last two

years. 

Over the past year, we have

embedded our staff engagement

strategy “Enabling Excellence-

performance through People” with

the Trust’s Fit For The Future

programme. 

Chief Executive-led briefings have

supported engagement and

stimulated ideas from staff in

managing the financial challenges

of the Trust. We believe that

engaged staff have higher morale,

are more productive and will

deliver improved patient care. 

The Trust has already

demonstrated excellent examples

of good practice in fully involving

staff which include the Fit For The

Future staff suggestions, Health &

Wellbeing review, the Admin

review, Ward changes and

Directorate level staff

conversations. We have used new

technology for interactive

audience feedback and online

voting systems. The ongoing

Effective Manager and Customer

Care programmes also reinforce

the importance of engagement of

staff at all levels.  

To encourage greater involvement,

the Strategy for Staff Engagement

is currently being reviewed for

ongoing priorities through feedback

from staff. Through the Executive

Sponsor, a project planning group

across HR, Communications, Service 

Improvement, and Staff Side has

ensured staff communications and

feedback continued at the forefront

of developments. This group

reported to the Trust’s Strategic Re-

design Steering Group.

Summary of
Performance – Results
from Staff Survey

In 2010 the RD&E, as part of its

staff engagement strategy,

undertook a full census survey of

its staff for the third year and is

using this material to track

progress across the Trust and

within individual departments.

Staff were asked if they would

recommend the Trust as a place

to work or receive treatment. Our

score was significantly higher

than the national average and we

are in the top 20% of Trusts for

this finding. 

Last year results for the RD&E

showed 8 key findings in the top

20% and 3 in the bottom 20%

against a total of 40 key findings. 

Staff Engagement – statement of approach
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There are now 38 key findings with

11 in the top 20% and one in the

bottom 20% which is a significant

improvement during the year. 

Highlights and a selection of

detailed areas are shown below.

� The percentage of staff

reported work related stress

was in the lowest (best) 20% of

acute trusts

� 92% of staff agree their role

makes a difference (top 20% of

acute trusts)

� 81% of staff have received

appraisals this year, (compared

to 71% last year) and more staff

have had Personal Development

Plans (70% compared to 60% in

2009).  

� We are in the top 20% of Trusts

for Health & Safety training and

Equality and Diversity Training.

CQC 2009 CQC 2010

KF1- % Feeling satisfied with the Worst 20% Below average
quality of work and patient care

KF2 - % Agreeing their role makes Worst 20% Best 20%
a difference

KF 9 - % Using flexible working Best 20% Above average
options

KF16 - % Health & safety Best 20% Best 20%
Training (Improved on 09)

KF18 - % suffering work related Best 20% Best 20%
stress 

KF22 - Fairness & effectiveness of Below average Worst 20%
incident reporting procedures

KF24 - % experiencing physical Best 20% Below average
violence from staff

KF25 - % experiencing harassment, Best 20% Best 20%
bullying from patients, relatives 

KF26 - % experiencing harassment, Best 20% Best 20%
bullying from staff

KF28 – Impact on health & Below average Best 20%
wellbeing on ability to perform
work etc

KF 33 - Staff intention to leave Below average Best 20%
jobs

KF34 -  Recommendation of the Best 20% Best 20%
trust for work and to receive
treatment

KF36 - % Having Equality & Best 20% Best 20%
Diversity training
(Improved on 2009)

KF37 - % Trust provides Equal Above average Best 20%
Opportunities for career and
promotion

KF 38 - % experiencing Average Best 20%
discrimination at work



Further development of the Staff

Engagement Strategy and pro-

grammes is a priority across the Trust.

� The Staff Engagement Action

Plan for 2010/11 was developed

from best practices across NHS

Employers and has been

implemented across the Trust

� We have introduced ‘Staff

Conversations’ for Trust-wide

and local issues or

challenges. Further action will

be taken to enable staff to be

listened to, valued, and able to

influence and own changes in

their teams, service areas, and

wider

� Internal two-way comm-

unication processes using team

briefing, staff conversations and

IaN intranet continue to be

developed.

The survey also highlighted areas

for improvement.  Communication

between staff and senior managers

is still a priority area and staff

need to better understand their

role and where it fits in and have

more opportunities to be involved

in decisions that affect them.

Our staff survey demonstrated

continued improvement in staff

health. Staff reported work related

stress and the impact of health &

wellbeing on their ability to perform

work and daily activities as in the

best 20% of acute trusts nationally. 

� The Health and Wellbeing

Action Plan which we developed

in line with the Boorman Report

has been identified as an

example of national good

practice 

� We encourage our staff to lead

healthy lifestyles by promoting

a range of health initiatives

including a weight loss

group, a virtual gym funded

through Staff Lottery and sports

leagues throughout the year.  

� During the last year we engaged

staff across the Trust in staff

conversations about health &

wellbeing and this work has

contributed to ideas for

supporting staff health and a

new sickness absence policy 

� A health and wellbeing website

has been developed with tools

and information for staff and

managers

� The physiotherapy service will

continue to be funded on a

fixed-term contract basis

� Over the past year, the sickness

absence rate for the RD&E has

reduced further and targeted

resources are planned to further

support staff and managers 

� We are exploring new ways to

support and inform colleagues

on health prevention and

protection, and to help staff,

with long-term health issues,

resume their working life. One

area being explored is the

support of health trainers.

Staff health & wellbeing

Human Resources, Equality & Staff Survey57

Future priorities &
targets



FTE-Days Available FTE-Days Lost to Average Sick Days
Sickness Absence per FTE

1,147,500 48,447 9.5 

The following table sets out the key sickness absence reporting data for calendar year 2010.
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Health and safety is a key

component of the Trust’s Risk

Management Strategy which aims

to ensure the safety of staff,

patients and visitors to the Trust.

This plan is overseen by the Health

and Safety Committee.

The Trust’s annual Health and

Safety Work Plan includes relevant

legislation,  Health & Safety

Executive targets and best

practice, as well as specific issues

identified through incident

reporting, risk assessments and

monitoring reasons for staff

sickness. This enables the

organisation to highlight risk areas

such as slips, trips and falls,

manual handling, stress, conflict

resolution and security.

The introduction of 24/7 site

security has been successful and

whilst levels of violence and

harassment experienced by staff

are in the best 20% of trusts in the

past two years, these have now

reduced further.

Our equality work has been

recognised nationally, during

2010/11. We reached the national

finals of the Healthcare People

Management Association awards

and have been awarded Partner

status by NHS Employers, for

2010/11.

We have significantly raised the

profile of equality and diversity.

Widespread delivery of the basic

training has put us into the best

20% of Trusts nationally for the

frequency of equality training in

the most recent staff survey.

Alongside this, we have developed

an offer of advanced equality

training, paying particular

attention to issues staff and

patients face, around race, age

and disability. The staff survey

shows that this has made a

difference to our workplace, with

reported discrimination across

several characteristics falling. 

We have been recognised as

Positive about Disabled People, for

our work supporting employees

with disabilities. 

We have also enhanced the use we

make of data to understand our

performance as regards equality

and diversity. The 2010 Data

Report included an indepth

analysis by equality category of

patient experience, as reported in

both national and local surveys. 

Underneath this lies engagement

work with our staff and the

external community, ensuring we

can continue to develop our

understanding of the experiences

of both staff and patients, across

the equality categories.

Health & Safety Equality & Diversity



Sustainability Report59

The Trust is committed to become

a low carbon, sustainable

organisation.  The regulatory and

legislative requirements for the

NHS to both reduce carbon

emissions and to adapt to climate

change are taken seriously by the

Trust.  The Trust will therefore be

producing a separate Sustainability

Report later in the year that

conforms to the HM Treasury public

sector requirements when all

information for the financial year

2010/11 is available.

The Trust has a Sustainability

Committee.  Its objectives are to

promote the Trust’s sustainable

development framework within

which carbon emissions will be

reduced.  Since the Sustainability

Committee was established in 2010

it has been working on a carbon

reduction strategy and has set out

an action plan covering key

sustainability areas of the Trust’s

business.  The Trust’s carbon

reduction strategy sets out

proposals for sustainable

development to bring about

measurable improvements aimed at

ensuring its economic, social and

environmental sustainability.  In this

context the Trust has consulted

with its Members on sustainability

and its social responsibilities.

Carbon Emissions

The Trust aims to meet the NHS

target of reducing its 2007 carbon

emissions by 10% by 2015.  In 2010

the NHS Sustainable Development

Unit published an update

supplement to the NHS Carbon

Reduction Strategy highlighting

that in 2007 the carbon footprint

for NHS England was 21 million

tonnes.  This is broken down by

proportion in the three primary

sectors of travel 17%, building

energy 24% and procurement 59%.

The Trust closely monitors its

production of greenhouse gases.

The Trust joined the European

Union greenhouse gas emission

allowance Energy Trading Scheme

(EU ETS) scheme 3 years ago and

has since been carbon trading in

respect of the Wonford site only.  

In April 2010, the Trust also

registered for the Carbon

Reduction Commitment (CRC)

scheme.  This is a new mandatory

carbon emissions trading scheme.

It targets large public and private

sector organisations and is

intended to have a significant

impact on reducing UK carbon

emissions.  

Carbon Emissions

By July 2011, the Trust will have

compiled its evidence pack,

reported its energy used in

2010/11 and calculated its

greenhouse gas emissions.  It is

understood that the government

carbon allowances will be sold at a

fixed price (starting at £12 per

tonne) in 2012.  

Energy

The Trust’s building energy carbon

footprint in 2007 was 16,059

tonnes (April 2007 to March 2008).

It rose to 17,908 tonnes in 2008/09

due to increase in the Trust’s

activity and building size with the

opening of the new Centre for

Women’s Health building at

Wonford Hospital in July 2007.

However, in 2009/10 there was a

reduction in the Trust’s building

energy carbon emissions to 17,300

tonnes.  Although this is partly due

to weather conditions, the Trust

was also able to gain more

effective use of its CHP (combined

heat and power) installation,

generating electricity on-site and

producing heat to create steam for

the laundry.  
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There is an ongoing programme to

reduce the Trust’s carbon footprint

and new figures for 2010/11 will be

available in June 2011.  

A sustainable energy strategy is

being developed that will set out

options for technical solutions to

reduce carbon emissions, reliance

on mains grid energy and make the

Trust’s energy supplies more

resilient.  

The aim is to create an optimum

balance of energy sources that will

reduce reliance on grid energy by

on-site generation from CHP

(combined heat and power)

combined with other local

renewable energy sources and low

carbon measures.  

Options under review include: 

� Solar, especially retrofitting

solar photovoltaic panels to

existing buildings

� Air and ground source heat

pumps

� Wind turbines

� Biomass boilers

� Absorption chillers

� High efficiency LED lighting

� District heating system schemes

� Energy from waste.

The Trust complies with the BRE

Environmental Assessment Methods

and all major building projects

consider the implications for the

Trust’s carbon footprint.  

During 2010/11 the following

energy efficiency schemes were

implemented:

� Low energy lighting pilot in

Clyst-Creedy corridor  

� New high efficiency ‘turbo

core’ air conditioning chiller

plant at Wonford Hospital 

� Replacement laundry steam

traps which have reduced the

volume of waste steam

� New higher efficiency summer

load boiler at Heavitree

Hospital. 
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The Trust has a Staff Travel Group.

The Group has been working to

promote active travel and identify

sustainable travels options to help

reduce demand on car parking and

vehicle dependence.  Staff, visitors

and patients are encouraged to

consider alternatives to using their

car when coming to the Trust’s

hospitals.  During 2010/11 the

following initiatives were

implemented:

� Increased frequency of park and

ride bus service to Wonford

Hospital and pilot study for

shuttle service between

Heavitree and Wonford

� Continuation of staff discount

scheme on public transport bus

services

� Options for alternative travel

schemes including additional

cycle facilities, cycle routes and

prospective car share scheme

� Energy Saving Trust Green Fleet

review of the Trust’s own

vehicle fleet.

Waste Management Sustainable Travel Plan

The Trust has a Waste Management Group.  The Group has been working

to identify ways to minimise the Trust’s impact on the environment,

expand recycling and reduce the cost of waste disposal.   During 2010/11

the following projects were implemented:

� Daily audit system by the new ward monitoring team leading to better

segregation and minimisation of waste

� Recycling pilot involving collection to central point of all plastic waste

arising from wards linked to trial with a recycling company

� Tighter controls to reduce food wastage

� Waste training scheme for all appropriate staff together with new

waste management pocket guides for all Trust staff.
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The following table summarises the Trust’s performance with prior year comparatives:

Area Metric Metric Metric Cost £ Cost £ Cost £
Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes

Stream Disposal 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11
Methods

Clinical Offsite 740 810 770 £243,297 £292,259 £258,070
incineration

Domestic Compaction 654 654 660 £53,559 £59,990 £66,000
and landfill

Paper Collection 40 45 45 £550 £660 £700
and recycle

Confidential Shred and 60 60 65 £17,885 £19,323 £21,000
waste recycle

Cardboard Batch and 105 115 125 £2,513 £2,513 £2,513
recycle

Metals Collection 50 50 n/a £1,180 £150 £0
and recycle

Utilities. Metric 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11

Water Cubic 229,009 237,233 220,100 £684,786 £759,885 £715,500
metres

Electricity Kilowatt 16,134,400 14,553,992 17,948,500 £1,736,595 £1,271,588 £1,425,600
hours

Gas Kilowatt 45,832,819 42,824,834 40,195,000 £1,471,901 £1,065,250 £1,052,500
hours

Oil Litres 294,859 325,869 330,000 £159,817 £176,552 £210,000

Performance

Future priorities
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Key areas of focus for the Trust in 2011/12 will be:

� sustainable energy 

� sustainable travel 

� waste minimisation 

� sustainable procurement, and 

� staff and community engagement.
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The National Health Service Act

2006 ("2006 Act") states that the

Chief Executive is the Accounting

Officer of the Royal Devon and

Exeter NHS Foundation Trust

("Trust").  The relevant

responsibilities of the Accounting

Officer, including their

responsibility for the propriety and

regularity of public finances for

which they are answerable, and for

the keeping of proper accounts,

are set out in the NHS Foundation

Trust Accounting Officer

Memorandum issued by the

Independent Regulator of NHS

Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”).  

Under the 2006 Act, Monitor has

directed the Trust to prepare for

each financial year a statement of

accounts in the form and on the

basis set out in the Accounts

Direction.  The accounts are

prepared on an accruals basis and

must give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the Trust and

of its income and expenditure,

total recognised gains and losses

and cash flows for the financial

year.

In preparing the accounts, the

Accounting Officer is required to

comply with the requirements of

the NHS Foundation Trust Annual

Reporting Manual and in particular

to:

� observe the Accounts Direction

issued by Monitor, including the

relevant accounting and

disclosure requirements, and

apply suitable accounting

policies on a consistent basis

� make judgements and estimates

on a reasonable basis

� state whether applicable

accounting standards as set out

in the NHS Foundation Trust

Annual Reporting Manual have

been followed, and disclose and

explain any material departures

in the financial statements; and

� prepare the financial

statements on a going concern

basis.

The Accounting Officer is

responsible for keeping proper

accounting records which disclose

with reasonable accuracy at any

time the financial position of the

Trust and to enable her to ensure

that the accounts comply with

requirements outlined in the above

mentioned Act.  The Accounting

Officer is also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of the Trust

and hence for taking reasonable

steps for the prevention and

detection of fraud and other

irregularities.

To the best of my knowledge and

belief, I have properly discharged

the responsibilities set out in

Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust

Accounting Officer Memorandum.

Signed: 

Angela Pedder OBE

Chief Executive

Date: 25 May 2011

Statement of the Chief Executive's responsibilities as the Accounting
Officer of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust
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1. Scope of responsibility

As Accounting Officer, I have

responsibility for maintaining a

sound system of internal control

that supports the achievement of

the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS

Foundation Trust’s policies, aims

and objectives, whilst safeguarding

the public funds and departmental

assets for which I am personally

responsible, in accordance with

the responsibilities assigned to me.

I am also responsible for ensuring

that the Royal Devon and Exeter

NHS Foundation Trust is

administered prudently and

economically and that resources

are applied efficiently and

effectively. I also acknowledge my

responsibilities as set out in the

NHS Foundation Trust Accounting

Officer Memorandum.

2. The purpose of the system of
internal control

The system of internal control is

designed to manage risk to a

reasonable level rather than to

eliminate all risk of failure to

achieve policies, aims and

objectives; it can therefore only

provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance of

effectiveness. The system of

internal control is based on an

ongoing process designed to

identify and prioritise the risks to

the achievement of the policies,

aims and objectives of Royal Devon

& Exeter NHS Foundation Trust, to

evaluate the likelihood of those

risks being realised and the impact

should they be realised, and to

manage them efficiently,

effectively and economically. The

system of internal control has been

in place in Royal Devon & Exeter

NHS Foundation Trust for the year

ended 31 March 2011 and up to the

date of approval of the annual

report and accounts.

3. Capacity to handle risk

3.1 Overall responsibility for the

management of risk within the

Trust rests with the Board of

Directors. Reporting mechanisms

are in place to ensure that the

Board of Directors receives timely,

accurate and relevant information

regarding the management of

risks. The Board of Directors risk

management assurance process is

supported by two Board sub

committees, the Audit Committee

and the Governance Committee.

During 2010/11 the Board of

Directors commissioned a review

of the Trust’s governance

framework and agreed a

development plan that will be

implemented during 2011/12.

3.2 The Audit Committee monitors

and oversees both internal control

issues and the process for risk

management. Audit Southwest

(internal audit) and PWC (external

auditors) attend all Audit

Committee meetings. The Audit

Committee receives all reports of

the Internal and External Auditors

and reports regularly to the Board. 

3.3 Risk issues are reported through

the Governance Committee and the

Trust’s management structure.

Management and ownership of risk

is delegated to the appropriate level

from director through to local

management through the divisional

management teams. All directorates

have Governance Groups which

meet regularly. There are

established Governance

Coordinators posts to support the

directorates in implementing robust

risk and governance processes.

Directorates provide quarterly

reports to the Governance

Committee and the Governance

Committee reports regularly to the

Board.  Both the Board of Directors

and the Governance Committee

receive reports that impact on

clinical risk.

3.4 The Board has appointed a

Senior Independent Director to be

available to Governors and

Members if they have concerns

which contact through the normal

channels of Chairman, Chief

Executive or Director of Finance

has failed to resolve or for which

such contact is inappropriate.

3.5 All staff joining the Trust are

required to attend Corporate

Induction which covers key

elements of risk management. This

is further enhanced at

departmental induction. 
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Training courses are run on a

regular basis and provide staff with

the skills needed to undertake risk

management duties. Staff are

trained and equipped to manage

risk in a way appropriate to their

authority and duties. Risk

management is included in the

Trust’s mandatory training

programme and follow up

refresher training; the Trust’s risk

management policies and

procedures are available on the

Trust’s intranet IaN. 

3.6 Senior clinical staff are

trained to conduct Root Cause

Analysis investigations and the

Governance Support Unit

coordinates Root Cause Analysis

investigations of adverse incidents

and learning points are made

available to all relevant staff.

Root Cause Analysis and Serious

Incidents Requiring Investigation

(SIRI) reports and action plans are

discussed with the Trust’s lead

commissioner, NHS Devon. 

4. The risk and control
framework

4.1 The Board of Directors is

responsible for the strategic

direction of the Trust. The Board of

Directors has reviewed and

approved the Trust Assurance

Framework, identifying key risks

related to the Trust strategic

objectives and key priorities. The

Assurance Framework and the

Trust Risk Register are reviewed

quarterly by the Governance

Committee and Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee uses the

Assurance Framework to set

internal audit’s annual work plan.

4.2 Any gaps in controls or

assurance are highlighted and

reported to the Board of Directors.

Risks to the Trust’s strategic

objectives that can not be

immediately eliminated are placed

on the risk register and action plans

put in place to address any gaps. The

Board of Directors risk and control

framework work is supported by the

Audit Committee and Governance

Committee which provide assurance

to the Board on risk and control

management issues.

4.3 The Audit Committee is a Non-

Executive committee of the Board of

Directors and reviews the

establishment and maintenance of

an effective system of integrated

governance across the whole of the

Trust’s activities that supports the

achievement of the Trust’s

objectives. Specifically, the

committee reviews the adequacy of:  

� all risk and control related

disclosure statements together

with the Head of Internal Audit

Opinion and external audit

opinion (ISA 260 report) prior to

endorsement by the Board

� reviews and approves the

annual audit plans 

� reviews the data assurance

process underpinning the Trust’s

Quality Report

� the underlying assurance

processes that indicate

management of risks that may

impact the degree to which 

achievement of the corporate

objectives  is secured, together

with the effectiveness of the

management of principal risks

and the appropriateness of

disclosure statements

� the policies and procedures for

all work related to fraud and

corruption as required by the

counter fraud and  security

management service

� the Trust’s self assessment

process for assessing

compliance with Care Quality

Commission Regulations  for the

period April 2010 to March 2011.  

4.4 The chairs of the Audit

Committee and the Governance

Committee meet no less than three

times per year to ensure that the

agendas of the two committees are

aligned and there are no gaps in

assurance. 

4.5 The Governance Committee is

chaired by a Non-Executive Director

and provides  leadership to the risk

management process. The

Committee takes a comprehensive

oversight of the quality and safety of

care provided by the Trust and

provides assurance to the Board of

Directors. The work of the
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Governance Committee is supported

by a number of sub-committees that

are responsible for monitoring and

managing specific types of risk. The

Significant Events Forum is chaired

by a consultant clinical lead and

reviews all Root Cause Analysis of

adverse incidents, Clinical Audits

and Mortality and Morbidity Reviews.

The NPSA Alerts Working Party is

chaired by the Medical Director and

ensures the timely implementation

of alert notifications.

4.6 Other specialist committees,

led by director or senior clinicians

include: 

� Medical Devices Groups 

� Medicines Management Group 

� Medical Gases Group 

� Radiation Protection Group 

� Infection Control Committee

� Clinical Audit and Effectiveness

Committee

� Drugs and Therapeutics

Committee 

� Integrated Safeguarding

Committee

� Patient Safety Steering Group.

5. Risk Identification and
evaluation

5.1 The Trust has a risk management

strategy which clearly sets out the

processes for identifying and

managing risks. It incorporates a

standard methodology in which risk

is evaluated using a likelihood-

consequence matrix. The roles and

responsibilities of staff in managing

risk are defined and key posts

highlighted. The strategy also

includes the governance reporting

structure and the terms of reference

of the Governance Committee and

all the committees reporting to the

Governance Committee.

5.2 The Trust maintains a

comprehensive Risk Register

covering both clinical and

organisational risks. Individual risks

are assigned to an appropriate

executive lead and manager who

are responsible for ensuring that

the risk is either eliminated or

managed appropriately. Specialist

staff are employed to provide

support and appropriate training in

risk management. 

5.3 The Trust has directorate level

risk registers which feed into the

Trust Risk Register. At directorate

level, the risk registers contain

lower level localised risks that can

be managed by the relevant

directorate. The Trust Risk Register

contains the higher level risks and

Trust wide risks. This ensures that

risks are identified, managed and

escalated appropriately at all

levels of the organisation. Risk

assessments, including Health and

Safety and Infection Control Audits

are undertaken throughout the

Trust. All areas of the hospital have

trained Risk Management Officers

and the Risk Management

Department carries out checks to

ensure that risk assessments are

being completed accurately and

acted upon.

5.4 Other methods of identifying

risks include:

� Complaints, Care Quality

Commission and Health Service

Ombudsman reports and

recommendations

� Inquest finding and reports from

HM Coroners

� Health and Safety Executive and

regulatory body compliance

inspections

� Medico-legal claims and

litigation reports

� LiNKs and Health Scrutiny

Committee reports

� Incident reports and trend

analysis

� Internal and external audit

reports

� Quarterly Performance Reviews;

� Feedback from Governors and

Members.

5.5 Information governance and

data security is managed by the

Information Governance Steering

Group lead by the Director of

Finance and Business

Development, the Trust’s

nominated Senior Information Risk

Owner. Information Asset Owners

for critical systems have been

identified; system risk assessments

and Information Risk Management

training is undertaken annually.
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5.6 An Information Security Forum,

chaired by the Medical Director as

Caldicott Guardian, deals with all

aspects of information security and

data confidentiality. Risks to

information security are reported

directly to the Information Security

Forum and recorded on the Trust’s

Information Risk Register.  The Trust

has completed the Information Tool

Kit assessment and the Audit

Committee and the Board of

Directors has received a report

regarding its system for control for

information governance. 

5.7 The Trust is red rated on

Information Governance as it

meets level 2 on all but 3 of the

non-key requirements.  For these 3

the Trust has achieved level 1 as at

31 March 2011.  Action plans are in

place to ensure the Trust achieves

level 2 during 2011/12 as follows:

� Business continuity plans – to be

completed by May 2011;

� Pseudonymisation – to be

completed by May 2011;

� Completeness and Validity

Checks – to be completed by

September 2011;

5.8 Control measures including,

impact assessments, are in place to

ensure all the Trust’s obligations

under equality, diversity and human

rights legislation are complied with.

The Board of Directors receives

assurance the Trust is meeting its

obligations, under the Equality Act

and the associated Public Sector

Duty, via a detailed Equality &

Diversity Report presented by the

Director of Human Resources. The

Trust has fully reviewed its delivery

in the light of the latest legislative

changes and is satisfied it is

complying with requirements. The

Single Equality Scheme sets out the

Trust's obligations and commitments

for equality and diversity. These are

communicated to staff through the

Trust intranet and through equality

and diversity training, which has

been given to all staff on induction

and specialist updates.

5.9 Every year the Trust

undertakes a detailed data

analysis, covering both employee

and service user equality issues.

This provides a further level of

assurance that we are delivering

on our commitment to embed

equality and diversity in both

service delivery and the

management of our staff.

5.10 As an employer with staff

entitled to membership of the NHS

Pension Scheme, control measures

are in place to ensure all employer

obligations contained within the

Scheme regulations are complied

with. This includes ensuring that

deductions from salary, Employer’s

contributions and payments into

the Scheme are in accordance with

the Scheme rules, and that

Member Pension Scheme records

are accurately updated in

accordance with the timescales

detailed in the Regulations.

5.11 The Trust has undertaken risk

assessments and Carbon Reduction

Delivery Plans are in place in

accordance with emergency

preparedness and civil contingency

requirements, as based on UKCIP

2009 weather projects, to ensure

that this organisation’s obligations

under the Climate Change Act and

the Adaptation Reporting

requirements are complied with.

6. Quality Report

6.1 The Trust is fully registered

with the Care Quality Commission

and remains compliant with the

requirements of registration. 

6.2 The Directors are required

under the Health Act 2009 and the

National Health Service (Quality

Accounts) Regulations 2010 to

prepare Quality Accounts for each

financial year. Monitor has issued

guidance to NHS foundation trust

boards on the form and content of

annual Quality Reports which

incorporate the above legal

requirements in the NHS Foundation

Trust Annual Reporting Manual. 

6.2 The content of the Trust’s

Quality Account for 2010/11 builds

on the 2009/10 report. It has been

agreed by the Board of Directors and

incorporates the views and priorities

of Governors and the views of

approximately 500 Trust Members in

setting priorities for improvement in



Statement on Internal Control  68

www.rdehospital.nhs.uk

2011/12. The development of the

report is led by the Director of

Nursing and Patient Care. The views

of NHS Devon, as lead commissioner,

LINKs Devon and Devon County

Council Health Scrutiny Committee

have been sought. 

6.3 The Trust uses the same systems

and processes to collate, validate,

analyse and report on data for the

annual Quality Account as it does for

other clinical quality and

performance information. The data

is subject to regular review and

challenge at speciality, directorate

and trust levels. In line with the

Trust’s commitment to openness

and transparency, the data included

is not just limited to good

performance and is publicly

reported at least on a quarterly

basis. The Audit Committee

undertake a review of the data

assurance underpinning the Quality

Account and through this process

and the other review of data, the

Board is assured that the Quality

Account represents a balanced view. 

6.4 During 2011/12 as part of the

three year audit cycle a

programme to assure quality

systems and data similar to that  in

place for our financial systems,

will be agreed with our internal

auditors. The Board of Directors

will use the recommendations from

this work to further improve the

robustness of the process

underpinning the Quality Accounts

7. Review of economy, efficiency
and effectiveness of the use of
resources

7.1 The Trust’s Annual Plan,

including financial, performance,

quality and governance targets was

approved by the Board of Directors

in May 2010. Overall performance

is monitored via an integrated

performance report at the monthly

meetings of the Board of Directors.

This includes trend data on a

number of measures of efficiency

and use of resources such as

sickness absence and readmission

rates. Operational management

and the coordination of Trust

services are delivered by the

Executive Directors and Trust

Executive, which comprises the

Executive Directors and clinical

directors. Performance of

individual clinical and support

directorates is monitored

informally on a monthly basis and

formally on a quarterly basis via

the quarterly review process. 

7.2   The Trust’s Internal Audit Plan

and External Audit Management

Letter include commentary on the

economical, effective and efficient

use of resources. The findings of

internal and external audit are

reported to the Board through the

Audit Committee.

7.3 I can confirm that the Trust

complies with the cost allocation of

and charging requirements set out

in HM Treasury and Office of Public

Sector Information guidance.

7.4 Internal Audit have

conducted reviews against the

Care Quality Commission

regulations, records management,

data quality, and information

governance. Reviews are

conducted using a risk-based

approach. In addition they have

annual reviews of the Trust’s risk

management and governance

arrangements.

8. Review of effectiveness

8.1 As Accounting Officer, I have
responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of
internal control. My review of the
effectiveness of the system of
internal control is informed by the
work of the internal auditors and the
Executive Managers within the NHS
Foundation Trust who have
responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal
control framework, and comments
made by the external auditors in
their management letter and other
reports. I have been advised on the
implications of the results of my
review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the
Board, the Audit Committee,
Internal Audit, the Divisional
Manager of Corporate Affairs and
External Audit. The system of
internal control is regularly reviewed
and plans to address any identified
weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement are put in place.
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8.2 The processes applied in

maintaining and reviewing the

effectiveness of the system of

control include:

� The maintenance of a view of

the overall position with regard

to internal control by the Board

of Directors through its routine

reporting processes and its work

on corporate risk

� Review of the Assurance

framework and receipt of

Internal and External Audit

reports to the Audit Committee;

� Personal input into the controls

and risk management processes

from all Executive Directors,

Senior Managers  and clinicians

� The Board’s review of the

Trust’s risk and internal control

framework is supported by the

Annual Head of Internal Audit

opinion which states that

significant assurance can be

given, that there is a sound

system of internal control and

that controls are generally

being applied consistently 

� Evidence gathering for core

Care Quality Commission

regulations and registration

� Self assessment against the

Care Quality Commission’s

Essential Standards for Quality

and Safety (reviewed by 

internal audit)

� Self assessment against

Monitor’s Code of Compliance 

� CNST level 2 accreditation for

its maternity services

� CNST level 1 accreditation for

all other services

� Performance monitoring by the

Board of Directors of the Trust’s

strategy and  operational

milestones to achieve internal

and external targets 

� Results of the national patient

and staff survey results 

� Completion of the health &

safety action plan

� The Trust’s compliance with the

Hygiene Code

� The Trust’s unconditional

registration with the CQC.  

8.3 I have drawn on the content

of the Quality Report attached to

this Annual Report and other

performance information available

to me. My review is also informed

by comments made by the external

auditors in their management

letter and other reports.

8.4 My review of the effectiveness

of the system of internal control

has been presented and approved

by the Board. The Board and the

Audit and Governance Committees

have been kept informed of

progress against action plans

throughout the year. The assurance

framework includes plans to

address any gaps in control or

assurance in order to ensure that

continuous improvement of the

system is in place.

9. Conclusion

There are no significant internal

control issues (i.e. issues where

the risk could not be effectively

controlled) I wish to report in

respect of  2010/11. I am satisfied

all internal control issues raised

have been, or are being, addressed

by the Trust through appropriate

action plans and that

implementation of these plans is

monitored. 

Signed

Angela Pedder OBE

Chief Executive

Date: 25 May 2011
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So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit

information of which the RD&E’s external auditor is

unaware. Each Director has taken all the steps that they

ought to have taken as a Director in order to make

themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to

establish that the RD&E’s external auditor is aware of that

information.

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable

expectation that the RD&E has adequate resources to

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable

future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going

concern basis in preparing the accounts.

SUI confidentiality breaches: There were no serious

untoward incidents relating to data losses or breaches in

patient confidentiality during the course of the financial

year.

If management wishes to use the services of the Trust’s

external auditor for any non-audit purposes, we

demonstrate why this is appropriate. The Director of

Finance and Business Development will provide professional

advice on the appropriateness of such an arrangement and

the Audit Committee develop, implement policy and review

the engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit

services, taking into account relevant ethical guidance

regarding the provision of non-audit services by the external

audit firm. This safeguard is in place to ensure

independence. PwC also need to confirm that they would

be able to carry out any non-audit work without impacting

on their independence.

Further Disclosures
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• As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable
remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of
pensions for Non-Executive members.
• A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the
actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme
benefits accrued by a Member at a particular point in
time.  The benefits valued are the Member's accrued
benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable
from the scheme.  A CETV is a payment made by a
pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension

benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when
the Member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the
benefits accrued in their former scheme.  The pension
figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual
has accrued as a consequence of their total membership
of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior
capacity to which the disclosure applies.  The CETV
figures, and the other pension details, include the value
of any pension benefits in another scheme or
arrangement which the individual has transferred to the

• Other Remuneration shows the salary that is attributable to clinical duties.  
• The contractual hours of L Lane are 0.8 of a whole time equivalent.
• The salary of E Hobson includes a pay arrear for 2009/10.  

Remuneration
Name and Title Salary Other

Remuneration

(bands of £5000) (bands of £5000)

£000 £000
2010/11
A Ballatti Chairman 45 - 50 -
B Aird Non-Executive Director 10 - 15 -
B Baty Non-Executive Director (retired 30 April 2010) 0 - 5 -
D Bishop Non-Executive Director (retired 31 January 2011) 10 - 15 -
J Gaisford Non-Executive Director (appointed 1 May 2010) 10 - 15 -
J Rackstraw Non-Executive Director 10 - 15 -
D Robertson Non-Executive Director (appointed 1 November 2010) 5 - 10 -
G Sturtridge Non-Executive Director (retired 31 October 2010) 10 - 15 -
A Willis Non-Executive Director (appointed 1 February 2011) 0 - 5 -
D Wright Non-Executive Director 10 - 15 -

A Pedder Chief Executive 170 - 175 -
M Cooper Joint Medical Director 45 - 50 195 - 200
E Hobson Chief Operating Officer 135 - 140 -
L Lane Director of Human Resources 85 - 90 -
V Pearce Joint Medical Director 90 - 95 50 - 55
S Tracey Director of Finance & Business Development 125 - 130 -
J Viner Acting Director of Nursing & Patient Care (resigned 30 June 2010) 15 - 20 -
E Wilkinson - Brice Director of Nursing & Patient Care  (appointed 1 July 2010) 80 - 85 -

Pension Benefits
Name and Title Real increase Real increase in

in pension at pension related
age 60 sum at age 60

(bands £2,500) (bands £2,500)
£000 £000

A Pedder Chief Executive 2.5 - 5.0 10.0 - 12.5
M Cooper Joint Medical Director 0.0 - 2.5 5.0 - 7.5 
E Hobson Chief Operating Officer 0.0 - 2.5 5.0 - 7.5 
L Lane Director of Human Resources 0.0 - 2.5 5.0 - 7.5 
V Pearce Joint Medical Director 0.0 - 2.5 0.0 - 2.5 
S Tracey Director of Finance & Business Development 0.0 - 2.5 5.0 - 7.5 
J Viner Acting Director of Nursing & Patient Care  0.0 - 2.5 0.0 - 2.5 

(resigned 30 Jun 2010)
E Wilkinson-Brice Director of Nursing & Patient Care (appointed 1 July 2010) 0.0 - 2.5 2.5 - 5.0 

Salary and Pension entitlements of senior managers

Salary and Pension entitlements of senior managers 
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NHS pension scheme.  They also include any additional
pension benefit accrued to the Member as a result of their
purchasing additional years of pension service in the
scheme at their own cost.  CETVs are calculated within the
guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and
Faculty of Actuaries.
• Real increase in CETV - This reflects the increase in CETV
effectively funded by the employer.  It takes account of
the increase in accrued pension due to inflation,
contributions paid by the employee (including the value of

any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors
for the start and end of the period.
• Cash Equivalent Transfer Values (CETV) are not available
for Members that have reached the normal retirement age
of 60 or who have commenced drawing their pension.  No
CETV is therefore available, as at 31 March 2011, for M
Cooper and V Pearce.

• The benefit in kind for A Pedder relates to the provision of a lease car.
• The remaining benefits in kind relates to the mileage allowance paid
over and above the HM Revenue Customs and Excise allowance. 

Golden hello/ Benefits in kind
compensation for

loss of office
(bands of £5000) (Rounded to the

nearest £100)
£000 £

- 5,800
- 500
- 200
- 6,000
- -
- 7,000
- -
- 200
- -
- 1,100

- 7,000
- 200
- 200
- 700
- -
- 200
- -
- -

Total accrued Total accrued related Cash Equivalent Cash Equivalent Real Increase in
pension at age 60 lump sum at age 60 Transfer Value Transfer Value Cash Equivalent
at 31 March 2011 31 March 2011 at 31 March 2011 at 31 March 2010 Transfer Value at
(bands of £2,500) (bands of £2,500) 31 March 2011

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
75.0 - 77.5 227.5 - 230.0 1,475 1,524 (49)
62.5 - 65.0 187.5 - 190.0 - - -
45.0 - 47.5 135.0 - 137.5 844 879 (35)
7.5 - 10.0 22.5 - 25.0 139 121 18

65.0 - 67.5 200.0 - 202.5 - - -
15.0 - 17.5 50.0 - 52.5 215 240 (25)
20.0 - 22.5 60.0 - 62.5 343 319 6

30.0 - 32.5 92.5 - 95.0 350 397 (35)
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Independent Auditor’s Report to

the Board of Governors of Royal

Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation

Trust on the Annual Quality Report 

We have been engaged by the

Board of Governors of the Royal

Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation

Trust (“the Trust”) to perform an

independent assurance

engagement in respect of the

content of the Royal Devon and

Exeter NHS Foundation Trust’s

Quality Report for the year ended

31 March 2011 (the “Quality

Report”). 

Scope and subject matter 

We read the Quality Report and

considered whether it addresses

the content requirements of the

NHS Foundation Trust Annual

Reporting Manual, and consider the

implications for our report if we

become aware of any material

omissions. 

Respective responsibilities of the

Directors and auditors 

The Directors are responsible for

the content and the preparation of

the Quality Report in accordance

with the criteria set out in the NHS

Foundation Trust Annual Reporting

Manual 2010/11 issued by the

Independent Regulator of NHS

Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”). 

Our responsibility is to form a

conclusion, based on limited

assurance procedures, on whether

anything has come to our attention

that causes us to believe that the

content of the Quality Report is not

in accordance with the NHS

Foundation Trust Annual Reporting

Manual or is inconsistent with the

documents. 

We read the other information

contained in the Quality Report

and considered whether it is

inconsistent with: 

� Board minutes for the 2010/11

financial year and up to the

date of signing the report (the

period);

� Papers relating to quality

reported to the Board over the

period;

� Feedback from commissioners

dated 16 May 2011;

� Feedback from Governors dated

23 May 2011;

� Feedback from LINks dated

20 May 2011;

� The Trust’s complaints report

published under regulation 18 of

the Local Authority, Social

Services and NHS Complaints

(England) Regulations 2009,

dated September 2010;

� Latest national and local

patient survey dated April 2011;

� Latest national and local staff

survey dated March 2010; 

� The Head of Internal Audit’s

annual report over the Trust’s

control environment; and

� CQC quality and risk profiles.

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Board of
Governors of Royal Devon and Exeter NHS
Foundation Trust on the Annual Quality Report 
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We considered the implications for

our report if we became aware of

any apparent misstatements or

material inconsistencies with those

documents (collectively, the

“documents”). Our responsibilities

do not extend to any other

information. 

This report, including the

conclusion, has been prepared

solely for the Board of Governors

of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS

Foundation Trust as a body, to

assist the Board of Governors in

reporting the Royal Devon and

Exeter NHS Foundation Trust’s

quality agenda, performance and

activities. 

We permit the disclosure of this

report within the Annual Report for

the year ended 31 March 2011, to

enable the Council of Governors to

demonstrate they have discharged

their governance responsibilities

by commissioning an independent

assurance report in connection

with the Quality Report. 

To the fullest extent permitted by

law, we do not accept or assume

responsibility to anyone other than

the Board of Governors as a body

and the Royal Devon and Exeter

NHS Foundation Trust for our work

or this report save where terms are

expressly agreed and with our prior

consent in writing. 

Assurance work performed 

We conducted this limited

assurance engagement in

accordance with International

Standard on Assurance

Engagements 3000 (Revised) –

‘Assurance Engagements other

than Audits or Reviews of Historical

Financial Information’ issued by

the International Auditing and

Assurance Standards Board (‘ISAE

3000’). Our limited assurance

procedures included: 

� Making enquiries of

management; 

� Comparing the content

requirements of the NHS

Foundation Trust Annual

Reporting Manual to the

categories reported in the

Quality Report; and 

� Reading the documents. 

A limited assurance engagement is

less in scope than a reasonable

assurance engagement. The

nature, timing and extent of

procedures for gathering sufficient

appropriate evidence are

deliberately limited relative to a

reasonable assurance engagement. 

Limitations 

It is important to read the Quality

Report in the context of the

criteria set out in the NHS

Foundation Trust Annual Reporting

Manual.

Conclusion

Based on the results of our

procedures, nothing has come to

our attention that causes us to

believe that, for the year ended 31

March 2011, the content of the

Quality Report is not in accordance

with the NHS Foundation Trust

Annual Reporting Manual.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants

Plymouth

7 June 2011
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Statement on Quality2

Providing safe, high quality care,

with courtesy and respect is a key

aspiration emerging from the

Board’s work to update and revise

the strategic direction for the

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS

Foundation Trust (RD&E). During

2010/11 we have worked together

with our Council of Governors and

FT Members to build our vision for

the future. 

Quality Accounts provide the

opportunity for the Trust to report

on our future plans for improving

safety, quality and patient

experience and to provide

information about our current

performance and progress towards

achieving the quality improvement

commitments we have made. By

publishing this report the Board is

opening up our approach to quality

for scrutiny debate and reflection

in a manner we hope will be

helpful to our patients and the

public and through feedback and

scrutiny enable the Trust to further

improve the services we offer to

patients across Devon and beyond.

Our guiding principles in delivering

healthcare quality at the Royal

Devon and Exeter are:

� Ensuring  quality is at the centre

of everything we do  

� Striving to consistently meet or

exceed the expectations of our

service users

� Delivering our services with

respect and courtesy to our

patients, their carers and our

staff

� Maintaining the very highest

quality standards and building a

culture where we will not settle

for being good – we want to be

excellent

� Continuously learning and

promoting innovation to ensure

we provide the best care not

only today but in the future

� Acting with honesty and

transparency in everything we do

These principles are turned into

action by the skilled and

committed people who work at the

RD&E. Our approach is to

encourage and empower staff to

strive for excellence in their work.

Through their work we deliver the

high quality experience attested

by our patients in the national

annual patient and cancer patient

surveys published this year. 

Based on the engagement

feedback we have received from

patients, Members and partner

organisations, our Quality Accounts

set out the priorities for quality

improvement agreed by the Board

and Council of Governors that we

will seek to achieve in 2011/12. 

Chief Executive’s statement 
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You will also read about our

progress during 2010/11.

Improving quality and safety is a

continuous process; based on your

feedback, the standards and

priorities we set are stretching and

challenging. 

Success will not just be measured

by achievement of the target but

in year improvement, our patients’

experience of the care we deliver

and the learning on our journey

towards achieving the outcomes

we aspire to. Whilst we have set

new priorities for 2011/12 our

work on the improvement themes

already established will continue

to develop and form part of the

Board’s ongoing review of our

service performance and quality.

The general economic background

within which the NHS and the

wider public sector in which Devon

operates is becoming increasingly

challenging and the RD&E is not

immune from the need to reduce

its costs. A focus on quality and

safety will be vital in the service

redesign and innovation we

introduce as we deliver care to

increasing numbers of patients in

the absence of the additional

resources we have become

accustomed to over the last

decade. 

To meet the challenge we face the

Trust launched its ‘Fit For The

Future’ programme with safety

and maximising benefit for our

patients at its heart; to ensure that

the RD&E is fit in all respects to

serve our community. 

The Board takes pride in the many

examples of the improvements in

quality and safety outlined in this

report like hip fracture care and

early supported discharge for

stroke patients. These achieved

better clinical outcomes for our

patients but also made more

efficient use of the NHS resources

available. 

We are entering an exciting and

challenging time for the Royal

Devon and Exeter and the

communities we serve. There will

be service pressures and changes in

the NHS structure over the next

twelve months. We have a lot of

hard work ahead of us but we are

confident that we have built strong

foundations upon which we can

continue to deliver quality care to

patients and their carers in Devon.

To the best of my knowledge and

belief the information contained in

this document is accurate. Much of

the format and structure of this

document is prescribed by

Monitor’s Annual Reporting

Guidance which incorporates the

requirements of the Health Act

2009 and the NHS Quality Account

Regulations 2010. Nevertheless, I

hope it gives you a helpful insight

into the quality of care we provide

and our commitment to further

enhance quality in the next twelve

months.

Signed

Angela Pedder OBE

Chief Executive



Case Study4

The Trust has worked closely with

NHS Devon on a successful pilot

scheme to help patients recover

from stroke in their own homes

instead of needing to stay in

hospital for treatment. 

Specialist stroke consultant, Dr

Martin James, explains the

benefits this initiative has reaped:

“This scheme provides specialist

nursing care and rehabilitation at

the same level our patients would

have received if they were still in

hospital, but it means that they

can leave hospital much sooner

and receive their therapy in their

own familiar surroundings. This

helps to speed up their recovery

and improves motivation for the

patient and their family. It has

been working well for the first 40

people who have been through the

scheme in its first three months,

with patients and their families

reporting the benefits of

treatment in their own homes. 

We hope to be able to extend the

scheme to a larger area so that

more people with a stroke can

benefit, so we can prove that when

it comes to recovering from the

effects of a stroke, there really is

no place like home.”

Mrs M, aged 81 years, was one of

the first RD&E stroke patients to

receive the early supported

discharge care in her Exmouth

home.  

Mrs M said: “Home is home always

and I feel that being in my own bed

and surrounded by my own things

helped my recovery because it was

more relaxed than being on a busy

hospital ward. When the staff

looking after me said I was ready

to go home and would receive the

same support and attention that I

would have had if I was in hospital

I had absolute confidence in their

judgement. You still feel well

looked after when you leave

hospital.”

Case study 1 – Early Supported Discharge
Scheme for stroke patients 
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The quality improvement

priorities identified in the

2009/10 Quality Account and our

performance against each

priority are listed at Table 2.

2.1 Priorities for improvement:

As part of its duty to involve and

consult members, patients and the

local community, the Trust held

three Members’ Say engagement

events in May and November 2010

and March 2011. Approximately

500 Members attended these

events. The opinions and

information gathered from the

feedback at these events were

used to inform a survey for Trust

Members and staff.  Approximately

850 survey responses were

received in time to contribute to

the discussion of priorities. A

further 800 have been received

and these results will be used by

the Trust to improve its ongoing

and more in depth understanding

of Members’ views and to ensure

these are properly reflected in

Trust decisions.  

In addition a range of other

information sources have been

used to identify the key priorities

for this year. These include:

� Benchmarked national surveys,

local surveys and audits such as

the Nursing Quality Assessment

Tool

� Patient comment cards

� National and regional priorities

� Published reports from the

National Ombudsman, Patient

Association, Care Quality

Commission

� The Trust’s performance

scorecard and quality

dashboard.

Thematic analysis of this

information also contributed to the

development of the Trust Member

and Staff surveys. 

The RD&E Council of Governors

(CoG) was asked to establish a sub-

group to consider all of the themes

emerging from the engagement

activities and identify a shortlist of

quality priorities for this year. The

emerging priorities were chosen on

the basis of the following criteria:

� Relevance across the

organisation 

� Feasibility within the resources

available 

� Likelihood of maximum impact

on the quality of our services 

A long list of potential priorities

gained through the multitude of

sources described above, was then

considered by the Trust Board and

distilled - resulting in the

identified 2011/12 priorities

presented in this year’s Quality

Account.  

The Quality Framework described

by Lord Darzi in 2008, is still a

useful way to look at quality. The

Quality Framework outlines quality

under 3 dimensions:

� Safety

� Clinical Effectiveness

� Patient Experience

When thinking about our priorities

for 2011/12 we have considered

how we can ensure that we

respond to both your feedback,

reflecting what is important to

you, and how we also cover the 3

dimensions of quality. Therefore

our priorities are presented to you

under the headings of Safety,

Effectiveness and Patient

Experience.

Part Two - Statements of assurance from the Board
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1. Development of the dementia

‘This is Me’ passport.

Improving dementia care has been

recognised as a key national and

regional priority and is identified

as a local priority by our

commissioners through the CQUIN

scheme.  This priority results from

identifying the need for securing

consistent, effective and

compassionate care for this group

of our most vulnerable adult

patients. The development of the

‘This is Me’ passport for people

with dementia is planned for

2011/12. This is a document that

accompanies any patient with a

confirmed diagnosis of dementia

outlining their individual needs and

preferences, providing staff with

essential information on how best

we can communicate and keep our

dementia patients safe. This is a

patient held document that should

accompany the patient to any

health and social care

organisation, thus improving the

individualised care that each

organisation can provide. We will

work in partnership with the local

Mental Health Trust to progress this

initiative, drawing on their

expertise in this field of care.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Dementia sub group of the

Trust’s Integrated Safeguarding

Committee will oversee the

development of this initiative and

the progress will be reported by

the Integrated Safeguarding

Committee to the Governance

Committee, and thereby the

Board.

Clinical Effectiveness

1. Nutrition and Hydration – risk

assessment for malnutrition to

be completed on 85% of adult

inpatients within 24 hours of

admission by April 2012.

Good nutrition and hydration is of

critical importance in hospital. We

know that if patients are

adequately hydrated and nourished

they will recover more quickly and

have a better outcome. The

importance of good nutrition was

highlighted in last years quality

account and we have decided to

retain this as a key priority. We are

already making significant

improvement in tackling this basic

human right and fundamental

aspect of care. We want to do

better by striving to get it right for

every patient who visits our

hospital. A cornerstone of this care

is the completion of the nationally

recognised Malnutrition Universal

Scoring Tool (MUST) assessment

score. 

Monitoring and Reporting

Nutritional assessment and

management forms part of our

Trust Ward to Board quality

dashboard – a mechanism for

monitoring ward level information

which reports through the

divisional structure, right up to the

Board. Where individual wards, or

indeed a collection of wards, do

not meet the standard, attention is

focused, support for improvement

provided and teams held to

account.

2. Ward Team Redesign

The importance of the Matron role

is well recognised within the

nursing profession, and by

patients, their families and carers.

Our Matrons have a high clinical

presence and are crucial to the

delivery of the RD&E response to

the challenging national

healthcare agenda. Information

from the Nursing Quality

Assessment Tool (NQAT) and ‘Ward

to Board’ quality dashboard has

provided a framework for the

development of a standard Matron

quality standards checklist.

Safety
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The Director of Nursing with the

Trust’s Lead Nurses is leading a

review of our ward teams to

ensure we have the right people

doing the right things at the right

time. Every member of the ward

team has an important job to do

and we want to ensure everyone is

clear about their roles and

responsibilities. Feedback has told

us patients and their relatives

want the Ward Matron to be

visible, to know they are being

cared for by the right

professionals, in a clean

environment, with high quality

meals.  The standardising of ward

teams project will involve nurses,

allied health professionals and

support services in reviewing the

ward team structure to ensure it

delivers what patients want.

Monitoring and Reporting

This initiative is a component part

of the Trust’s Fit For The Future

programme; an organisational

programme focussed on the

delivery of best care for the best

value. Each project has a defined

project plan with milestones which

are monitored through the

Programme Management Office

and reported to the Strategic

Redesign Board.

1. Customer Care - development

of an organisation-wide

strategy that portrays the

values and behaviours you can

expect when you are a

patient, visitor or carer in our

hospitals.

The Council of Governors proposed

this indicator for progression

through 2011/12. In response to

the Trust Member survey

undertaken in March 2011 to

identify the quality account

priorities. The results showed that

Members felt “being treated with

dignity and respect” was a top

priority, which was also identified

in the staff quality account survey.

This priority fits well with the

Trust’s view that learning from

patient and public feedback will

ensure we focus on the right

things. We know that the attitude

and behaviour of our staff are

critically important in determining

the impression you will have of the

Trust and the experience of our

patients and visitors. We want to

work with you, our patients and

public to develop a strategy that

fosters a partnership approach

based on mutual courtesy and

respect.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Human Resources [HR]

Director will lead this initiative

under the umbrella of

Organisational Development [OD].

This will form part of the wider

HR/OD Strategy and will report

directly to the Board.

2. Easy Read Patient Information
– development of more easy to
read, plain English, accessible
information for those with
reading difficulty.

This is the second indicator chosen

by the Council of Governors in

response to the Southwest learning

disability peer review and results

of the national inpatients survey.

Throughout 2010/11 we have

focussed on improving the clarity

of information provided to patients

and their families on discharge and

it is pleasing to see that this

improvement is reflected in the

2010 National In-patient Survey.

Now we need to look at how we

can improve written information

across the patient pathway and we

will need to engage your help in

doing this.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Trust’s Disability Equality

Action Group [DEAG] will be

commissioned to undertake this

piece of work, reporting to the HR

& Diversity Committee, onward to

the Governance Committee and

through to the Board. 

Patient Experience
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2.2.1 Review of services:

During 2010/11 The Royal Devon

and Exeter NHS FT provided and

/or subcontracted 43 NHS services.

The Royal Devon and Exeter NHS

FT has reviewed all the data

available to them on the quality of

care in these 43 NHS services.

Income generated by the NHS

services reviewed in 2010/11

represents 100% of the total

income generated from the

provision of NHS services by the

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS

Foundation Trust for 2010/11.

2.2.2 AUDIT - Participation in clinical audits:

During 2010/11, 52 national clinical audits and 5 national confidential

enquiries covered NHS services that the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS

Foundation Trust provide.

During 2010/11 the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust

participated in 92% national clinical audits and 100% national confidential

enquiries of the national clinical audits and national confidential

enquiries which it was eligible to participate in.

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Royal

Devon and Exeter Foundation NHS Trust were eligible to participate in

during 2010/11 are listed at Annexe A.

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that the

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust participated in during

20010/11 are listed at Annexe A.

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that the

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust participated in, and for

which data collection was completed during 2010/11, are listed in

Annexe A alongside the number of cases submitted to each audit or

enquiry as a percentage of the number of registered cases required by

the terms of that audit or enquiry.

The reports and recommendations of 7 national clinical audits/national

confidential enquiries were reviewed by the Trust in 2010/11. Annexe B

presents the actions which are being taken by the Royal Devon and

Exeter NHS Foundation Trust to improve the quality of healthcare

provided.

The reports of 39 local clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in

2010/11 and the RD&E intends to take the following actions to improve

the quality of healthcare provided. These are listed at Annexe C.

2.2 Statements of
assurance from the
Board of NHS services
provided;
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The number of patients receiving

NHS services provided or sub-

contracted by the RD&E in

2010/11 that were recruited

during that period to participate

in research approved by a

research ethics committee was

7,200.  This represents an

increase of 28% from 2009/10.

Participation in clinical research

demonstrates RD&E’s commitment

to improving the quality of care we

offer and to making our

contribution to wider health

improvement. Our clinical staff

stay abreast of the latest possible

treatment possibilities and active

participation in research leads to

successful patient outcomes.

The RD&E is the highest recruiting

NHS organisation to clinical trials

in the South West Peninsula. The

RD&E was involved in conducting

508 clinical research studies in a

wide range of specialties during

2010/11. During this period there

were over 200 clinical staff

participating in research approved

by a research ethics committee.

The RD&E hosts the South West

Diabetes Research Network, South

West Stroke Research Network,

Peninsula Comprehensive Research

Network and South West Research

Design Services, thus playing a

significant role in the region for

the National Institute of Health

Research (NIHR).

The RD&E collaborates with the

Peninsula College of Medicine &

Dentistry, hosting the NIHR

Peninsula Clinical Research Facility

for experimental medicine.  A total

of 5900 participants were

recruited into research studies

during 2010/11 at this facility.

Research focuses on understanding

mechanisms of disease (mainly in

diabetes and cardiovascular

patients) and introducing

improvements into patient care.

The high quality of the research at

the Trust is demonstrated by the

level of external grant funding

which is in excess of £1.8 million

each year.

In the last three years, 240

publications have resulted from

our involvement in NIHR research,

which shows our commitment to

transparency and desire to

improve patient outcomes and

experience across the NHS.

2.2.3 Clinical research participation:
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A proportion of Royal Devon and Exeter NHS FT income in 2010/11 was

conditional on achieving quality improvement and innovation goals

agreed between the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS FT and any person or

body they entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement with for

the provision of NHS services, through the Commissioning for Quality and

Innovation payment framework.  Further details of the agreed goals for

2010/11 and for the following 12 month period are available online at:

http://www.monitor-nhsft.gov.uk/sites/all/modules/fckeditor/plugins/

ktbrowser/_openTKFile.php?id=3275

The 2010/11 NHS Operating Framework introduced the potential for

Trusts to earn additional income, conditional upon achieving quality

improvement and innovation goals. NHS Devon, on behalf of all

commissioners, and the Trust agreed a suite of schemes and the Trust

received payment to the value of £3.12 million. (These are provisional

figures and subject to change once the final year end position has been

agreed).

2.2.5 Statements from the CQC:

The Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust is required to register

with the Care Quality Commission and its current registration status is

registered in full without conditions. 

The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against

the Royal Devon and Exeter during 2010/11.

The Royal Devon and Exeter has not participated in any special reviews

or investigations by the CQC during the reporting period 2010/11.

The Royal Devon and Exeter NHSFT

submitted records during 2010/11

to the Secondary Uses service for

inclusion in the Hospital Episode

Statistics which are included in

the latest published data. The

percentage of records in the

published data are:

� Valid NHS number 

1st April 2010 - 31 Jan 2011:

97.5%  for admitted patient

care

99.0%  for out patient care;

and

86.2%  for accident and

emergency care

� Valid General Medical

Practice Code 1st April 2010

- 31 Jan 2011 was:

100% for admitted patient care

100% for out patient care; and

99.3% for accident and

emergency care

2.2.4 Goals agreed with Commissioners: 2.2.4 Goals agreed
with Commissioners:
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Case Study

The Royal Devon and Exeter

NHSFT Information Governance

Assessment Report overall score

for 2010/11 was 65% and was

graded red.

The Trust has recently submitted

its Information Governance Toolkit

assessment.  This consists of 45

requirements where the scores

range from Level 0 to Level 3 (0

being the lowest and 3 the

highest).  Twenty two of the 45

Requirements are known as the

Key Requirements and form the

basis of the Information

Governance Assurance Framework.  

The results provide an overall

score that indicate either

Green/Satisfactory or Red/Not

satisfactory.  In order for the Trust

to achieve an overall

Green/Satisfactory score the Trust

must achieve a Level 2 score across

all 45 Requirements of the Toolkit. 

Monitor currently states that

Foundation Trusts can achieve just

the 22 Key Requirements at a Level

2 score. We have been successful

in achieving this standard. The NHS

Operating Framework requires

organizations to achieve Level 2

against all 45 Requirements. 

Where this is not achieved an

action plan must be in place to

enable the Trust to achieve the

level 2 score within a reasonable

time.  The Trust scored a Level 2

on 42 of the Requirements and a

Level 1 on only 3, below is the

action plan on how the Trust will

achieve the Level 2 requirement.

The Royal Devon and Exeter will

be taking the following actions to

improve data quality:

� Business continuity plans (req

309) – to be completed by May

2011

� Pseudonymisation (req 324) – to

be completed by May 2011

� Completeness and Validity

Checks (req 507) – to be

completed by September 2011

The Royal Devon and Exeter NHS

Foundation Trust was not subject

to the Payment by Results clinical

coding audit during the reporting

period by the Audit Commission. 

Care Closer to Home 

Since the RD&E took on the

management of community

hospital theatres in Exmouth,

Sidmouth, Axminster and Tiverton

in April 2010, there has been a

steady increase in the number of

our patients having their

treatment closer to their homes.

The teams in these daycase units

have the skills and expertise for a

range of procedures including

cataract removal, orthopaedic

surgery for knees, foot and ankles

and diagnostic procedures like

endoscopy.  More recently we have

expanded the portfolio of our

daycase units to include ligament

repairs in Sidmouth hospital, which

has been made possible by

investment in staff training, state

of the art equipment and

leadership of the consultant team. 

For our patients there is the

convenience of receiving modern

healthcare services on their

doorstep in a more familiar local

setting. The expertise in these

units means more of our patients

can receive their treatment and

return home the same day, which

is also easing pressures on the

emergency and specialist acute

theatre services at the main

Wonford hospital site.

Case Study 2
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The Royal Devon & Exeter Foundation Trust was authorised as one of the first ten NHS Foundation Trusts in

England in 2004 and has a history dating back to the founding of the Devon & Exeter Hospital in 1741.  The

Trust provides acute secondary care services and some community services to its catchment population in the

eastern part of Devon as well as some specialist, tertiary services to a wider population.  The majority of the

Trust’s services are delivered at the Wonford Hospital and Heavitree Hospital sites in Exeter, with additional

services delivered at other locations in Exeter, Mid Devon and East Devon and some specialist services delivered

more widely across Devon, Cornwall and parts of Somerset.  The Trust has approximately 800 beds and delivers

310,000 consultant led outpatient attendances and 120,000 day case or inpatient admissions per year, with

additional volumes of diagnostic and community service activities.

The Board cannot rely on an annual account of quality as its sole mechanism for assuring itself about the

quality of services provided within the Trust. Therefore at each monthly Board meeting a broad set of quality

indicators is reviewed and monitored. The table below (figure 1) is reflective of the themes identified through

public engagement and forms one data subset the Board scrutinises on a monthly basis.

Using feedback from our Members, patients, carers and relatives a suite of indicators are presented below. Some

are national mandatory indicators but many reflect what you locally, told us was important to you.

Performance against the national priorities set out in the Department of Health’s Operating Framework is

important to ensure local people can experience care delivered to the standards set nationally. Table 1 sets

out the Trust’s achievement against the Operating framework targets for 2010/11. 

Figure 1
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National Performance Indicators 2010/11 Table 1
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2010/11 Priorities – how did we do?

Part 3: Review of 2010/11 quality performance 

In 2010/11 we set ourselves some ambitious priorities which built on much of the work undertaken and

reflected in the 2009/10 Quality Account. Table 2 below highlights the priorities set last year and our

performance against them. Annex D provides further information on the priorities set last year and our

performance against them.

Priorities identified in the 2009/10 Quality Account
and performance against each priority Table 2
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Part 3: Review of 2010/11 quality performance 

2010/11 Quality Schemes

In addition to the priorities we set last year which featured in our Quality Account, we agreed a number of

CQUIN schemes with our Commissioners. CQUIN stands for ‘Commissioning for Quality  and Innovation’. The

CQUIN payment framework aims to support a cultural shift by embedding quality improvement and innovation

as part of the commissioner – provider relationship. The CQUIN schemes must be locally agreed, ambitious

quality improvement plans that carry with them financial incentive.

Table 3 below shares our progress with the CQUINs set last year. You will see that we have chosen some of those

areas of care to focus on this year. We are committed to continuously improving. 

Table 3
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Part 3: Review of 2010/11 quality performance 

Lord Darzi described Quality as the defining principle of the NHS. This chimes loud and strong within the RD&E.

The Trust is committed to addressing quality improvements under the 3 domains of Quality; Safety,

Effectiveness and Patient Experience.

Patient Safety 

Patient Safety lies at the heart of Trust-wide activity from Board to ward to reduce harm to those in our care.

This work has covered a diverse range of aspects of hospital life including medicines management, critical care,

patient falls, adverse events, patient mortality and infection control. 

1 Infection Control – hand hygiene audits on all wards monthly but weekly if poor compliance for example on

a surgical ward hand hygiene compliance improved from 29% to 90%. There has also been development and roll

out of a Surgical Site Infection Care Bundle which has for example seen an SSI rate reduction for elective

caesarean sections by 11% in 2009 and a further 4% in 2010.

2 Patient falls are not accepted at the RD&E as an inevitable event in hospital. Development and use of an

Intentional Rounding checklist to pre-empt why a patient may attempt to move and risk falling has seen a 19%

reduction for patient falls across 10 medical wards. In January to August 2010 Trust-wide total inpatient slips,

trips and falls were 493, compared with 611 for the same period in 2008.

3 Medicine Management interventions

have included awareness raising and

staff education, new drug charts,

audits and improved patient

information for Warfarin. The INR is the

measurement taken from a blood

sample that represents blood clotting;

therapeutic INR is in the main below 6.
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4 Safer theatres is an initiative tested as a pilot at the RD&E with a focus

on improving patient safety and experience in theatres has generated

worldwide interest and adoption. Frontline theatres staff took part in

development and Trust-wide roll out of The Productive Operating Theatre

(TPOT) programme in the main acute hospital theatres and the four

community hospital theatres which the RD&E has managed since April

2010. This is a comprehensive package of good practice and support to

improve the reliability and safety of patient care, team performance,

staff wellbeing and improve theatres efficiency.  Changes embedded in

theatres include team briefings before and after theatre lists so that the

specific safety needs of the patient are identified and addressed;

introduction of ‘Time Out’ where any theatres staff member can speak

up if they are concerned about any issues which may compromise patient

safety and ‘real time’ operational status boards to co-ordinate staff and

theatres activity.  

5 “Just Ask” progress has been made on empowering patients to have a

say and role in prevention of harm when they come into hospital. Patients

are, for example, informed in a new information film on the RD&E public

website what to expect when they come into surgery and encouraging

them to ‘just ask’ if they have questions or concerns about their care.  
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Clinical Effectiveness

Part 3: Review of 2010/11 quality performance 

1 Pressure Sores the role of the

Tissue Viability Team has shifted

from being a reactive service for

patients with pressure ulcers on

discharge from hospital to pro-

active where 90% of inpatients are

assessed for the risk of pressure

ulcers within 24 hours of

admission. Significant progress

Trust-wide on reducing Trust-wide

pressure ulcers by 53% was

commended when this team

received a Chairman’s Award this

year. This work is now entering a

new phase of activity including a

Your Skin Matters campaign on

wards to achieve a further

reduction. We will also ensure the

improvements made last year are

sustained.

2 Fractured Hips a new initiative

to enhance the care of fractured

femur patients has generated

excellent results. The Trust

invested in two consultant

orthogeriatricians, a staff grade

doctor, full time prescribing

pharmacist, increased

physiotherapy and occupational

therapy services at weekends and

increased nursing at key times.

Crucially two additional evening

trauma lists were also added per

week so that patients would

receive surgery to fix their fracture

sooner. For patients it reduced

their length of hospital stay and

enhanced their recovery. In

2011/12 the project aims to

consider how community care can

be improved for these patients.

The improvement in mortality for

this group of patients simply

translated means approximately 20

additional people survived their

fracture than would have with the

previous system of care.

Consultant Orthogeriatrician Dr

James Mulcahy said: “Our patients

now have a team of professionals

who work together to assess the

patient, and to put together a

package of treatment,

rehabilitation and ongoing health

care so they not only recover from

the fall but they continue to

benefit from care to improve their

bone health and to address any

issues which may have caused the

falls in the first place.  

“Patients with hip fractures now

have their operation much sooner

after arriving in hospital and they

all have a bone health assessment

when they are on the ward, and

bone-strengthening treatments are

started as soon as possible.  Also,

our physiotherapists see people

earlier and more often during their

stay, to help patients get back on

their feet more quickly.” 
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2010/11 Quality Schemes

In March 2010 a 6-month pilot commenced aiming to enhance the care for

patients suffering from a fractured femur, which accounts for around 600

admissions each year, had exciting results:

Quality Indicator Pre-pilot Post pilot

Length of stay 13.9 days 11.6 days*

% patients undergoing surgery 44.5% 71.2%

within 36 hours

Mortality within 28 days of discharge 10.4% 6.8%

Readmissions within 56 days of 2.8 % 1.3 **

discharge

* excludes a period in April / May 2011 where Durbin ward was closed

with norovirus.** May increase slightly (approximately 0.1%) if further

readmissions occur in April / May 2011.

3 Enhanced Recovery early assessment has identified patients

appropriate for the Enhanced Recovery programme which is now well

established in gynae-oncology, major urology and colorectal surgery.

There has been a reduction in the length of hospital stay across these

specialities and patients have fed back that they feel in control of their

care and understand what they can expect every step of the way because

they receive detailed clear information about their role in ensuring the

fastest recovery possible.  The innovative’ Ticket To Go’ approach to

discharge of these patients involves key information needed for patients

to make the appropriate arrangements for leaving hospital and the

support provided afterwards in their home. 
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1 “What Went Well… Even Better

If” patients have been providing

ward staff with a rich source of

valuable feedback which is directly

informing and improving the

quality of care. A key part of ward

team briefings and de-briefings

piloted in elective orthopaedics is

real time patient comment and

suggestions prompted by the

question ‘what went well for you

and what could we do better?’

Action is taken promptly to address

any issues raised and patients are

informed of what happened in

response to them sharing their

experience. This approach sends

out a clear message that we value

what they have to say and we are

not paying lip service to what we

are told. 

Matron of Dyball Ward Debra

Larsen said: “There’s something

very powerful when hearing first

hand from the patient in their own

words what has and has not

worked. For me personally as

matron it gives me a true picture

of the quality of what we are

doing. These comment cards are

not just about nursing care. We

share feedback with other

professional colleagues such as

pharmacists and occupational

therapists. 

This activity is transparent – we do

not edit what is displayed on the

ward board for our patients, staff

and visitors to see. Positive or

negative, it is informing,

motivating and reassuring these

audiences. Patients themselves

often come up with suggestions for

solutions and very often they are

simple and effective.” 
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2 “Right Patient, Right Care,

Right Place” the Trust has

progressed the commitment to

provide patients with the right

care in the right place, by the right

healthcare worker in response to

patient feedback about acute

medical services. 

There has been a redesign of key

points in the patient journey to

improve clinical outcomes, patient

experience and the length of stay. 

Changes include a new way of

admitting emergency medical

patients referred by GPs for

immediate hospital attention. The

creation of the Medical Triage Unit

has seen better standards of care

and patient experience. 

A patient with experience in

planned logistics said: “I was most

impressed with your triage service

given the unplanned and

observational nature which this

system has to cope with it appears

that the procedure that has been

developed admirably copes with

most of what is thrown at it.”

Staff have also been hugely

positive with an emphasis on being

more organised and ensuring the

patient gets to the right place in a

timely manner for their treatment.

Further work is being planned to

ensure this model is developed and

sustainable as part of the Trust-

wide strategy to improve patient

flow and experience. 

3 Humanity and Humility a review

of how we respond to patient

complaints and concerns has

prompted a shift away from a

paper-based process to a more

personal and individual response.

Patients are offered an opportunity

to come and meet someone in

person to discuss the matter. By

establishing this more personalised

approach people have found this

more helpful in gaining answers to

their questions and queries. As a

Trust we have found this an

extremely valuable source of

feedback; and we have created a

learning resource capturing patient

feedback and experience to share

with staff and improve our

customer care. From one of those

meetings where a patient

described nursing care that could

be better a DVD has been made

which will be used to help our staff

to reflect on how their attitudes

and behaviours can both positively

and negatively impact on patient

care. 
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Audit/National Eligible Participated % of required
Confidential  in 2010/11 eligible cases
Enquiry Title 

Audit/National Eligible Participated % of required
Confidential  in 2010/11 eligible cases
Enquiry Title 

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation
Trust participated in and for which data collection was completed during 2010/11 are listed below, alongside
the number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of registered cases
required by the terms of that audit or enquiry. 

PICANet 100% to date, ongoing
ICNARC 100% to date, ongoing
PROMs – Total Hip 87.8% submitted
Replacement to national dataset
PROMS – Knee 82.9% submitted
Replacement to national dataset
PROMS – Varicose Veins 42.3% submitted to

national dataset
PROMS – Groin Hernia 36.9% submitted
Repair to national dataset
CEMACH – Peri-Natal 100%
Deaths
CEMACH – Maternal Deaths 100%
NCEPOD – Surgery in No cases suitable
Children Study for inclusion
NCEPOD – Peri-Operative 100%
Care Study
NCEPOD - Cardiac Arrest 100% to date, ongoing
Study
MINAP Final data submission

May 2011
Heart Failure Audit Final data submission

May 2011
British Cardiac 100% to date, ongoing
Intervention Society Audit
National Sentinel 100% to date, ongoing
Stroke Audit
National Audit of 100% to date, ongoing
Falls and Bone Health
National Comparative 92.5%
Re-Audit of Platelet
Transfusion
National Audit of the 100%
Management of Familial
Hypercholesterolaemia
National Audit of Seizure To commence
Management in Hospitals March 2011
National Audit of Depression 100% to date
Screening and Management
of NHS Staff on Long Term
Sickness Absence by OH
Services – Round 2
RCPCH - The Management 100% to date,
of a Child with Decreased final data submission
Conscious Level November 2011
Re-Audit of the Use of 100%
Group O Rh D Negative
Red Cells
UK Inflammatory Bowel 100% to date, ongoing
Disease Audit 3rd Round
SINAP 100% to date, ongoing

Heavy Menstrual Bleeding Data collection 
from March 2011

NHS Blood & Transplant: 100% to date, ongoing
Potential Donor Audit
NCLA: Lung Cancer 100%
NBOCAP: Bowel Cancer 100%
DAHNO: Head and 100%
Neck Cancer
BTS Emergency Use 100%
of Oxygen
BTS Pleural Procedures 100%
BTS/European Audit COPD 100%
BTS Adult Asthma 100%
BTS Bronchiectasis 100%
BTS Non Invasive Ventilation 100%
BTS – Adult Community 100%
Acquired Pneumonia
National Cardiac 100%
Arrest Audit
NHFD: Hip Fracture 100%
CEM: Vital Signs in Majors 100%
CEM: Paediatric Fever 100%
CEM: Renal Colic 92%
Chronic Pain Audit Not undertaken

this year
NJR – Hip, Knee and 100% to date, ongoing
Ankle Replacements
Neonatal Intensive and 100%
Special Care (NNAP)
VSGBI Vascular Surgery 100% to date, ongoing
Database
Carotid Intervention Audit 100% to date, ongoing
BTS – Paediatric Pneumonia Not undertaken

this year
BTS – Paediatric Asthma Not undertaken

this year
RCPH – National Childhood Begins May 2011
Epilepsy Audit
RCPH – National Paediatric Not undertaken
Diabetes Audit this year
Parkinson’s Disease Audit 100%
Renal Registry: Renal 100% to date, ongoing
Replacement Therapy
National Kidney Care Audit 100%
NHSBT UK Transplant Registry 100% to date, ongoing
NTARN 100% to date, ongoing
National Adult Diabetes Audit 108 paed & 90 adult

records submitted  

✔     ✔

✔     ✔✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔
✔     ✘

✔     ✘

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔
✔     ✔

✔     ✔
✔     ✔
✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔    n/a

✔    n/a

✔    n/a

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔
✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔
✔     ✔
✔     ✔
✔     ✔
✔     ✔
✔     ✔

✔     ✔

✔     ✔
✔     ✔
✔     ✔

✔     ✔
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The reports and recommendations of 7 clinical audits were reviewed by the Trust in 2010/11. Action plans
were drawn up and the following table shows the actions that were identified and are being implemented.

National Diabetes Inpatient Audit � The main areas for improvement were prescription and management errors;
the National Patient Safety Agency (NPSA) would shortly be issuing guidance

� More specialist team involvement
� Education of the nurses on the wards was being carried out
� Examination of the feet to be included in physical examination.

National Sentinel Stroke Audit � Implement an early supported discharge scheme. A pilot scheme with the
(Organisational Audit 2010) PCT had begun in December, however, this only covered 50% of the

geographical catchment area and would be difficult to implement given the
financial restrictions on the PCT. 

� Appoint a Discharge Care Manager for the  Acute Stroke Unit
� Weekend TIA (Transient Ischaemic Attack) access – running a national pilot

project for risk stratification of TIA patients at weekends.  A definite
proposal and plan needed to be formulated. 

� Implement a target for patients with stroke to be scanned within four hours
of admission.

NCEPOD Severely Injured � The Trust is compliant with the Trust organisational recommendations and 
Patient Survey compliant with a high proportion of the clinical recommendations

National Inflammatory Bowel � An expanded IBD nursing team to meet the number of nurses per patient
Disease (IBD) Audit � New Gastroenterology Infusion Clinic

� Joint medical – surgical clinic
� Improved toilet facilities
� Money from Research & Development to increase research capabilities

and give patients more opportunity to participate in clinical trials
� IBD patient panel established
� Rapid access pathway for patients with suspected IBD
� Specialist review for relapse in 5 days
� Direct admission to Okement Ward
� MDT weekly meeting
� Development of IBD dietician post
� Cost-effective and safe use of immunosuppressive and biological drugs
� Development of an IBD database to allow immediate assessment of

patient problems and drug monitoring.

National Audit of Continence Care � Improve summary coding and writing
� Write a policy for the management of incontinence
� Look into the possibility of appointing a band 4 nurse to replace band 5

nurses doing urodynamics.  This will free up the band 5 nurses to carry
out ward assessments

� Strengthen links with the community
� Appoint a band 6 nurse to co-ordinate care across medicine

NCEPOD Acute Kidney Injury Study � Trust overall results were good. Early Warning Score training will be
expanded.

National Audit of Services for � The results showed that the RDEFT has below average waiting times, People
with Rheumatoid average total expenditure, below average biologics expenditure, excellent
Arthritis Audit access to OT, PT, Orthotics & minimal waiting for all diagnostic tests for

patients with rheumatoid arthritis.

Name of National Clinical
Audit Project

Actions
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The reports of 39 clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2010/11. The audits and actions taken to
improve the quality of healthcare are listed below.

Audit of Caesarean Section Wound Infection Rates:
This was a collaborative audit between maternity and
infection control to determine the caesarean section wound
infection rates. 

� The patient information leaflet for elective caesarean section
was improved.
� The timing of administration of prophylactic antibiotics
during caesarean section was changed to prior to knife to skin
instead of after the cord was cut.

Audit of INR>6:
This audit was performed Trustwide after the introduction of
Venousthromboembolism (VTE) risk assessments as directed
by the Department of Health in March 2010. The guidance
stated that ‘All patients should be risk assessed on admission
to hospital. Patients should be reassessed within 24 hours of
admission and whenever the clinical situation changes.’ As a
result of risk assessing every patient the audit was
performed on care of patients with INRs over 6. 

� The recommendations include electronic prescribing which
will be implemented over the next few years.
� Warfarin prescribing and monitoring will form part of the
prescribing system and safe discharge information to GPs plus
patient education.
� Feedback to be received from primary care if discharge
summaries are poor and lacking in detail of latest INR.
� The use of the NPSA yellow books while in hospital especially
new patients, which will form part of their education. This
maintains continuity, promotes patient responsibility and alerts
staff earlier of discharge

Testing for Fabry Disease in hypertrophic cardiomyopathy
patients
This audit demonstrated a need to ensure we were testing
for Fabry in hypertrophic cardiomyopathy cases where we
should have been.

� We agreed new departmental recommendations for testing
and this has resulted in at least one new case of this treatable
metabolic disorder. For each new case identified there is an
opportunity to screen the wider family and detect other cases.

Patient satisfaction survey in Genetics
Feedback was overwhelmingly positive and the following
changes were made in response to comments.

� All staff to ensure a clear follow-up plan to be communicated
to patients, all letters to be sent to patients in a timely fashion
and ensure departmental computer database used to chase
outstanding results for patients in a timely fashion.

The management of patients with temporomandibular
joint dysfunction
All new patients presenting to the department falling into
this category, routinely had a dental panoramic Tomogram
radiograph performed, to aid with assessment.

� The audit showed that taking such a radiograph did not alter
our diagnosis or management of the condition in any way, so this
routine radiograph is now only performed in exceptional
circumstances

Prenatal Referrals Audit
This audit was performed to determine if prenatal referral
guidelines were being met i.e. to telephone patients within
two working days of referral and to offer an appointment
within five working days.

� 90% of prenatal referrals were telephoned within two working
days. 73% of prenatal referrals were offered an appointment
within five working days- main reasons for not offering an
appointment were awaiting further information or an appointment
was not needed. 13% of prenatal referrals declined a genetics
appointment. 60% of prenatal referrals were seen by a Genetic
Counsellor and 40% were seen by a consultant.

Antibiotic Usage
Following a multidisciplinary audit with Microbiology,
Maxillofacial & Oral surgery stopped routinely prescribing
post-operative antibiotics for all dentoalveolar procedures
and most maxillofacial procedures.

� A single dose of antibiotics is now given only if there are any
signs of infection.

Antiplatelet Audit
Maxillofacial & Oral surgery used to stop patients taking
daily low dose Aspirin for 10 days prior to their dentoalveolar
surgery. However following an audit showing the increased
risk of VTE in the group we discontinued this practice.

� These patients can now continue to take their antiplatelets
both pre and post dentoalveolar surgery.
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Warfarin Audit
Maxillofacial & Oral surgery used to routinely alter or
sometimes stop Warfarin prior to surgery so that the
patient’s INR was less or equal to 2.5.

� Following this audit we changed our practice to not changing
Warfarin unless the patient’s INR is above 4.0. This led to a
considerable decrease in the number of cancelled operations and
has also decreased the workload for GPs who were previously
asked to help with the Warfarin adjustments

Audit of Resorbable or Titnanium Plates for the Fixation
of Jaw Osteotomies
The outcome of this audit showed that whilst resorbable
plates have some obvious advantages, they are sometimes
the cause of local complications.

� Use is now restricted to careful case selection.

Audit for the care pathway for canine teeth exposure
A previous audit showed that only 20% of patients requiring
this procedure were treated within 18 weeks.

� Following the audit and a restructure of the care pathway,
50% of patients are now meeting the 18 week target. This was a
multidisciplinary regional audit.

Audit of Documentation of Consent and Assessment of
Patients Fitness during Chemotherapy
This audit demonstrated that consent prior to chemotherapy
was well documented but that record of patient information
given was poor, as was record of pre-chemotherapy fitness
assessment.

� As a result, a new pre-chemotherapy proforma was designed
and implemented.

Audit of Febrile Neutropenia in Breast Cancer Patients
receiving adjuvant chemotherapy with FEC and Taxotere.
This audit of 108 patients treated between Jan 2006 and
July 2009 demonstrated a favourable neutropenia rate in
our group of patients compared to standards reported in the
literature.

� This audit supported the department policy of use of
prophylactic antibiotics and GCSF support, and the policy of
making the cancer department the first port of call for
chemotherapy associated problems.

Audit of Concurrent Chemoradiation and HDR
Brachytherapy in locally advanced Carcinoma of the
Cervix:  RDEFT 2000-2005. Audit conducted 2010
This audit demonstrated that our techniques for
radiotherapy in this area needed to be improved and
resulted in changes in practice.

� Having introduced these changes, further audit is ongoing. As
a result of this audit 3-d EBRT planning introduced. A business
case for the introduction IGBT with dose escalation was written.

Use of Radiotherapy in DCIS for breast cancer
An audit of 215 patients who underwent breast conserving
surgery alone for DCIS of the breast allowed assessment of
a prognostic index without influence of radiation,
hormonal or chemotherapy.

� This audit enabled the development of the prognostic index
to identify patients who would benefit from radiotherapy. This
was published in the World Journey of Surgical Oncology.

Implementation of the NICE Guidelines for Metastatic
Spinal Cord Compression -Audit 2005-2010. This audit
demonstrated the impact made by the introduction of a
Metastatic Spinal Cord Coordinator according to NICE
Guidelines.

� There was an increase in awareness of this condition, an
increase in the number of surgical referrals and as a result an
increase in number of surgical interventions. This has been
presented and accepted for publication. Data collection is
ongoing.

The Use of Trastuzumab beyond progression in Metastatic
Breast Cancer. NICE CG81 Audit RD&E Nov 2010
This audit concluded that prescribing practice should be
reviewed in line with NICE Guidance.

� As a result a group was has been established to recommend
a modification in practice and to unify this across the Peninsula.
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Clinical Genetics – BRCA testing and Manchester score � The recommendations and actions from this audit were for
better documentation of the Manchester score to enable easier
identification in the medical notes, recording the score on
Kintrak computer system and development of a quick scoring
sheet.

Compliance with NICE guidelines for glaucoma patients
Standards met for all areas with exception of gonioscopy.

� The results from this audit was to increase practitioner
training in gonioscopy

Orthoptic appointments
This audit was performed because of problems with the
appointments. 10% of patients did not receive an
appointment in appropriate time frame and patients were
not informed how to rearrange cancelled appointments.

Blood Transfusion National Comparative Audit
This audit demonstrated that O Negative red cells were used
appropriately for O Negative grouped patients.

� The actions taken were to improve appointment booking
system with clinical input and to reword cancellation letters to
advise on rebooking process

Incidence of vitreous loss during cataract surgery
This audit was performed to measure complication rate with
national standards. The results showed that rates compare
well with standards but that complication recording and
reporting had room for improvement.

� The actions taken were to introduce a new method of
recording complications and perform annual audit of
complications.

MYH-gene testing in polyposis families consistent with
autosomal recessive inheritance.
MYH is a newly recognised polyposis syndrome and this
audit was performed to check that all eligible patients were
being offered testing and the results showed that they were

National Care of the Dying Audit
This audit showed that the Liverpool Care Pathway has
been firmly embedded throughout the Trust

� Actions taken were to continue the funding to Hospiscare for
1 day a week LCP facilitator and a renal LCP is being developed

Surgical Site Infection Surveillance of Total Abdominal
Hysterectomy
This audit showed a decrease in post operation infections.

� Actions to further decrease the rate included change of skin
prep, dressing type & keeping patient warm during surgery

Audit of the recording of EWS with VitalPac on the
Gynaecological Ward
This was an audit to evaluate the use of electronic device
‘VitalPac’ used to record and calculate the EWS. The
results showed that compliance was favourable.

� Action taken was to add VTE risk assessment to the VitalPac
package

Audit of the Recording of Early Warning Score on the
Gynaecological Ward
This audit showed that the recording of EWS was not being
fully utilised.

� The action taken was to introduce an electronic device
‘VitalPac’ to record and calculate the EWS.

Audit of Laproscopic Sterilisation � This audit demonstrated that the Patient Information Leaflet
needed to be updated which was completed.
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Gynaecological Ward environment & accessibility audit
This audit was performed to ensure that all patients could
use the ward safely whatever their disability. The results
showed that the ward was compliant with DDA
recommendations. 

� One of the actions taken was for signs giving directions to
different areas of the ward to be put in place for the benefit of
patients and visiting medics.

Audit of colposcopy and the borderline endocervical cells
smear
This audit was performed to ensure adherence to clinical
guidelines.

� As a result of the audit an algorithm was adopted so there is
standardised treatment for women.

Audit of action & alert lines on Labour Partograms
This audit was performed to monitor compliance with the
Care of Women in Labour guidelines.

� As a result a stencil was designed & made to assist midwives
& doctors to draw action and alert lines on partograms.

Audit of Instrumental deliveries
This audit was performed as part of the Maternity CNST
requirements.

� Actions taken were for a proforma for PLATO to be
implemented and the guidelines changed to specify where the
trial of instrumental delivery should take place.

Shoulder dystocia audit
This audit was performed as part of the maternity CNST
requirements.

� Actions taken were that shoulder dystocia is now reported on
weekly and RCOG proformas kept in top drawer in each labour
room for documentation of the timing of manoeuvres.

Perinatal Mental Health Audit
This audit was performed after the introduction of the
Perinatal Mental Health team to look at systems and
processes of referral.

� The Prediction and Detection tool used by community
midwives changed as a result of the audit.

Random Note Review of maternity documentation
This audit was performed to identify the quality of
documentation in the maternity notes.

� Action taken as a result of the audit included the
introduction of the West Midlands Perinatal Institute (WMPI)
Maternity Notes, training on how to use to notes given and
messages of the week put out to inform staff of different areas
of WMPI maternity notes

Audit of External cephalic Version
This audit was performed as part of the maternity CNST
requirements.

� The actions from the audit included writing a scanning
competency package and community midwives taught to
undertake presentation scans.

Emergency caesarean section
This audit was performed as part of the maternity CNST
requirements.

� The actions taken as a result of the audit included the
Patient Information Leaflet updated and Vaginal Birth After
Caesarean guidelines & patient information leaflet updated 

Breast feeding audit
This audit was performed to ensure staff were informing
women about breast feeding prior to 34 weeks. The results
showed they were and the maternity unit achieved Level 2
UNICEF Baby Friendly Initiative.

Audit of vaginal microbiology after LLETZ
This audit was performed to ensure adherence to clinical
guidelines. The results showed that the department was
compliant with the guidelines.  

� Discontinue taking swabs as there were no significant
benefits
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Safety measures reported

Measure 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Data Source Notes

Clinical outcome measures reported

Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio Dr Foster Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio (HMSR*). The
(HSMR)* figures are subject to change as Dr Foster refine the

methodology and also rebase each financial year
(Figures taken from Dr Foster based on the Basket
- Diagnosis HSMR with the Benchmark - Data Year)

Adverse Events (Adverse Events Local System Figures are subject to change as the current data is
per 1000 bed days) to January 2011.
‘Never Events’ that occur within Datix
the Trust
Patients with C.difficile infection National Health Protection Agency MRSA Enhanced

HPA MESS Surveillance System (HPA MESS). Previously this was
reported as a rate but this measure has been
altered to reflect the fact that the Trust is monitored
on number of infections as opposed to rate.

Patients with MRSA (bacteraemia) National 
infection HPA MESS
Hospital slips, trips and falls Datix This priority will not be reported in the 2011/12
(inpatients only) Quality Account as it is now a distinct Trust wide

project plan with a regular reporting mechanism. 

Stroke: % of stroke patients with a LOS Local System
>3 days who spend 90% of their time in
hospital in the Acute Stroke Unit
Stroke: Patients who suffer a stroke & NICE Local System This priority will continue into the 2011/12 Quality
Guidance suggest should have an urgent CT Account report as this is the first year of reporting.
have an urgent CT imaging to receive CT
scan within 30 mins of arrival in hospital
Stroke: Proportion of high risk TIA patients Vital Signs Data has been submitted to the national dataset, we
who are treated within 24hrs await publication of this data
Proportion of those requiring surgery for PAS data This priority will be reported in the 2011/12 Quality 
fracture of the neck of femur who are Account with the standard amended to 36 hours. 
operated on within 48hr (of becoming fit for
surgery)
% of (elective) in-patients who have a pre-
assessment prior to their procedure
% of (elective) day case patients who have a Local data
pre-assessment prior to their procedure
% of (elective) patients admitted and having Local data This priority will not be reported in the 2011/12 as
their procedure the same day it is now a distinct Trust wide project plan with a

regular reporting mechanism. 
% patients given enough privacy when National 
discussing treatment survey
% of patients who felt they were treated National
with dignity/respect throughout their stay survey
% patients who rated care received as very National 
good/excellent survey
% patients who rate their hospital as very National 
cleam Survey
Rate of grade 2 and above pressure ulcers Datix Patient Experience measures
per 1000 bed days

Measure 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Data Source Notes

97.4 95.1 82.7

54.8 51.6 28.4

15 (18) 7 (17) 2 (4)

1547 1567 1471

0 0 1

145 (230) 100 (183) 93 (162)

55.0% 56.0% 66.9%

- - 97.8%

66.1% 77.0% 79.3%

66.0% 76.0% 76.0%

57.0% 72.0% 78.9%

82.2% 83.8% 89.5%

77.0% 74.0% 75.0%

83.0% 84.0% 86.0%

83.0% 85.0% 85.0%

69.0% 74.0% 72.0%

0.49 0.89 0.7

- - -
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Patient Experience measures

Measure 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Data Source Notes

- 99.0% 99.0%

- 97.9% 98.0%

- 97.4% 98.0%

Previous Years National Targets & Regulatory Requirements which will be replaced by those listed at Table 1

Measure 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Data Source Notes

145 (230) 100 (183) 93 (162)

94.3% 96.0% 97.3%

86.0% 85.6% -

99.3% 98.5% 97.8%

91.3% 91.7% 94.7%

96.6% 96.4% 98.0%

98.8% 98.6% 97.9%

95.3% - -

99.0% - -

15 (18) 7 (17) 2 (4)

Previous Years National Targets & Regulatory Requirements which will be replaced by those listed at Table 1

Measure 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Data Source Notes

145 (230) 100 (183) 93 (162)

15 (18) 7 (17) 2 (4)

% of patients felt safe Nursing Quality Assessment Tool (NQAT) is an
assessment of patient experience, observations of
care and a document audit which provides an overall
score on the quality of care.

% of patients who felt cared for NQAT
% patients who would recommend hospital
to relative/friend NQAT

Clostridium difficile year on year reduction National 
( target ) HPA MESS
MRSA - maintaining the annual number of National 
MRSA bloodstream infections at less than HPA MESS
half the 2003/04 level ( target )
Maximum waiting time of 31 days from
decision to treat to start of treatment
extended to cover all cancer treatments
Maximum waiting time of 62 days from all This target was replaced by the 62 day GP urgent
referrals to treatment for all cancers referral and 62 day Consultant Screening Service

targets
Maximum waiting time of two weeks from
urgent GP referral to first outpatient
appointment for all urgent suspect cancer
referrals
18-week maximum wait from point of
referral to treatment (admitted patients)
18-week maximum wait from point of
referral to treatment (non-admitted patients)
Maximum waiting time of 4hrs in A&E from 
arrival to admission, transfer or discharge
Maxiumum waiting time of 31 days from This target was replaced by the 62 day GP urgent
diagnosis to treatment for all cancers referral and 62 day Consultant Screening Service
targets
Maxium waiting time for 62 days from urgent This target was replaced by the 62 day GP urgent 
referral to treatment for all cancers referral target

Key process indicators
Measure 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Data Source Notes
Patients treated for 90% of stay in a Stroke Unit 68% - 69% Sentinal Stroke Audit The Sentinal Audit is undertaken every
2 years
Screened for swallowing disorders with first 24hrs 64% - 91%
Brain scan within 24hrs of stroke 72% - 68%
Commenced asprin by 48hrs after stroke 92% - 92%
Physiotherapy assessment within first 72hrs of admission 96% - 98%
Assessment by Occupational Therapist within 4 days 78% - 98%
Weighed at least once during admission 87% - 90%

Local data
submitted
to National

systems
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COMMENTARY ON THE ROYAL

DEVON & EXETER NHS

FOUNDATION TRUST’S QUALITY

ACCOUNT 2011/12

Devon County Council’s Health

and Adults’ Services Scrutiny

Committee (SC) determined to

comment on the Royal Devon &

Exeter NHS Foundation Trust’s

(RD&E) Quality Account 2011-12.

All references in this

commentary relate to the

reporting period 1 April 2010 to

31 March 2011 and pertain only

to the RD&E’s relationship with

the SC.

The SC believes that the Quality

Account 2011-12 is a fair reflection

of the services provided by the

RD&E and gives a comprehensive

and accurate coverage of the

provider’s services, based on the

knowledge the SC has of RD&E.

Monitor, the independent regulator

for foundation trust, currently

rates the RD&E at the lowest risk

for its governance arrangements

and at a medium risk for finance in

the current climate. The Trust is

currently registered with the Care

Quality Commission (CQC) without

conditions and has not been

subject to any enforcement action

by the CQC. This provides very

powerful external assurance of the

Trust’s quality of services.

The Trust’s Board of Directors set

priorities for improvement

following very appropriate criteria

and the SC was particularly

pleased to learn that the “This is

me” passport will be developed for

dementia patients during 2011-12

as a priority under the domain

patient safety. The SC’s older

people mental health task group

had recommended this measure in

its report published in March 2010.

The Trust has been engaging

regularly with the SC throughout

the reporting period and has been

complying with all reporting

requirements, e.g. provided a

satisfactory response to the

support for carers task group

report in March 2011. However, the

response to the older people

mental health task group report in

November 2010 was somewhat

generic, stating that the Trust

supports all the recommendations

directed at it (recommendations 7,

10, 11, 12, 13, 20) and that it

would continue to work in support

of them. The Committee would

have wished to receive a more

detailed explanation of how the

Trust embarks on implementing the

recommendations and there will

be another opportunity during

2011-12 for the Trust to engage

further on this matter with the SC.

Overall, the SC is content with the

level of the Trust’s public

engagement which demonstrates

that the RD&E values a continued

dialogue and stakeholders’ views

and is committed to partnership

working. For example, the

Committee’s business was largely

occupied by reviewing proposals to

change the care model for three

birthing units in Honiton,

Okehampton and Tiverton.

Following regular presentations to

the committee throughout the

year and great public interest, the

NHS Devon Board of Directors

altered the proposals and the

RD&E was fully cooperative

throughout the process. The Trust

also held an informal briefing with

its Head of Midwifery, the 

Statements from PCT, Local Involvement
networks, Overview and Scrutiny
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Directorate Manager of Child and

Women's Health and a senior

commissioner with the SC’s vice-

chairman who was the lead

member on this matter.

The SC feels that relations with the

RD&E have significantly improved

during this reporting period and

more regular communication is

taking place. For example, the

RD&E’s Chairman and Chief

Executive held a briefing for the

SC’s Chairman and Vice Chairman

on the Transforming Community

Services programme in February

2010 and more recently invited

both to a meet and greet with the

Trust’s Board of Directors.

COMMENTARY PROVIDED BY LINK

DEVON FOR THE ROYAL DEVON

AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION

TRUST QUALITY ACCOUNT

2011/12

LINk Devon welcomes the

opportunity to provide a statement

to the RD&E for their Quality

Account. Our response is based on

both the LINk’s involvement with

the Trust and within the context of

our remit, for promoting and

supporting the involvement of

people in the commissioning,

provision and scrutiny of their local

health and care services.

LINk Devon is encouraged by the

review of the 2010/11

performance, in particular, the

improvements for ‘care closer to

home’ and ‘discharge information’

as these are two areas that LINk

Devon has received comments

about when engaging with the

people across Devon. The LINk is

soon to report their findings in

relation to ‘Leaving Hospital’, a

project undertaken to find out

about people’s experiences of

being discharged from hospital and

the RD&E has provided information

to the LINk on request, for this

project.

The case study featured in this

Account identifies the importance

of patients being able to receive

treatments in community hospitals

nearer to where they live. This is

certainly something patients,

particularly older people without

transport have fed back to the

LINk, regarding outpatients’

appointments and day surgery. The

LINk has heard from those who

would prefer to receive their care

in their local hospital, rather than

having to travel to RD&E, for

reasons such as travel costs,

availability of transport and time

saved if being treated locally.

LINk’s involvement with The Trust’s

Disability Equality Action Group

(DEAG) began as a result of LINk

Devon’s Visually Impaired Persons

(VIP) task group report, which was

produced in response to LINk

Devon being made aware of the

communication and access issues,

within health settings, that affect

people who are blind or have a

visual impairment. The RD&E, LINk

Devon and the Royal National

Institute for Blind People (RNIB)

worked in partnership, forming a

sub group to address the

recommendations that were made

to RD&E within the report. LINk

Devon continues to be involved in

monitoring the implementation of

the special requirements policy

and specialised engagement
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around visual impairment issues

has contributed to improvements

across the service. In particular to

electronic records and flagging of

special requirements and enabling

better communications of need to

other departments such as Choose

and Book and a flourishing of

similar initiatives in other Trusts

which contribute to the quality and

standard of patient care.

LINk Devon feels it should have a

more strategic input into the

RD&E’s Involving People Strategy

Group and would like to resume

work around this to enable greater

capacity for Trust members to

comment on the quality and

standard of care across all

services, not just the RD&E. LINk

Devon could help facilitate Trust

Open Days or conversation cafes

for example, as well as provide

briefings to Trust members about

GP commissioning and LINk’s

transition into HealthWatch, with

a view to inviting feedback from

Trust Members on the

developments of these functions.

An active participant of the LINk

who is also involved with RD&E’s

Carers Action Group made the

following statement “Public

Involvement has been very

meaningful on this group, which

has been involved in the drawing

up of the policy, guidelines and

standards and has devised

monitoring tools to ensure that the

carer experience, whether as a

patient, or a carer of a patient is

as good as it can be. We are

currently working on the

development of identity badges to

ensure visibility for those who wish

it and to facilitate parking which

we are working on to be available

at no cost. Carers have

entitlement to discounts in Oasis

when presenting their Carers Link

or Carers UK badge. The thrust of

the work is to ensure that carers

are recognised at the beginning of

the patient journey and are

encouraged to assist as much as

they want or feel able to, up to

and including discharge.

Information about Carers Services

is made available to them and staff

have templates to enable them to

signpost on. Another current piece

of work is a staff training DVD. It's

a really good example of public

and professionals working together

to improve services for the

betterment of all - there's a real

sense of commitment and

enthusiasm in the group”

LINk Devon will continue to engage

with the RD&E by highlighting to

them any concerns people raise

within the LINk and we intend to

build on the success of the VIP

project through being involved in

future partnership work such as

the focus on improving the

accessibility of information across

the patient pathway and the

monitoring of this with DEAG. LINk

Devon would welcome the

opportunity to be involved with

this or indeed any other

development work where the LINk

network can be influential in the

development of services at the

RD&E in the future.

STATEMENT FOR THE ROYAL

DEVON AND EXETER FOUNDATION

TRUST QUALITY ACCOUNT FROM

NHS DEVON

The Royal Devon and Exeter

Foundation Trust has a reputation

for the delivery of high quality and

safe care for the population it

serves. They strive for continuous

improvement of quality of care and

as lead commissioner NHS Devon

remains committed to working in

partnership with the Trust in

support of their future priorities in

delivering quality improvement. 

The Quality Account for 2010/11

describes their achievements over

the last year and identifies the

Trusts plans to drive forward

national, local and regional
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priorities for quality improvement

in those areas which we know are

important to patients.

The Trust has demonstrated

continuous improvement on the

priorities from last year’s Quality

Account, an example of this is

their indepth programme of audit

which has identified a number of

key issues and the actions that

were taken to ensure improvement

in quality and performance. The

Royal Devon and Exeter Foundation

Trust continue to maintain high

standards of care in infection

control. The national targets for

MRSA and C.Difficile have been

challenging however the Trust has

worked hard to excel beyond these

targets in order that avoidable

infections are virtually eliminated. 

Pressure damage to the skin was

given increased focus by the Trust

last year and this will continue

through 2011/12. This has resulted

in a significant reduction in the

number of grade 2 pressure ulcers

which will have fundamentally

improved the personal experiences

of patients in terms of preventing

unnecessary pain and increased

lengths of stay in hospital. NHS

Devon is supporting further

improvement in this area through

the ‘Commissioning for Quality and

Innovation’ (CQUIN) scheme for

2011/12.

NHS Devon supports the Trust’s

priorities for 2011/12 which are in

line with those of NHS Devon in

improving the patient experience

by providing consistently high

quality care through clinical

excellence. 

NHS Devon would agree with the

progress made on the quality

improvements within the Quality

Account and we support their total

commitment in placing quality and

safety at the centre of care

provision.  The Trust has performed

well overall against the agreed

2010/11 quality schedule however

the Trust and NHS Devon have

agreed that there remain areas

where further improvement can be

achieved. Both organisations will

continue to work together to

ensure these areas are addressed

in 2011/12.

The Quality Account recognises the

importance of joint working

relationships and NHS Devon is very

happy to support the Dementia

work that is planned with Devon

Partnership Trust.  This joint work

will enable staff to more easily

identify the individual needs of one

of our most vulnerable groups of

patients in order that they have a

better healthcare experience.   

NHS Devon will continue to support

quality improvements through the

agreed CQUIN schedule for

2011/12. CQUIN provides

incentives for innovative quality

improvements and the Trust have

focused on areas that will make a

significant impact on improving

patient outcomes, for example

nutrition and hydration as well as

areas relating to medicines

management. The 2011/12 CQUINs

are ambitious this year but both

the Trust and NHS Devon are aware

that these are issues which can

make a significant difference to

patients clinically and in terms of

their individual hospital

experience.

The Trust’s continued commitment

to the delivery of high standards of

quality of care is aligned with and

supported by NHS Devon with

respect to future priorities. It is

imperative that the working

partnership between commissioner

and provider continues in order to

improve the healthcare experience

for patients, their carer’s and their

families. 
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The Council of Governors (COG) is

charged with holding the Trust

Board to account for the

performance of the RDEFT including

ensuring that it does not breach its

terms of authorization. COG needs

to assure itself from the evidence

provided by the Trust that the Board

is providing effective oversight of

the Trust’s performance in

delivering safe, high quality care

and that when necessary, it is taking

the actions required to address any

shortcomings.

During the past year we have made

good progress in determining with

the Board what evidence we

require to enable us to fulfill this

role, especially in relation to

quality issues and the need to

increase the focus on patients’

experience and outcomes of care.

Review of issues identified by

governors in the quality report

for 2009 -10

In last year’s quality report the

governors mentioned privacy

during treatment; mealtime

assistance and discharge

information as areas of care where

they would be watching for

improvements. 

Evidence from sources such as the

latest national inpatient survey

indicate that the Trust achieved

good ratings in nearly all these

areas and scores in this survey for

many aspects of care place the

RDEFT within or close to the top

20% of hospitals in England. There

is still scope for improvement

around written information at

discharge but information relating

to discharge medication was highly

rated. Governors are pleased to

see that pressure sore incidence

has been reduced within the target

agreed with NHS Devon and

implementation of the enhanced

recovery scheme for surgical

patients has progressed.

Governors’ views of the quality

account 2010 - 11

This report provides many

examples of the importance placed

by the Trust on ensuring that it

provides the best possible care at

all times.  Its participation in the

numerous audits which are listed,

is an example of the emphasis

placed on checking standards of

care and identifying areas where

improvements might be required.

The high level of research

participation is another indicator

of staff who are keen to achieve

excellence in their clinical

practice. 

As governors, we particularly

welcomed the introduction of the

Members’ Say events, which

enabled us to meet with a wide

range of members, discuss directly

with them on a range of topics and

ensure that key issues are passed

directly to the Board. Feedback

from these events assisted

governors to identify and agree

with the Trust two key priorities

for 2011 - 12, Customer Care and

Statement from Council of Governors;
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Easy-Read Patient Information,

details of which are included in

this report.  Another example of

responding to local and national

concerns is the plan to develop the

‘This is me’ passport for patients

with dementia. 

Initiatives such as the introduction

of the ‘ward to Board’ reporting

system provides reassurance to

governors that the Board has the

ability to keep a close watch on

the quality of care, and have early

warning of any possibly problems. 

Use of this system has, for

example, allowed the Board to

monitor the improvements in risk

assessment for venous

thromboembolism which is being

given high priority at national

level.

The ‘what went well..... even

better if....’scheme in

Orthopaedics is an example of the

Trust’s desire to listen and respond

to patients’ concerns, whereas the

‘right patient, right care, right

place’ approach being introduced

in acute medicine is producing

benefits for both patients and

staff. 

The proposed major restructuring

of the NHS will undoubtedly have

an impact on the RDEFT and it is

encouraging to already see

evidence of the Trust taking a

proactive approach and using

opportunities to not only change

but improve services for patients.  

Two recent examples are the

introduction of the supported early

discharge scheme for stroke

patients and changes in the

management of patients with

fractured neck of femur, both of

which are already demonstrating

real improvements in patient

outcomes. 

Governors were aware of the

considerable difficulties and

pressures experienced by the Trust

during the recent hard winter, and

understand how this will have had

a negative effect on performance

against some targets. 

The Council of Governors

commend the Trust’s increasingly

strong emphasis on striving for

excellence whilst facing huge

organisational and financial

challenges at local and national

level. 

Jill Gladstone, on behalf of the

Council of Governors

13th May 2011
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The directors are required under

the health Act 2009 and the

National Health Service (Quality

Accounts) regulations 2010 to

prepare for each financial year.

Monitor has issued guidance to NHS

Foundation Trust boards on the

form and content of the quality

reports ( which incorporate the

above legal requirements) and on

the arrangements that foundation

trust boards should put in place to

support data quality for the

preparation of the quality report.

In preparing the quality report,

directors are required to take

steps to satisfy themselves that:

� The content of the quality

report meets the requirements

set out in the NHS Foundation

Trust Annual Reporting Manual

2010 -11; 

� The content of the Quality

report is not inconsistent with

internal and external sources of

information including: 

� Board minutes and papers for

the period April 2010 to June

2011 

� Papers relating to Quality

reported to the Board over the

period April 2010 to June 2011 

� Feedback from the

commissioners date 22/05/2011 

� Feedback from governors dated

18/05/2011 

� Feedback from LINKs dated

20/05/2011 

� The trust’s complaints report

published under regulation 18 of

the Local Authority Social

Services and NHS Complaints

Regulations 2009, dated

29/09/2010 

� The national patient survey

21/04/2011 

� The national staff survey

30/03/2010 

� The Head of Internal Audit’s

annual opinion over the trust’s

control environment dated

27/04/2011 

� CQC quality and risk profile

dated 15/04/2011 

Statement of director’ responsibilities in
respect of quality report
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www.rdehospital.nhs.uk

The Quality report presents a

balanced picture of the NHS

foundation trust’s performance

over the period covered;

The performance information

reported in the Quality report is

reliable and accurate;

There are proper internal controls

over the collection and reporting

of the measures of performance

included in the Quality Report, and

these controls are subject to

review to confirm they are working

effectively in practice;

The data underpinning the

measurers of performance

reported in the Quality Report is

robust and reliable, conforms to

specified data standards and

prescribed definitions, is subject

to appropriate scrutiny and

review; and the Quality Report has

been prepared in accordance with

Monitor’s annual reporting

guidance (which incorporates the

Quality Accounts regulations)

(published at www.monitor-

nhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanu

al) as well as the standards to

support data quality for

preparation of the Quality report

(available at www.monitornhsft.

gov.uk/annualreportingmanual

<http://www.monitornhsft.gov.uk

/annualreportingmanual> ).

The directors confirm to the best

of their knowledge and belief they

have complied with the above

requirements in preparing the

Quality Report.

By order of the Board

6 June 2011

Angela Ballatti

Chairman

6 June 2011

Angela Pedder OBE

Chief Executive
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Signed: 

Angela Pedder - Chief Executive

Date: 25 May 2011

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust

Accounting Officer Memorandum.

make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;

prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply

suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;

state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual have been

followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements; and

The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the Trust and to enable her to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above

mentioned Act. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Trust and hence for taking reasonable

steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Statement of the Chief Executive's responsibilities as the Accounting Officer of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS 

Foundation Trust

The National Health Service Act 2006 ("2006 Act") states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the Royal Devon and

Exeter NHS Foundation Trust ("Trust"). The relevant responsibilities of the Accounting Officer, including their responsibility for the

propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the

NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS Foundation Trusts

(“Monitor”).  

Under the 2006 Act, Monitor has directed the Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on

the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of

the state of affairs of the Trust and of its income and expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the financial

year.

In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual

Reporting Manual and in particular to:
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1.0 Scope of responsibility

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that

supports the achievement of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust‟s policies, aims and

objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally

responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring

that the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically and

that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in

the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

2.0 The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all

risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process

designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of

Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and

the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The

system of internal control has been in place in Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Foundation Trust for the year

ended 31 March 2011 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

3.0 Capacity to handle risk

3.1 Overall responsibility for the management of risk within the Trust rests with the Board of Directors.

Reporting mechanisms are in place to ensure that the Board of Directors receives timely, accurate and

relevant information regarding the management of risks. The Board of Directors risk management

assurance process is supported by two Board sub committees, the Audit Committee and the Governance

Committee. During 2010/11 the Board of Directors commissioned a review of the Trust‟s governance

framework and agreed a development plan that will be implemented during 2011/12.

3.2 The Audit Committee monitors and oversees both internal control issues and the process for risk

management. Audit Southwest (internal audit) and PWC (external auditors) attend all Audit Committee

meetings. The Audit Committee receives all reports of the Internal and External Auditors and reports

regularly to the Board. 

3.3 Risk issues are reported through the Governance Committee and the Trust‟s management structure.

Management and ownership of risk is delegated to the appropriate level from director through to local

management through the divisional management teams. All directorates have Governance Groups which

meet regularly. There are established Governance Coordinators posts to support the directorates in

implementing robust risk and governance processes. Directorates provide quarterly reports to the

Governance Committee and the Governance Committee reports regularly to the Board. Both the Board of

Directors and the Governance Committee receive reports that impact on clinical risk.

3.4 The Board has appointed a Senior Independent Director to be available to Governors and members if

they have concerns which contact through the normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive or Director

of Finance has failed to resolve or for which such contact is inappropriate.

3.5 All staff joining the Trust are required to attend Corporate Induction which covers key elements of risk

management. This is further enhanced at departmental induction. Training courses are run on a regular

basis and provide staff with the skills needed to undertake risk management duties. Staff are trained and

equipped to manage risk in a way appropriate to their authority and duties. Risk management is included

in the Trust‟s mandatory training programme and follow up refresher training; the Trust‟s risk management

policies and procedures are available on the Trust‟s intranet IaN. 

3.6 Senior clinical staff are trained to conduct Root Cause Analysis investigations and the Governance

Support Unit coordinates Root Cause Analysis investigations of adverse incidents and learning points are

made available to all relevant staff. Root Cause Analysis and Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation

(SIRI) reports and action plans are discussed with the Trust‟s lead commissioner - NHS Devon. 

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 2010/11
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4.0 The risk and control framework

4.1 The Board of Directors is responsible for the strategic direction of the Trust. The Board of Directors has

reviewed and approved the Trust Assurance Framework, identifying key risks related to the Trust

strategic objectives and key priorities. The Assurance Framework and the Trust Risk Register are

reviewed quarterly by the Governance Committee and Board of Directors. The Audit Committee uses

the  Assurance framework to set internal audit‟s annual work plan.

4.2 Any gaps in controls or assurance are highlighted and reported to the Board of Directors. Risks to the

Trust‟s strategic objectives that can not be immediately eliminated are placed on the risk register and

action plans put in place to address any gaps. The Board of Directors risk and control framework work is

supported by the Audit Committee and Governance Committee which provide assurance to the Board

on risk and control management issues.

4.3 The Audit Committee is a non executive committee of the Board of Directors and reviews the

establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance across the whole of the

Trust‟s activities that supports the achievement of the Trust‟s objectives. Specifically, the committee

reviews the adequacy of:  

all risk and control related disclosure statements together with the Head of Internal Audit Opinion and

external audit opinion (ISA 260 report) prior to endorsement by the Board;

reviews and approves the annual audit plans; 

reviews the data assurance process underpinning the Trust‟s Quality Account;

the underlying assurance processes that indicate management of risks that may impact the degree to

which achievement of the corporate objectives is secured, together with the effectiveness of the

management of principal risks and the appropriateness of disclosure statements;

the policies and procedures for all work related to fraud and corruption as required by the counter fraud

and  security management service;

the Trust‟s self assessment process for assessing compliance with Care Quality Commission

Regulations  for the period April 2010 to March 2011.  

4.4 The chairs of the Audit Committee and the Governance Committee meet no less than three times per

year to ensure that the agendas of the two committees are aligned and there are no gaps in assurance. 

4.5 The Governance Committee is chaired by a non-executive director and provides leadership to the risk

management process. The Committee takes a comprehensive oversight of the quality and safety of care

provided by the Trust and provides assurance to the Board of Directors. The work of the Governance

Committee is supported by a number of subcommittees that are responsible for monitoring and

managing specific types of risk. The Significant Events Forum is chaired by a consultant clinical lead

and reviews all Root Cause Analysis of adverse incidents, Clinical Audits and Mortality and Morbidity

Reviews. The NPSA Alerts Working Party is chaired by the Medical Director and ensures the timely

implementation of alert notifications.  

4.6 Other specialist committees, led by director or senior clinicians include: 

Medical Devices Groups; 

Medicines Management Groups; 

Medical Gases Group; 

Radiation Protection Group; 

Infection Control Committee;

Clinical Audit and Effectiveness Committee;

Drugs and Therapeutics Committee; 

Integrated Safeguarding Committee;

Patient Safety Steering Group.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 2010/11
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5.0 Risk Identification and evaluation

5.1 The Trust has a risk management strategy which clearly sets out the processes for identifying and

managing risks. It incorporates a standard methodology in which risk is evaluated using a likelihood-

consequence matrix. The roles and responsibilities of staff in managing risk are defined and key posts

highlighted. The strategy also includes the governance reporting structure and the terms of reference of

the Governance Committee and all the committees reporting to the Governance committee.

5.2 The Trust maintains a comprehensive Risk Register covering both clinical and organisational risks.

Individual risks are assigned to an appropriate executive lead and manager who are responsible for

ensuring that the risk is either eliminated or managed appropriately. Specialist staff are employed to

provide support and appropriate training in risk management. 

5.3 The Trust has directorate level risk registers which feed into the Trust Risk Register. At directorate level,

the risk registers contain lower level localised risks that can be managed by the relevant directorate. The

Trust Risk Register contains the higher level risks and Trust wide risks. This ensures that risks are

identified, managed and escalated appropriately at all levels of the organisation. Risk assessments,

including, Health and Safety and Infection Control Audits are undertaken throughout the Trust. All areas

of the hospital have trained Risk Management Officers and the Risk Management Department carries

out checks to ensure that risk assessments are being completed accurately and acted upon.

5.4 Other methods of identifying risks include:

Complaints, Care Quality Commission and Health Service Ombudsman reports and recommendations;

Inquest finding and reports from HM Coroners;

Health and Safety Executive and regulatory body compliance inspections;

Medico-legal claims and litigation reports;

Links and Health Scrutiny Committee reports;

Incident reports and trend analysis;

Internal and external audit reports;

Quarterly Performance Reviews;

Feedback from Governors and members.

5.5 Information governance and data security is managed by Information Governance Steering Group lead

by the Director of Finance and Business Development, the Trust‟s nominated Senior Information Risk

Owner. Information Asset Owners for critical systems have been identified; system risk assessments

and Information Risk Management training is undertaken annually. 

5.6 An Information Security Forum, chaired by the Medical Director as Caldicott Guardian, deals with all

aspects of information security and data confidentiality. Risks to information security are reported directly

to the Information Security Forum and recorded on the Trust‟s Information Risk Register. The Trust has

completed the Information Tool Kit assessment and the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors has

received a report regarding its system for control for information governance. 

5.7 The Trust is red rated on Information Governance as it meets level 2 on all but 3 of the non key

requirements.  For these 3 the Trust has achieved level 1 as at 31 March 2011.  Action plans are in

place to ensure the Trust achieves level 2 during 2011/12 as follows:

·            Business continuity plans – to be completed by May 2011;

·            Pseudonymisation – to be completed by May 2011;

·            Completeness and Validity Checks – to be completed by September 2011;

5.8 Control measures including, impact assessments, are in place to ensure all the Trust‟s obligations under

equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. The Board of Directors receives

assurance the Trust is meeting its obligations, under the Equality Act and the associated Public Sector

Duty, via a detailed Equality & Diversity Report presented by the Director of Human Resources. The

Trust has fully reviewed its delivery in the light of the latest legislative changes and is satisfied it is

complying with requirements. The Single Equality Scheme sets out the Trust's obligations and

commitments for equality and diversity. These are communicated to staff through the Trust intranet and

through equality and diversity training, which has been given to all staff on induction and specialist

updates.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 2010/11

Page 5



5.9 Every year the Trust undertakes a detailed data analysis, covering both employee and service user

equality issues. This provides a further level of assurance that we are delivering on our commitment to

embed equality and diversity in both service delivery and the management of our staff.

5.10 As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in

place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with. This

includes ensuring that deductions from salary, Employer‟s contributions and payments into the Scheme

are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately

updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.

5.11 The Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans are in place in

accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009

weather projects, to ensure that this organisation‟s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the

Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.

6.0 Quality Report

6.1 The Trust is fully registered with the Care Quality Commission and remains compliant with the

requirements of registration. 

6.2 The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts)

Regulations 2010 to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. Monitor has issued guidance to

NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of annual Quality Reports which incorporate the

above legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual . 

6.2 The content of the Trust‟s Quality Account for 2010/11 builds on the 2009/10 report. It has been agreed

by the Board of Directors and incorporates the views and priorities of Governors and the views of

approximately 500 Trust members in setting priorities for improvement in 2011/12. The development of

the report is led by the Director of Nursing and Patient Care. The views of NHS Devon, as lead

commissioner, LINKs Devon and Devon County Council Health Scrutiny Committee have been sought. 

6.3 The Trust uses the same systems and processes to collate, validate, analyse and report on data for the

annual Quality Account as it does for other clinical quality and performance information. The data is

subject to regular review and challenge at speciality, directorate and trust levels. In line with the Trust‟s

commitment to openness and transparency, the data included is not just limited to good performance and

is publicly reported at least on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee undertake a review of the data

assurance underpinning the Quality Account and through this process and the other review of data, the

Board is assured that the Quality Account represents a balanced view. 

6.4 During 2011/12 as part of the three year audit cycle a programme to assure quality systems and data

similar to that in place for our financial systems, will be agreed with our internal l auditors. The Board of

Directors will use the recommendations from this work to further improve the robustness of the process

underpinning the Quality Accounts.

7.0 Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

7.1 The Trust‟s Annual Plan, including financial, performance, quality and governance targets was approved

by the Board of Directors in May 2010. Overall performance is monitored via an integrated performance

report at the monthly meetings of the Board of Directors. This includes trend data on a number of

measures of efficiency and use of resources such as sickness absence and readmission rates.

Operational management and the coordination of Trust services are delivered by the Executive Directors

and Trust Executive, which comprises the executive directors and clinical directors. Performance of

individual clinical and support directorates is monitored informally on a monthly basis and formally on a

quarterly basis via the quarterly review process. 

7.2 The Trust‟s Internal Audit Plan and External Audit Management Letter include commentary on the

economical, effective and efficient use of resources. The findings of internal and external audit are

reported to the Board through the Audit Committee.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11
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7.3 I can confirm that the Trust complies with the cost allocation of and charging requirements set out in HM

Treasury and Office of Public Sector Information guidance.

7.4 Internal Audit have conducted reviews against the Care Quality Commission regulations, records

management, data quality, and information governance. Reviews are conducted using a risk based

approach. In addition they have annual reviews of the Trust’s risk management and governance

arrangements.

8 Review of effectiveness

8.1 As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal

control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the

internal auditors and the executive managers within the NHS Foundation Trust who have responsibility

for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework, and comments made by the

external auditors in their management letter and other reports. I have been advised on the implications of

the results of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Board, the Audit

Committee, Internal Audit, the Divisional Manager of Corporate Affairs and External Audit. The system of

internal control is regularly reviewed and plans to address any identified weaknesses and ensure

continuous improvement are put in place.

8.2 The processes applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of control include:

The maintenance of a view of the overall position with regard to internal control by the Board of Directors

through its routine reporting processes and its work on corporate risk;

Review of the Assurance framework and receipt of Internal and external Audit reports to the Audit

Committee; 

Personal input into the controls and risk management processes from all Executive Directors, Senior

Managers  and clinicians;

The Board’s review of the Trust’s risk and internal control framework is supported by the Annual Head of

Internal Audit opinion which states that significant assurance can be given, that there is a sound system

of internal control and that controls are generally being applied consistently; 

Evidence gathering for core Care Quality Commission regulations and registration;

Self assessment against the Care Quality Commissions Essential Standards for Quality and Safety

(reviewed by internal audit);

Self assessment against Monitor’s Code of Compliance;

CNST level 2 accreditation for its maternity services;

CNST level 1 accreditation for all other services;

Performance monitoring by the Board of Directors of the Trust’s strategy and operational milestones to

achieve internal and external targets; 

Results of the national patient and staff survey results; 

Completion of the health & safety action plan;

The Trust’s compliance with the Hygiene Code; 

The Trust’s unconditional registration with the CQC.  

8.3 I have drawn on the content of the Quality Report attached to this annual report and other performance

information available to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in

their management letter and other reports.

8.4 My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control has been presented and approved by the

Board. The Board and the Audit and Governance Committees have been kept informed of progress

against action plans throughout the year. The assurance framework includes plans to address any gaps

in control or assurance in order to ensure that continuous improvement of the system is in place.

9 Conclusion

There are no significant internal control issues (i.e. issues where the risk could not be effectively

controlled) I wish to report in respect of 2010/11. I am satisfied all internal control issues raised have

been, or are being, addressed by the Trust through appropriate action plans and that implementation of

these plans is monitored. 

Signed: 

Angela Pedder - Chief Executive

Date: 25 May 2011

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11
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·         
give a true and fair view, in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual, of

the state of the NHS Foundation Trust‟s affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of its income and

expenditure and cash flows for the year then ended to 31 March 2011; and

·         
have been properly prepared in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting

Manual.

In our opinion the financial statements:

The maintenance and integrity of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust‟s website is the

responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of

these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have

occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements

may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the

accounting policies are appropriate to the NHS Foundation Trust‟s circumstances and have been

consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by the NHS Foundation Trust; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition,

we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report and Accounts to identify

material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent

material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Council of Governors of the

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraph 24(5) of Schedule 7 of the

National Health Service Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept

or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or

into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS OF THE 

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

We have audited the financial statements of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust for the

year ended 31 March 2011 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of

Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers‟ Equity and

the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is the

NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual issued by the Independent Regulator of NHS

Foundation Trusts (“Monitor”).

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Executive's resposibilities as the Accounting

Officer of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust as set in the the Annual Report, the

Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied

that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial

statements in accordance with the NHS Act 2006, the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts issued by

Monitor and International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to

comply with the Auditing Practices Board‟s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Respective responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and auditors 
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·         the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in

accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual; and

·         
the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements

are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

·         
in our opinion the Statement on Internal Control does not meet the disclosure requirements set out

in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual or is misleading or inconsistent with

information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider, nor have we

considered, whether the Accounting Officer’s Statement on Internal Control addresses all risks and

controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls;

·         we have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the NHS Foundation Trust has made proper

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources; or

·         we have qualified our report on any aspects of the Quality Report. 

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Heather Ancient (Senior Statutory Auditor)

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of

Chapter 5 of Part 2 to the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Audit Code for NHS Foundation

Trusts issued by Monitor.

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Plymouth

3 June 2011

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNORS OF THE

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts 

In our opinion 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Audit Code for NHS Foundation

Trusts requires us to report to you if:
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FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS

These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2011 have been prepared by the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS

Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act

2006 in the form which Monitor has, with the approval of the Treasury, directed.

The Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report and Accounts are presented to

Parliament pursuant to Schedule 7, paragraph 25(4) of National Health Service Act 2006.

Signed: 

Angela Pedder - Chief Executive

Date: 25 May 2011
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2010/11 2009/10

Note £000 £000

(restated)

Income from activities 3 288,333 272,763

Other operating income 4 62,342 62,872

Operating income 350,675 335,635

Operating expenses 5 (338,741) (320,392)

Operating surplus 11,934 15,243

Finance costs

Finance income 11 247 144

Finance expense 12 (1,072) (1,131)

PDC dividends payable 15 (7,048) (7,577)

Net finance costs (7,873) (8,564)

Surplus for the year 4,061 6,679

Other comprehensive income

Revaluation gains / (losses) on property, plant and equipment 15,397 (33,668)

Increase in the donated asset reserve due to receipt of donated 

assets 63 103

Total comprehensive income and expense for the year 19,521 (26,886)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2011

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11
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31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

Note £000 £000 £000

Non-current assets (restated) (restated)

Intangible assets 16 544 716 752

Property, plant and equipment 17 238,779 224,225 253,745

Trade and other receivables 19 966 838 810

Total non-current assets 240,289 225,779 255,307

Current assets

Inventories 18 4,592 4,607 4,691

Trade and other receivables 19 11,009 13,116 13,575

Cash and cash equivalents 25 53,583 41,498 38,359

69,184 59,221 56,625

Non-current assets held for sale 20 - 6,000 6,000

Total current assets 69,184 65,221 62,625

Current liabilities

Trade payables and receipts in advance 21 (21,155) (22,223) (21,877)

Other liabilities 21 (1,520) (2,250) (1,637)

Borrowings 22 (1,270) (1,271) (1,270)

Provisions 23 (1,368) (130) (147)

Tax payables 21 (5,083) (4,048) (3,700)

Total current liabilities (30,396) (29,922) (28,631)

Total assets less current liabilities 279,077 261,078 289,301

Non-current liabilities

Other liabilities 21 (123) (89) (218)

Borrowings 22 (20,213) (21,483) (22,754)

Provisions 23 (346) (296) (270)

Total non-current liabilities (20,682) (21,868) (23,242)

Total assets employed 258,395 239,210 266,059

Financed by taxpayers' equity

Public dividend capital 149,715 149,715 149,319

Revaluation reserve 61,200 50,980 87,053

Donated asset reserve 3,531 3,524 4,488

Income and expenditure reserve 43,949 34,991 25,199

Total taxpayers' equity 258,395 239,210 266,059

The notes on pages 15 to 37 form part of these accounts.

Angela Pedder - Chief Executive

Date: 25 May 2011

The Annual Accounts were formally approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf by: 

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT

31 MARCH 2011
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Public dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve

Donated 

assets 

reserve

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Taxpayers' equity at 1 April 2009 (restated) 149,319 87,053 4,488 25,199 266,059

Surplus for the year - - - 6,679 6,679

Revaluation property, plant and equipment
- (32,960) (708) - (33,668) 

Increase in the donated asset reserve due to receipt of donated assets
- - 103 - 103

Reduction in the donated asset reserve in respect of depreciation, 

impairment, and/or disposal of on donated assets - - (359) - (359) 

Transfers to the income and expenditure account in respect of assets 

disposed of - (4) - 4 -

Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation over historical cost 

depreciation to the income and expenditure reserve - (3,109) - 3,109 -

Public Dividend Capital received 396 - - - 396

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March and 1 April 2010 149,715 50,980 3,524 34,991 239,210

Surplus for the year - - - 4,061 4,061

Revaluation property, plant and equipment - 15,117 280 - 15,397

Impairments property, plant and equipment - (1,171) - 1,171 -

Increase in the donated asset reserve due to receipt of donated assets
- - 63 - 63

Reduction in the donated asset reserve in respect of depreciation, 

impairment, and/or disposal of on donated assets - - (336) - (336) 
-

Transfers to the income and expenditure account in respect of assets 

disposed of - (2,132) - 2,132 -

Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation over historical cost 

depreciation to the income and expenditure reserve - (1,594) - 1,594 -

Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2011 149,715 61,200 3,531 43,949 258,395

Public dividend capital ("PDC")

Revaluation reserve

The reserve reflects movements in the value of purchased property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as set out in the accounting policies.

Donated assets reserve

Income and expenditure reserve

The reserve is the cumulative surplus / (deficit) made by the Trust since its inception. It is held in perpetuity and cannot be released to the Statement of

Comprehensive Income.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

The reserve reflects movements in the value of donated property, plant and equipment and intangibles assets as set out in the  accounting policies.

PDC represents the excess of assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the Trust. It also includes new PDC received to fund capital

expenditure on schemes supported by the Department of Health central capital budgets.  PDC has no fixed capital repayment period.
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Note 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

(restated)

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating surplus 11,934 15,243

Non-cash income and expense

Depreciation and amortisation 10,499 11,918

Impairments 2,806 -

Transfer from the donated asset reserve (336) (359)

Decrease in trade and other receivables 1,695 715

Decrease in inventories 15 84

(Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables (1,088) 1,902

(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities (696) 484

Increase in provisions 1,288 9

Increase in tax liability payable 1,035 348

Other movements in operating cash flows 35 52

Net cash generated from operations 27,187 30,396

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 247 144

Purchase of intangible assets (95) (146)

Sale of intangible assets - 4

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (12,553) (17,567)

Sale of property, plant and equipment 6,081 71

Net cash used in investing activities (6,320) (17,494)

Cash flows from financing activities

PDC received - 396

Loans repaid (1,271) (1,270)

Interest paid (1,072) (1,131)

PDC dividend paid (6,502) (7,861)

Cash flows from other financing activities 63 103

Net cash used in financing activities (8,782) (9,763)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 12,085 3,139

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 41,498 38,359

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 25 53,583 41,498

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2011
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Change of accounting policy

31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

Total assets employed based on prior accounting policy 266,453 246,731 273,437

Decrease in cost of non-current assets (8,087) (7,585) (7,480)

Decrease in non-current liabilities 29 64 102

Total assets employed per revised accounting policy 258,395 239,210 266,059

Total taxpayers' equity based on previous accounting policy 266,453 246,731 273,437

Decrease in income and expenditure reserve (7,883) (7,410) (7,254)

Decrease in donated asset reserve (371) (307) (320)

Increase in revaluation reserve 196 196 196

Total taxpayers' equity per revised accounting policy 258,395 239,210 266,059

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Surplus for the year based on previous accounting policy 3,543 6,835

Increase in equipment expense (1,516) (1,890)

Decrease in depreciation/amortisation expense 2,058 1,788

(24) (54)

Surplus for the year per revised accounting policy 4,061 6,679

1.2 Income recognition 

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Effect of change of accounting policy on total assets employed and taxpayers equity

Effect of change of accounting policy on statement of comprehensive income

Effect of change of accounting policy on cash and cash equivalents

Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs and is measured at the fair

value of the consideration receivable. The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners in respect of

healthcare services. 

Monitor has directed that the financial statements of the Trust shall meet the accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust 

Annual Reporting Manual which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the financial statements have been prepared in

accordance with the 2010/11 NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual issued by Monitor. The accounting policies

contained in that manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), EU endorsed, and HM Treasury's Financial

Reporting Manual to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation trusts. The accounting policies have

been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of non

current assets at their value to the business by reference to their fair value.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the

foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

In 2010/11 the Trust's Board of Directors adopted the higher de minimis threshold of £15,000 with regards to capitalisation of

intangible, property, plant and equipment assets; the previous threshold of £5,000 was adopted in 1993. The Board of Directors

considered that, due to general increases in prices, the previous threshold resulted in items being disclosed to stakeholders that

should be treated as operating expenditure.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Income from the sale of non-current assets is recognised only when all material conditions of sale have been met, and is measured

as the sums due under the sale contract, less the fair value of the asset.

The change in de minimis threshold is considered a change in accounting policy under IAS 8: Accounting policies, changes in

accounting estimate and errors. The Trust is therefore required to apply this change retrospectively. The effect on the Trust's

current and previous statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income are disclosed below.

The change in accounting policy did not alter the cash or cash equivalents position for the Trust. 

Revenue relating to patient care treatments (also known as spells) that are part-completed at the year-end are apportioned across

the financial years on the basis of length of stay at the end of the reporting period. Where income is received for a specific activity

which is to be delivered in the following financial year, that income is deferred. 

Net increase in expenditure for other income and expenditure headings
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.3 Expenditure

1.4 Intangible assets

Recognition

Internally generated intangible assets 

Measurement 

Amortisation and impairment

Software 

Useful life 

(years)

4 - 7

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold

separately from the rest of the Trust‟s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are

recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to,

the Trust and where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is

measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except

where it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Asset category

Software licences

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at fair value. Revaluation gains and losses and impairments are

treated in the same manner as for property, plant and equipment (see note 1.5).

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create,

produce and prepare the asset to the point that it is capable of operating in the manner intended by

management. 

Internally generated goodwill, brands, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised as

intangible assets.

Intangible assets are capitalised when they are capable of being used in the Trust's activities for more than one

year and they have a cost of at least £15,000.

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of

economic or service delivery benefits.

The carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate

the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, e.g. an operating system, is capitalised as part of the

relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware, e.g.

application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. 

Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible assets where expenditure of at least £15,000

is incurred and amortised over the shorter of the term of the licence and their useful lives.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.4 Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.5

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

has an individual cost of at least £15,000;  or 

it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;  

the cost of the item can be measured reliably and;

the items form a group of assets which individually have a cost of more than £250, collectively have a cost of at least

£15,000, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated

to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control;  or

form part of the initial equipping and setting-up costs of a new building or on refurbishment, may also be "grouped" for

capitalisation purposes.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Property, plant and equipment

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Where possible the Trust will disclose the total amount of research and development expenditure charged in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income separately. However, where research and development activity cannot be separated from patient

care activity it cannot be identified and is therefore not separately disclosed.

Other property, plant and equipment assets acquired for use in research and development are amortised over the life of the

associated project.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised. 

the project is technically feasible to the point of completion and will result in an intangible asset for sale or use; 

the Trust intends to complete the asset and sell or use it; 

Expenditure which does not meet the criteria for capitalisation is treated as an operating cost in the year in which it is

incurred.  

Expenditure on development is capitalised only where all of the following can be demonstrated: 

how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefits e.g. the presence of a market

for it or its output, or where it is to be used for internal use, the usefulness of the asset; 

the Trust has the ability to sell or use the asset;

the Trust can measure reliably the expenses attributable to the asset during development.

adequate financial, technical and other resources are available to the Trust to complete the development and sell or use

the asset; and 

it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust; 

it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

Recognition 

Property, plant and equipment are capitalised where: 
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1.

1.5

Useful life 

(years)

17 - 43

33 - 48

5 - 10

5 - 7

3 - 5

5 - 10

Freehold property - buildings

Freehold property - dwellings

Plant and machinery

Equipment - information technology

Equipment - furniture and fittings

Equipment - transport 

Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not depreciated.  

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their remaining useful lives in a

manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. 

Depreciation 

For non-property assets the depreciated historical cost basis has been adopted as a proxy fair value. Non-property

assets acquired up to 31 March 2008 were revalued through an annual uplift by the change in the value of the GDP

deflator. These revalued assets are included in the non-property assets valuation, but further indexation of these assets

has ceased.

Asset category

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement and revaluation

The fair value of land and buildings is determined by valuations carried out by professionally qualified valuers in

accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual. The valuations are

carried out primarily on the basis of depreciated replacement cost for specialised operational property based upon

providing a modern equivalent asset. Existing use value is used for non-specialised operational property. For non-

operational properties, including surplus land, the valuations are carried out at open market value. The frequency of

revaluation is dependent upon changes in the fair value of property assets however, in line with Monitor's view, the

frequency of property asset revaluations will be at least every five years.

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to

acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of

operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are measured subsequently at fair value. 

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Non-property assets

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been brought into operation, such as repairs and

maintenance, is normally charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred. In

situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic

benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of an

item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Useful lives are determined on a case by case basis.  The typical lives for the following assets are:

Additional alternative open market value figures have only been supplied for operational assets scheduled for imminent

closure and subsequent disposal.

Subsequent expenditure 

Property assets

Assets under construction are valued at cost and may subsequently be revalued by professional valuers when brought

into use or when factors indicate that the value of the asset differs materially from its carrying value. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Work in progress comprises goods in intermediate stages of production.    

Provision is made where necessary for obsolete, slowing moving and defective inventories and work in progress.

1.9 Provisions

The Trust provides for legal or constructive obligations that are of uncertain timing or amount at the Statement of

Financial Position date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. The

Trust uses HM Treasury's pension rate of 2.9%, in real terms, as the discount rate for early retirement and injury

benefit provisions.

Government grants are grants from Government bodies other than income from primary care trusts or NHS trusts

for the provision of services. Grants from the Department of Health are accounted for as Government grants as

are grants from the Big Lottery Fund. Where the Government grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken

to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to match that expenditure. Where the grant is used to fund capital

expenditure the grant is held as deferred income and released to operating income over the life of the asset in a

manner consistent with the depreciation charge for that asset.

Donated assets

Government grants 

Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their current value on receipt and this value is credited to the

donated asset reserve. Donated non-current assets are valued and depreciated as described above for

purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations are also taken to the donated asset reserve and, each year,

an amount equal to the depreciation charge on the asset is released from the donated asset reserve to the

Statement of Comprehensive Income. Similarly, any impairment on donated assets charged to the Statement of

Comprehensive Income is matched by a transfer from the donated asset reserve. On sale of donated assets, the

net book value of the donated asset is transferred from the donated asset reserve to the income and expenditure

reserve.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Increases in asset values arising from revaluation are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to

the extent that, they reverse an impairment previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are

recognised in operating income. 

Inventories and work in progress

Property, plant and equipment  (continued)

Impairment 

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes

in circumstances indicate their carrying value may not be recoverable.

Decreases in asset values that are due to a loss of economic benefits or service potential in the asset are charged 

to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the income and

expenditure reserve of an amount to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the

balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment. 

The excess depreciation on revalued assets over the historical cost is released to the income and expenditure

reserve. On disposal of an asset any remaining revaluation reserve balance is released to the income and

expenditure reserve.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of 'other impairments' are treated as revaluation

gains.

Inventories and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined

using a first in, first out method.

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.9 Provisions (continued)

Clinical negligence costs

Non-clinical risk pooling

1.10 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits 

Pension costs

1.11 Value Added Tax

1.12 Contingent liabilities

1.13 Third party assets

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the

accounts since the Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note,

note 30, to the accounts in accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury‟s Financial Reporting Manual.

The Trust has contingent liabilities in respect of NHSLA legal claims arising in the normal course of activities.

Where the transfer of economic benefits in respect of legal claims is possible the Trust discloses the

estimated value as a contingent liability in note 27.

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an

unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed

under the direction of Secretary of State, in England and Wales. It is not possible for the Trust to identify its

share of the underlying scheme liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution

scheme. 

Employers pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the

retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the

operating expenses at the time the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of

payment. 

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and

input tax on purchases is not recoverable. 

Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase

cost of non-current assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated

net of VAT.

The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an annual

contribution, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although the NHSLA is administratively

responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of

clinical negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the Trust is disclosed at note 23. The 

provision relates to the excess payable on each of the Trust's cases administered by the NHSLA.

The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both

are risk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to the NHSLA and in return

receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any

„excesses‟ payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises.

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is

received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the

end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry

forward leave into the following period.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.14 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the Trust‟s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying

assumptions are continually reviewed.  

Accounting judgement - Modern Equivalent Asset valuation

The majority of the Trust's estate is considered to be specialised assets as there is no open market for an acute

hospital. The modern equivalent asset valuation is based on the assumption that any modern equivalent

replacement hospital would be built on the Trust's Wonford site.

1.15 Leases

Operating leases 

Where leases are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to operating expenses on a straight-

line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease rentals and

charged to operating expenses over the life of the lease.

Leases of land and buildings 

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the

classification for each is assessed separately.

1.16 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities

at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS trust. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial

instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. 

A charge, reflecting the forecast cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is paid over as public dividend capital

dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net

assets of the Trust. 

Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for donated

assets and cash held with the Government Banking Service. Average relevant net assets are calculated as a

simple means of opening and closing relevant net assets in the pre-audit version of the accounts.

1.17 Financial instruments and financial liabilities 

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-financial items

(such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust‟s normal purchase, sale or usage

requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of

the goods or services is made. 

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. 

De-recognition 

All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the

Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. 

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement 

Financial assets are categorised as „loans and receivables‟. Financial liabilities are classified as „other financial

liabilities‟.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.17 Financial instruments and financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active

market. They are included in current assets. 

The Trust‟s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables, accrued income and „other

receivables‟. 

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured subsequently at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future

cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

of the financial asset. 

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to the Statement of

Comprehensive Income. 

Other financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured subsequently at

amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future

cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount of the financial liability. 

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the statement of financial position

date, which are classified as non-current liabilities. 

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method and charged to finance

costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment or intangible assets is not capitalised as

part of the cost of those assets. 

Impairment of financial assets 

At the statement of financial position date, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets are impaired. Financial assets are

impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or

more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the asset. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the

asset‟s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset‟s original effective

interest rate. The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the asset is

reduced through the use of a bad debt provision that is determined specifically on individual assets.

1.18 Corporation tax 

The Trust is a Health Service Body within the meaning of s519A of the Income and Corporation Tax Act 1988 and accordingly is

exempt from taxation in respect of income and capital gains within categories covered by this. There is a power for HM

Treasury to dis-apply the exemption in relation to specified activities of an NHS foundation trust (s519A (3) to (8) of the Income

and Corporation Taxes Act 1988). Accordingly, the FT is potentially within the scope of corporation tax in respect of activities

which are not related to, or ancillary to, the provision of healthcare, and where the profits there from exceed £50,000 per

annum.  Until the exemption is dis-applied then the FT has no corporation tax liability. 

1.19 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a

sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value.

1.20 Consolidation of NHS charitable funds

The Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust General Charity. The Charity has not

been consolidated within these annual accounts as HM Treasury has granted a dispensation to the application of IAS 27 in

relation to the consolidation of NHS charitable funds for 2010/11. Further information relating to transactions between the Trust

and the Charity is disclosed in note 28.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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2. Segmental analysis

2.1 Segmental analysis - explanation of the services provided by directorates

Directorates Examples of services provided within each directorate: -

Cancer Services

Critical Care

Diagnostics

Medicine (Specialist and General)

Orthopaedics

Professional Services

Specialist Surgery

Surgery 1

Women and Children's Health

Other Included within the "Other" heading are Facilities and Research and Development directorates and other non-directorate services.  

Child health, clinical genetics, gynaecology, fertility services, Honeylands children centre, maternity, midwifery, neonatology, obstetrics and paediatrics.

Bone bank, fracture clinic, orthopaedic day surgery, orthopaedic inpatient surgery, orthopaedic outpatients, rheumatology day cases, rheumatology outpatients and 

trauma inpatient surgery.

Breast surgery, colorectal surgery, general surgery, surgical outpatients, thoracic and upper gastrointestinal surgery, urology and vascular surgery.

Ophthalmology, oral surgery, orthodontics, orthoptics, otolaryngology and plastic and reconstructive surgery.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11
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Chaplains, chiropody, clinical measurements, Exeter mobility centre, medical equipment management, medical physics, nutrition and dietetics, occupational 

therapy, osteoporosis service, pharmacy, physiotherapy and social services support.

Blood transfusion, cellular pathology, clinical chemistry, computerised tomography scanning, cytopathology, haematology, histopathology, immunology, infection 

control, microbiology, magnetic resonance imaging services, mortuary, pathology and ultrasound.

The Trust's income and activities are for the provision of health and health related services within the United Kingdom. The services provided by the Trust are designated between directorates. Details of the

services provided within each of the Trust's main clinical directorates are included below. The information is a summary of activity by directorate level, similar information is provided to the Trust's Board of Directors

each month.  

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources

and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Trust's Board of Directors.

Dermatology, diabetes, medical outpatients, renal services, tissue viability/special needs, acute medicine, cardiology, elderly care, lymphoedema, neurology, 

neurophysiology, respiratory medicine, stroke and rehabilitation and emergency department.

Clinical haematology, oncology and breast care unit.

Segmental information by assets and liabilities has not been disclosed as this information is not reported to the chief operating decision maker.  

Anaesthetics, day care unit, fracture clinic, intensive therapy unit / high dependency unit, pain services, resuscitation training and theatres.
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2. Segmental analysis (continued)

2.2 Segmental analysis 2010/11

Women and

Cancer Professional Specialist Children's

Services Critical Care Diagnostics Medicine Orthopaedics Services Surgery Surgery 1 Health Other Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Patient income 25,062 9,444 10,116 89,441 35,927 11,091 28,444 30,944 43,653 3,164 287,286

Road traffic accident income - - - - - 16 12 - - 1,017 1,045

Education income 457 1,032 650 3,886 650 230 900 1,129 1,529 3,769 14,232

Research & development Income - - - - - - - - - 13,071 13,071

Commercial income 1,739 465 3,597 2,372 442 2,632 714 409 2,693 19,972 35,035

Total operating income 27,258 10,941 14,363 95,699 37,019 13,969 30,070 32,482 47,875 40,993 350,669 6 350,675

Pay 8,786 20,656 16,605 46,400 12,479 12,001 12,161 11,249 26,773 36,310 203,420

Drugs 7,571 976 3,019 7,187 2,575 2,232 2,389 696 1,061 72 27,778

Clinical supplies 612 5,618 6,948 8,535 6,235 7,993 1,331 787 1,587 607 40,253

Non-clinical supplies 36 401 34 388 188 48 74 55 166 3,043 4,433

Research & development expense - - - - - - - - - 13,009 13,009

Other non-pay 233 1,221 1,072 1,684 262 898 438 164 2,919 27,612 36,503

Depreciation and amortisation* - - - - - - - - - 10,499 10,499

Net recharges between directorates* 10,662 (19,472) (11,510) 32,825 15,336 (7,916) 13,906 18,203 16,233 (68,267) -

Total operating expenditure 27,900 9,400 16,168 97,019 37,075 15,256 30,299 31,154 48,739 22,885 335,895 2,846 338,741

Total operating surplus / (deficit) (642) 1,541 (1,805) (1,320) (56) (1,287) (229) 1,328 (864) 18,108 14,774 (2,840) 11,934

Net loss on disposal of assets - - - - - - - - - (35) (35) (35) -

Impairment (2,806) (2,806) (2,806) -

Interest receivable* - - - - - - - - - 247 247 - 247

Interest payable* - - - - - - - - - (1,071) (1,071) 1 (1,072)

Dividends on public dividend capital* - - - - - - - - - (7,048) (7,048) - (7,048)

Retained surplus / (deficit) for year (642) 1,541 (1,805) (1,320) (56) (1,287) (229) 1,328 (864) 7,395 4,061 - 4,061

Income received from English primary care trusts in 2010/11 totalled £285,694,000 (2009/10 - £284,256,000) and is included in all the segments above.

Explanation for reconciling items between figures reported in the segmental analysis information and the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

* Depreciation and amortisation, interest receivable, interest payable, gains and (losses) on disposal of assets and dividends on public dividend capital are included within recharges between directorates.
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Profits / losses on disposal of non-current assets and impairments are included within income and operating expenditure headings in the accounts but disclosed separately within the segmental analysis.

on the Statement of

Comprehensive Income

see explanation below

Reconciliation to  

figures reported 
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2. Segmental analysis (continued)

2.3 Segmental analysis 2009/10 (restated)

Women and

Cancer Professional Specialist Children's Previously Prior Period

Services Critical Care Diagnostics Medicine Orthopaedics Services Surgery Surgery 1 Health Other Total reported Adjustment Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Patient income 23,404 8,000 14,283 88,778 35,609 12,247 24,068 27,831 38,516 (749) 271,987

Road traffic accident income - - - - - 53 6 - - 717 776

Education income 599 1,141 774 3,818 615 215 1,126 958 1,525 8,672 19,443

Research and development income - - - - - - - 6 - 12,313 12,319

Commercial income 75 575 3,758 1,672 288 2,188 496 430 1,873 19,728 31,083

Total operating income 24,078 9,716 18,815 94,268 36,512 14,703 25,696 29,225 41,914 40,681 335,608 81 (54) 335,635

Pay 6,769 18,336 15,979 42,270 12,536 11,486 11,552 11,571 23,178 35,455 189,132

Drugs 7,707 955 3,140 6,443 2,324 2,473 1,725 764 1,071 49 26,651

Clinical supplies 406 4,698 6,317 7,448 6,004 7,361 1,247 499 1,368 302 35,650

Non-clinical supplies 36 219 39 393 183 48 60 67 142 3,290 4,477

Research & development expense - - - - - - - - - 11,165 11,165

Other non-pay 240 227 1,142 1,767 1,570 885 668 207 2,338 30,270 39,314

Depreciation and amortisation* - - - - - - - - - 13,706 13,706

Net recharges between directorates* 8,159 (14,520) (11,659) 35,663 14,339 (9,556) 12,502 15,965 16,021 (66,914) -

Total operating expenditure 23,317 9,915 14,958 93,984 36,956 12,697 27,754 29,073 44,118 27,323 320,095 195 102 320,392

Total operating surplus / (deficit) 761 (199) 3,857 284 (444) 2,006 (2,058) 152 (2,204) 13,358 15,513 (114) (156) 15,243

Net loss on disposal of assets -                    -                    -                    - - - - - - (114) (114) 114 -                     -                  

Interest receivable* -                    - - - - - - - - 144 144 -                  -                     144              

Interest payable* -                    - - - - - - - - (1,131) (1,131) -                  -                     (1,131)

Dividends on public dividend capital* -                    - - - - - - - - (7,577) (7,577) -                  -                     (7,577)

Retained surplus / (deficit) for year 761 (199) 3,857 284 (444) 2,006 (2,058) 152 (2,204) 4,680 6,835 - (156) 6,679

Income received from English primary care trusts in 2009/10 totalled £284,256,000 (2008/09 - £259,428,000) and is included in all the segments above.

Explanation for reconciling items between figures reported in the segmental analysis information and the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

* Depreciation and amortisation, interest receivable, interest payable, gains and (losses) on disposal of assets and dividends on public dividend capital are included within recharges between directorates.

Prior period adjustment due to change in accounting policy, see note 1.1 for further details.
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Profits / losses on disposal of non-current assets are included within income and operating expenditure headings in the accounts but disclosed separately within the segmental analysis.
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see explanation below
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3. Income from activities

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Elective income 82,655 76,440

Non-elective income 88,073 89,649

Outpatient income 55,993 44,765

Other NHS clinical income 50,663 51,247

A & E income 9,778 9,393

Private patient income 1,142 1,205

Other non-protected clinical income 29 64

288,333 272,763

Income from mandatory services 287,162 271,494

Income from non-mandatory services 1,171 1,269

288,333 272,763

3.1 Income from activities - by source

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

(restated)

NHS foundation trusts 49 37

NHS trusts 47 45

Strategic health authorities - 271

Primary care trusts 285,694 269,830

Department of Health - other - 42

NHS - other 199 447

Non-NHS - private patients 1,142 1,205

Non-NHS - overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 157 110

NHS injury scheme 1,016 712

Non-NHS - other 29 64

288,333 272,763

3.2 Private patient income Base year

2010/11 2009/10 2002/03

£000 £000 £000

Private patient income 1,142 1,205 1,806

Total patient related income 288,333 272,763 145,349

Proportion (as a percentage) 0.4% 0.4% 1.2%

4. Other operating income

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

(restated)

Research and development 13,071 12,319

Education and training 14,231 19,443

Transfers from the donated asset reserve in respect of depreciation, 

impairment and disposal of donated assets 336 359

Non-patient care services to other bodies 25,085 24,230

Profit on disposal of intangible fixed assets - 4

Profit on disposal of plant and equipment 5 139

Other 9,614 6,378

62,342 62,872

Included within "Other income" above is catering income of £2 million, (2009/10 - £2.2 million), car parking income of

£1.3 million (2009/10 - £1.2 million), nursery/creche income of £0.6 million (2009/10 - £0.1 million), staff

accommodation £0.5 million (2009/10 - £0.5 million).

Included within "Non-patient care services to other bodies" are laundry services, transport services, financial services,

payroll services, procurement services, IT services, estates services, pathology services, pharmacy services and drug

sales totalling £14.3 million (2009/10 - £14.2 million).

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11
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Section 44 of the 2006 Act requires that the proportion of private patient income to the total patient related income of

NHS foundation trusts should not exceed its proportion whilst the body was an NHS Trust in 2002/03 or the base year.

NHS Injury Scheme income is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 9.6% to reflect expected rates of collection

based upon historical experience.
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5. Operating expenses

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

(restated)

Services from other NHS foundation trusts 559 1,075

Services from NHS trusts 1,947 1,328

Services from other NHS bodies 4,346 3,389

Employee expenses - executive directors (see note 5.1) 956 927

Employee expenses - non-executive directors (see note 5.1) 177 145

Employee expenses - staff 202,287 188,060

Drug costs 27,777 26,651

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drug costs) 40,253 37,084

Supplies and services - general 4,432 4,477

Establishment 3,409 3,677

Research and development 13,009 11,657

Transport 487 367

Premises 13,862 12,534

Increase / (decrease) in bad debt provision 70 (52)

Depreciation 10,269 11,736

Amortisation of intangible assets 230 182

Impairments 2,806 -                  

Audit fees - statutory audit 91 52

Other auditors' remuneration 14 7

Clinical negligence 4,516 4,355

Losses, ex gratia and special payments 161 151

Loss on disposal of intangible non-current assets 13 -                  

Loss on disposal of plant and equipment 27 195

Peninsula Medical School - medical student placements and other services 102 6,038

Other 6,941 6,357

338,741 320,392

The total employer's pension contributions are disclosed in note 7.1.

5.1 Directors' remuneration and other benefits

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Aggregate directors' remuneration 1,038 971

Employer's contribution to pension scheme 95 101

Total 1,133 1,072

5.2 Other auditors' remuneration

5.3 Auditors' liability

5.4 Operating leases

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Operating lease payments recognised in expenses 1,767 1,623

Future aggregate minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Land and 

buildings Other Total

Land and 

buildings Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

No later than 1 year 515 1,149 1,664 135 898 1,033

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 1,360 2,407 3,767 62 2,577 2,639

Later than 5 years 3,528 1,429 4,957 574 1,747 2,321

5,403 4,985 10,388 771 5,222 5,993
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The Board of Governors appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as external auditors for the financial year ending 31 March 2011. The

engagement letter signed on 24 January 2011, states that the liability of PwC, its members, partners and staff (whether in contract, negligence or

otherwise) shall in no circumstances exceed £1 million in the aggregate in respect of all services (2009/10 - £1 million).

In the year ended 31 March 2011 eight (2010 - eight) directors accrued benefits under defined benefit pension schemes.

Lease expenditure relates to minimum lease payments and is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in a straight line basis over the

term of the lease.

The audit fee for the statutory audit in 2010/11 (including quality accounts for two years) was £91,000 (2009/10 - £52,000) including VAT not

recoverable. This was the fee for an audit in accordance with the Audit Code issued by Monitor in October 2007. In addition to this, payments made

to the auditors for non audit work in 2010/11 amounted to £14,000, excluding VAT, for a CRES review. Non audit fees in 2009/10 were £7,500,

excluding VAT, for an IFRS review.

Impairment charged to operating expenses relates to a reduction in  the expected recoverable amount for two of the Trust's sites arising from a 

change in their usage.

Included within "Other expenditure" above is £1.4 million consultancy costs, which includes £0.9 million relating to consultancy costs of the Peninsula

Procurement Supplies Alliance (PPSA) hosted by the Trust (2009/10 - £1.1 million, includes £0.4 million relating to PPSA), patient travel £1.3 million

(2009/10 - £1.3 million), training courses and conferences £0.9 million (2009/10 - £1 million), property rental £0.5 million (2009/10 £0.4 million).

2010/11 2009/10

The Trust leases various, property, plant and equipment under non-cancellable operating leases. The largest annual lease relates to a lease

arrangement for the supply of electricity with ABB Zantingh Limited.
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6. Highest paid director 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Total amount of emoluments - includes employers NIC and employers pension contribution 222 218

Defined benefit pension scheme - accrued pension at year end 76 73

7. Staff costs and numbers

7.1 Staff costs 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Salaries and wages 169,736 156,930

Social security costs 12,367 11,791

Employer contributions to NHSPA 20,297 19,129

Termination benefits 822 -               

Agency and contract staff 3,857 4,170

207,079 192,020

7.2 Average number of persons employed including directors

Permanent 

employees

Other 

employees

2010/11 

total

2009/10 

total

Number Number Number Number

Medical and dental 592 5 597 551

Administration and estates 1,278 5 1,283 1,235

Healthcare assistants and other support staff 532 -                 532 528

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 1,940 3 1,943 1,831

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 693 -                 693 702

Bank and agency staff -                 195 195 210

Total 5,035 208 5,243 5,057

               

7.3 Staff exit packages

2010/11 2009/10 

Exit package cost Number Number

Less than £10,000 9 -               

£10,000 to £25,000 8 -               

£25,001 to £50,000 12 -               

£100,001 to £150,000 2 -               

Total number 31 -               

2010/11 2009/10 

£000 £000

Total exit package expense 822 -               

8. Pensions

9. Retirements due to ill-health

10. The late payment of commercial debts (Interest) Act 1998

11. Finance income 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Interest on cash and cash equivalents 247 144

12. Finance expense 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Loans from the Foundation Trust Financing Facility 1,065 1,124

Unwinding of discount on provisions 7 7

Total 1,072 1,131

In 2010/11 the Trust did not incur expenditure (2009/10 - £nil) arising from claims made under this legislation.
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During 2010/11 there were 11 (2009/10 - six) early retirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health. The estimated additional

pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £1,089,000 (2009/10 - £307,000). The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by

the NHS Pensions Agency.

All NHS foundation trusts participate in the NHS Pension Scheme. This is a statutory, defined benefit scheme, the regulations of which are laid

down in the NHS Pension Scheme Regulations 1995 (SI 1995 No. 300). The scheme is not designed to be run in such a way that would enable

NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore the schemes is accounted for as if it were a defined

contribution scheme. Employers' pension cost contributions are charged as operating expenses as and when they become due.

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirement are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is due to ill-health. The full

amount of the liability is charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

The NHS pension scheme is subject to a full valuation every four years by the Government Actuary. The latest published valuation relates to the

period 1 April 1999 to 31 March 2004 which was published in December 2007 and is available on the NHS Pensions Agency website. The

notional deficit of the scheme was £3.3 billion as per the last scheme valuation. The conclusion of the valuation was that the scheme continues to

operate on a sound financial basis.

Employer contribution rates are reviewed every four years following the scheme valuation, on advice from the actuary. At the last valuation it was

recommended that employer contribution rates should continue at 14% of pensionable pay. Employees‟ pay contributions are on a tiered scale

from 5% to 8.5% of their pensionable pay.

All exit packages relate to staff that left the employment of the Trust under a Department of Health mutually agreed voluntary scheme. The exit

package expense includes employer's NIC. 
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13. Better Payment Practice Code

2010/11 2010/11 2009/10 2009/10

Number £000 Number £000

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 89,715 109,534 93,983 115,707

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 84,284 101,810 80,105 96,587

Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 93.95% 92.95% 85.23% 83.48%

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 3,101 35,023 2,711 29,084

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 2,612 31,191 1,909 20,534

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 84.23% 89.06% 70.42% 70.60%

14. Losses and special payments 2010/11 2010/11 2009/10 2009/10

Number Value Number Value

£000 £000

Losses 88 119 308 119

Special payments 71 42 66 46
Total losses and special payments 159 161 374 165

15. Public dividend capital

16. Intangible assets Software 

licences 

16.1 Intangible assets at 31 March 2010 £000

(restated)

Fair value at 1 April 2009 1,493

Additions - purchased 146

Disposals (251) 

Fair value at 31 March 2010 1,388

Accumulated amortisation at 1 April 2009 741

Provided during the year 182

Eliminated on disposals (251) 

Accumulated amortisation at 31 March 2010 672

Net book value

Purchased at 31 March 2010 689

Donated at 31 March 2010 27

Total at 31 March 2010 716

16.2 Intangible assets at 31 March 2011

Fair value at 1 April 2010 1,388

Additions - purchased 95

Impairment (24) 

Disposals (62) 

Fair value at 31 March 2011 1,397

Accumulated amortisation at 1 April 2010 672

Provided during the year 230

Eliminated on disposals (49) 

Accumulated amortisation at 31 March 2011 853

Net book value

Purchased at 31 March 2011 531

Donated at 31 March 2011 13

Total at 31 March 2011 544
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The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all valid non-NHS invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods

or a valid invoice, whichever is later. From July 2010 the payment performance criteria was amended to exclude late payments that were due to

supplier error or queries not being resolved by the supplier within the payment term.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by

HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust during the financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the

value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for donated assets and cash held with the Government Banking Service.

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed

regulation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to specific control procedures compared with the

generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way the individual cases are handled. Losses and special

payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good

through insurance cover had NHS trusts not been bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue

expenditure).

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports on an accruals basis with the

exception of provisions for future losses.
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17. Property, plant and equipment

17.1 Property, plant and equipment at the statement of financial position date comprise the following elements:

 Freehold land Freehold 

buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Freehold 

dwellings 

Assets under 

construction 

and payments 

on account

Plant and 

machinery 

Transport 

equipment 

Information 

technology 

Furniture and 

fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2010 33,490 156,904 2,400 13,574 32,887 764 6,910 74 247,003
Additions - purchased -                     683 -                     10,445 757 219 144 -                     12,248

Additions - donated -                     -                     -                     45 18 -                     -                     -                     63
Reclassifications -                     8,105 -                     (12,333) 3,558 113 542 15 -                     
Impairment (710) (1,921) -                     (237) -                     -                     -                     -                     (2,868)
Revaluation -                     9,443 -                     -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     9,443
Disposals -                     -                     -                     (73) (1,306) (108) (1,009) (38) (2,534)
Total at 31 March 2011 32,780 173,214 2,400 11,421 35,914 988 6,587 51 263,355

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2010 -                     -                     -                     -                       18,187 441 4,085 65 22,778

Provided during the year -                     5,990 50 -                       3,133 91 1,002 3 10,269
Revaluation -                     (5,904) (50) -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     (5,954)
Impairment -                     (86) -                     -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     (86)
Eliminated on disposals -                     -                     -                     -                       (1,302) (107) (995) (27) (2,431)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2011 -                     -                     -                     -                       20,018 425 4,092 41 24,576

Purchased at 31 March 2011 32,780 170,316 2,400 11,421 15,303 545 2,486 10 235,261         
Donated at 31 March 2011 -                     2,898 -                     -                       593 18 9 -                     3,518             
Total at 31 March 2011 32,780           173,214         2,400             11,421             15,896           563                2,495             10                  238,779         

17.2 Analysis of property, plant and equipment

Protected assets at 31 March 2011 30,975 164,770 -                     -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     195,745         

Unprotected assets at 31 March 2011 1,805             8,444             2,400             11,421 15,896 563 2,495 10 43,034           

Net book value 32,780           173,214         2,400             11,421             15,896           563                2,495             10                  238,779         

There were no assets held under finance leases, hire purchase contracts or private finance initiative (PFI) at the statement of financial position date.
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The Trust's land, buildings and dwellings have been revalued as at 31 March 2011. The valuation was undertaken by the District Valuer, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and also complies

with HM Treasury's requirements to value land and buildings on the basis of utilising modern equivalent buildings that would give the same service potential as is provided by the actual estate that the Trust owns.  

Protected assets are designated as protected in the Trust's Terms of Authorisation ("ToA"). Condition 9 of the ToA defines property as protected if it is required for the purposes of providing mandatory goods and

services.  Protected assets are limited to land and buildings owned by the Trust, assets such as equipment are not regarded as protected assets.
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

17.3 Property, plant and equipment at the prior year's statement of financial position (restated) date comprised the following elements:

 Freehold land Freehold 

buildings 

excluding 

dwellings

Freehold 

dwellings 

Assets under 

construction 

and payments 

on account

Plant and 

machinery 

Transport 

equipment 

Information 

technology 

Furniture and 

fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2009 38,859 188,399 2,616 9,964 29,340 728 9,137 91 279,134
Additions - purchased -                     211 -                     15,314 251 71 64 (3) 15,908
Additions - donated -                     37 -                     26 44 (4) -                     -                     103
Reclassifications -                     4,021 -                     (11,730) 6,813 163 732 1 -                     
Revaluation (5,369) (35,764) (216) -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     (41,349)
Disposals -                     -                     -                     -                      (3,561) (194) (3,023) (15) (6,793)

Total at 31 March 2010 33,490 156,904 2,400 13,574 32,887 764 6,910 74 247,003

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2009 -                     -                     -                     -                      19,030 551 5,733 75 25,389
Provided during the year -                     7,615 66 -                      2,591 84 1,375 5 11,736
Revaluation -                     (7,615) (66) -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     (7,681)
Eliminated on disposals -                     -                     -                     -                      (3,434) (194) (3,023) (15) (6,666)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2010 -                     -                     -                     -                      18,187 441 4,085 65 22,778

Purchased at 31 March 2010 33,490 154,177 2,400 13,574 13,996 301 2,781 9 220,728
Donated at 31 March 2010 -                     2,727 -                     -                      704 22 44 -                     3,497
Total at 31 March 2010 33,490 156,904 2,400 13,574 14,700 323 2,825 9 224,225

17.4 Analysis of property, plant and equipment

Protected assets at 31 March 2010 31,685 149,969 -                     -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     181,654

Unprotected assets at 31 March 2010 1,805 6,935 2,400 13,574 14,700 323 2,825 9 42,571

Net book value 33,490 156,904 2,400 13,574 14,700 323 2,825 9 224,225

There were no assets held under finance leases, hire purchase contracts or private finance initiative (PFI) at the statement of financial position date.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Protected assets are designated as protected in the Trust's Terms of Authorisation ("ToA"). Condition 9 of the ToA defines property as protected if it is required for the purposes of providing mandatory goods and

services.  Protected assets are limited to land and buildings owned by the Trust, assets such as equipment are not regarded as protected assets.
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18. Inventories

18.1 Inventories held at year end

31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

Materials 4,537 4,588 4,650

Work-in-progress 40 8 23

Finished goods 15 11 18

Total inventories 4,592 4,607 4,691

18.2 Inventories recognised in expenses 2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

Inventories recognised in expense 40,640 39,444

Write-down of inventories recognised in expenses 103 93

Total inventories recognised in expenses 40,743 39,537

19. Trade and other receivables

31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

Current

NHS receivables 7,238 8,496 9,088

Non-NHS receivables 1,256 1,392 1,580

Provision for impaired receivables (27) (25) (91)

Prepayments 1,726 1,476 1,324

Accrued income 714 901 1,060

Other receivables 102 592 614

PDC dividend receivable - 284 -

Total current trade and other receivables 11,009 13,116 13,575

Non-current

Accrued income 966 838 810
Total trade and other receivables 11,975 13,954 14,385

Provision for impairment of receivables

At 1 April 25 91 50

Increase in provision 70 - 65

Unused amounts reversed (68) (52) -

Amounts utilised - (14) (24)

At 31 March 27 25 91

The provision for impairment of receivables relates to specific receivables over 3 months old.

19.1  Analysis of impaired receivables 31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

Ageing of impaired receivables

In three to six months 84 78 193

Over six months 94 177 413

178 255 606

19.2

Up to three months 1,078 1,137 974

20. Non-current assets held for sale

£000

6,000

6,000

Assets sold in year (6,000)
-               

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

Net book value of non-current assets held for sale at 31 March 2011

Net book value of non-current assets held for sale at 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010

All non-current assets held for sale were property assets that were no longer used by the Trust and declared surplus to requirements in

2008/09. The sale of these assets was completed in the 2010/11 financial year.

Ageing of non-impaired receivables past their due date

NBV of non-current assets for sale at 31 March 2010

Property, plant 

and equipment

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Page 32



21. Trade and other payables 

Current trade and other payables

31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

(restated) (restated)

3,053 3,503 3,398

1,782 2,024 3,580

2,771 2,460 3,627

2,656 2,568 2,417

10,631 11,668 8,855

262 - -

21,155 22,223 21,877

Other liabilities 1,520 2,250 1,637

5,083 4,048 3,700

27,758 28,521 27,214

Other liabilities 123 89 218

Total trade and other payables 27,881 28,610 27,432

22. Borrowings

Current 31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility 1,270 1,271 1,270

Loans from Foundation Trust Financing Facility 20,213 21,483 22,754

Total borrowings 21,483 22,754 24,024

Amounts falling due within: -

In one year or less by instalments 1,270 1,271 1,270

Between one and five years by instalments 5,082 5,082 5,081

Over five years by instalments 15,131 16,401 17,673
21,483 22,754 24,024

23. Provisions

Early 

retirements

Legal 

claims

Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 2009 124 129 164 417

Arising during the year 12 63 43 118

Utilised during the year (11) (53) (24) (88)

Reversed unused - (28) - (28)

Unwinding of discount 3                - 4 7
At 31 March 2010 128 111 187 426

At 1 April 2010 128 111 187 426

Change in discount rate (6) - (21) (27)

Arising during the year 2 141 1,273 1,416

Utilised during the year (11) (31) (14) (56)

Reversed unused - (52) - (52)

Unwinding of discount 3                -               4 7
At 31 March 2011 116 169 1,429 1,714

Expected timing of cash flows: 31 March 2011 31 March 2010 1 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

In one year or less 1,368 130 147

Between one and five years 90 75 68

Over five years 256 221 202
1,714 426 417

Contingent liabilities relating to legal claims are shown in note 27.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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NHS payables

Other trade payables

PDC dividend payable

Accruals 

Non-current trade and other payables

The "Other" category relates to injury benefit claims against the Trust and a provision to teminate a contract.  

The NHS Litigation Authority is carrying provisions as at 31 March 2011 in relation to Existing Liabilities Scheme and in relation to Clinical

Negligence Scheme on behalf of the Trust of £24,354,000 (2010 - £23,744,000).

Legal claims relate to employee and public liability claims.

Trade payables - capital

Taxes payable

Other payables

The first loan of £17 million, was entered into in the year ended 31 March 2006. It is a repayable over a 20 year period, ending 30 March

2026, by equal quarterly instalments.  The interest rate of the loan is fixed at 4.55% per annum. 

The second loan of £10 million, was entered into in the year ended 31 March 2007, and is repayable over a 25 year period, ending 30

March 2032, by equal quarterly instalments.  The interest rate of the loan is fixed at 5.05% per annum. 

Two loans are repayable to the Secretary of State for Health.

Non-current
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24. Prudential Borrowing Limit

31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

Total long term borrowing limit set by Monitor 65,300 70,000 70,800

Working capital facility agreed by Monitor 18,000 18,000 18,000

Total Prudential Borrowing Limit 83,300 88,000 88,800

Long term borrowing at beginning of year 22,754 24,024 25,294

Repayment in year (1,271) (1,270) (1,270)

Long term borrowing at the end of year 21,483 22,754 24,024

Financial ratios  2010/11 2010/11 2009/10 2009/10

Actual Minimum Actual Minimum

ratios PBL ratios PBL

(restated)

Dividend cover 3.3x >1x 3.6x >1x

Interest cover 22.2x >3x 25.0x >3x

Debt service cover 10.6x >2x 11.8x >2x

Debt service to revenue 0.7% <2.5% 0.7% <3%

25. Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

At 1 April 41,498 38,359 31,598

Net change in the year 12,085 3,139 6,761

At 31 March 53,583 41,498 38,359

Broken down into:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand 26 38 1,549

Cash with Government Banking Service 53,557 41,460 36,810

Cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP and Cash Flow Statement 53,583 41,498 38,359

26. Capital commitments

27. Contingent liabilities

31 March 2011 31 March 2010 01 April 2009

£000 £000 £000

Contingent NHSLA legal claims. - 3 67

28. Related party transactions

Directors' remuneration and other benefits are disclosed within the operating expenditure, note 5.1.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

The Trust is under the common control of the Board of Directors. During the year board members held positions or had interests in the University of Exeter

and Viridor.

Commitments under capital expenditure contracts, which relate to property, plant and equipment, at the balance sheet date were £2,315,500 (2010 - 

£4,470,100).

The Trust is required to comply and remain within a prudential borrowing limit. 

The approved working capital facility was unused during the year.  

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution with a short term maturity period of three months or less from

the date of the acquisition of the investment.

The maximum cumulative amount of long-term borrowing.  This is set by reference to the four ratio tests set out in Monitor's Prudential Borrowing Code.  

The Trust is a public benefit corporation established under the NHS Act 2006. Monitor, the Regulator of NHS foundation trusts has the power to control the

Trust within the meaning of IAS 27 'Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements' and therefore can be considered as the Trust's parent. Monitor does not

prepare group accounts but does prepare separate NHS Foundation Trust Consolidated Accounts. The NHS Foundation Trust Consolidated Accounts are then

included within the Whole of Government Accounts. Monitor is accountable to the Secretary of State for Health. The Trust's ultimate parent is therefore HM

Government.
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28. Related party transactions (continued)

2010/11 2009/10

£000 £000

NHS Devon income from services provided 258,964 255,813

Department of Health income from services provided 10,560 11,684

269,524 267,497

Percentage of total income 77% 80%

NHS Pension scheme - Employers contributions 20,321 17,783

NHS Logistics Authority 8,442 7,690

31 March 2011 31 March 2010

£000 £000

Amounts owed by related parties: -

NHS Devon 678 2,018

Department of Health 10 319

Amounts owed to related parties: -

NHS Pension scheme 2,552 2,463

NHS Logistics Authority - -

29. Financial instruments

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market risk

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

The Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee of the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust General

Charity ("Charity"). The Trust has received during the year £57,000 (2009/10 - £55,000) revenue income and £63,000 (2009/10 - £179,000)

capital contributions from the Charity.  At 31 March 2011 the Trust was due £7,000 (2010 - £56,000) from the Charity .

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to both a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument in another

entity. IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in

creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking its activities. The financial assets and liabilities of the Trust are generated by

day to day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities.

Credit risk arises when the Trust is exposed to the risk that a party is unable to meet its obligation to the Trust in respect of financial assets

due. 

Income received from related parties: -

Income from contracted activities with primary care trusts is based upon a nationally set tariff, which under Payment by Results is paid to the

Trust in twelve monthly instalments throughout the year; any performance in excess of agreed targets is paid in accordance with the terms of

the relevant contract. Payment by instalments allows the Trust to accurately forecast cash inflows and through the preparation and review of

cash flow forecasts, as well as the controls in place governing the authorisation of expenditure, ensures that the Trust maintains sufficient

funds to meet obligations as they fall due.

To alleviate the risk of any cash shortfall resulting from the timing of revenue or capital receipts and payments, the Trust has in place a £18

million working capital facility with a commercial bank, in accordance with the Trust's Terms of Authorisation. The Trust has not drawn down

this facility.

Market risk arises when the Trust is exposed to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because

of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

During the year the Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with the

Department of Health ("DoH") , and with other entities for which the DoH is regarded as the parent of those entities. Income from activity -

by source (note 3.1) and the operating expense (note 5) provides details of revenue transactions with those entities. Below are considered

to be the significant material transactions.

Financial assets mainly comprise monies due from primary care trusts for services rendered by the Trust in fulfilment of service agreements,

and cash balances held on deposit. It is considered that financial assets due from primary care trusts pose low credit risk as these entities

are funded by HM Government. 

A significant proportion of the Trust's cash balances are held on deposit with the Government Banking Service, and as such the credit risk

on these balances is considered to be negligible. Cash balances are regularly transferred to a commercial bank, from deposit with the

Government Banking Service, in order to make payments. Whilst lodged with the commercial bank said deposits pose a credit risk if the

commercial bank were to become insolvent during the period from receipt of monies to subsequent payment of suppliers. However as

payments are structured to minimise the period of credit risk exposure, the Trust considers that it has reduced the credit risk to an

acceptable level.

Liquidity risk arises if the Trust is unable to meet its obligations arising from financial liabilities. The Trust's financial liabilities mainly arise

from net operating costs, which are mainly incurred under legally binding annual service agreements with local primary care trusts, and

liabilities incurred through expenditure on capital projects. Other liquidity risks are loans repayable to the Foundation Trust Financing

Facility.

Expenditure incurred with related parties: -
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

Currency risk

29.1 Financial assets by category

Loans and 

receivables

£000

NHS receivables 9,088

Accrued income 1,870

Other receivables 1,790

Cash at bank and in hand 38,359

Total at 1 April 2009 51,107

NHS receivables 8,496

Accrued income 1,739

Other receivables 1,571

Cash at bank and in hand 41,498

Total at 31 March 2010 53,304

NHS receivables 7,238

Accrued income 1,680

Other receivables 1,331

Cash at bank and in hand 53,583

Total at 31 March 2011 63,832

An analysis of any impairment of receivables is provided in note 19.1.

29.2 Financial liabilities by category

Other 

financial 

liabilities

£000 

Borrowings 24,024

NHS payables 3,398

Other payables 6,044

Accruals 8,855

Capital payables 3,580

Provisions under contracts 417

Total at 1 April 2009 46,318

Borrowings 22,754

NHS payables 3,503

Other payables 5,028

Accruals 11,668

Capital payables 2,024

Provisions under contracts 426

Total at 31 March 2010 45,403

Borrowings 21,483

NHS payables 3,053

Other payables 5,427

Accruals 10,631

Capital payables 1,782

Provisions under contracts 1,714

Total at 31 March 2011 44,090

29.3 Fair value

30. Third party assets

Interest rate risk

Other price risk 

The Trust does not enter into contracts where cash flows are determined by the use of a variable interest rate.

For all of the financial assets and liabilities at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010 the fair value is equal to book value.

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Trust enters into legally binding contracts with both its customers and suppliers that stipulate the price to be paid. As such it does

not consider itself exposed to material other price risk.

The Trust receives income denominated in sterling. The Trust, on occasion, does enter in agreements to make payments in non-

sterling denominated currencies. Non-sterling payments are principally short term liabilities and for non-significant amounts. Given this

the Trust does not consider that it is exposed to any material currency risk and therefore has elected not to hedge its exposure.

The Trust held £nil cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2011 (2010 - £nil) relating to monies held on behalf of patients.  

Page 36



31.

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures

IAS 24 (Revised) - Related Party Disclosures

IFRIC 19 - Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments

Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) changes

Treatment of grants received

Donated assets

Other changes

Accounting standards that have been early-adopted by the FT

No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early-adopted in 2010/11.

This new standard seeks to reduce the extent of disclosures required by government entities whose transactions are principally with

other government entities. It is due for adoption in 2011/12. This may potentially relieve the FT from providing some of its related party

disclosures with other entities within the Whole of Government Accounts boundary, unless Monitor chooses to adapt the standard in

the FT ARM to retain the existing disclosures.

IASB Annual Improvements 2010

The document makes minor changes to 6 standards and one IFRIC Interpretation. Two of the standards amended (IFRS 1 and IAS

34) do not apply to FTs. The IFRIC Interpretation amended (13) is not relevant to FTs. The remaining changes are to IAS 1 and 27

and IFRS 3 and 7. These changes are minor in nature and should have little or no impact to the Trust.

This new IFRIC applies from 2011/12 but will have no impact because the Trust has no equity instruments and therefore cannot issue

them to settle financial liabilities.

In preparing the FT ARM, Monitor must take account of the requirements of the Government FReM issued by HM Treasury. In some

cases, where there is a compelling reason, Treasury may grant permission for Monitor not to adopt a change to the FReM in the FT

ARM. The following changes to the FReM are potentially applicable to NHS foundation trusts and may be incorporated into the FT

ARM from 2011/12:

Under the new approach, grants received towards the cost of an asset are recognised in income unless the funder imposes a

condition on the grant e.g. that the it must be used to fund the construction or acquisition of an asset. If there are no conditions, or

once all conditions have been met, the grant is recognised in full in within income. If adopted in the FT ARM, the impact is likely to be

an increase in volatility in annual results where capital grants are received or released once conditions have been met. When the

change is applied, the existing government grants deferred account is likely to be realised to Retained Earnings.

The new approach for donated assets is effectively identical to that for grants above. Where donations are received without

conditions, or if they have conditions, once these have been met, they should be recognised in income. If brought into effect it would

result in most, or all, donations being reflected in income in the year of receipt which could lead to greater volatility in the annual result.

The existing donated asset reserve would be transferred to the Retained Earnings and - where it includes an element of asset

revaluations - to the revaluation reserve.

In 2011/12 it is likely that the FT ARM will delete the present exemption from consolidating NHS charitable funds that are controlled by

NHS foundation trusts. The effect on the Trust's accounts will be to include the charitable fund's income and expenditure. Income and

expenditure between the Trust and the charitable fund will be eliminated on consolidation. The assets, liabilities and reserves of the

charitable fund will also be consolidated. 

ROYAL DEVON AND EXETER NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2010/11

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2010/11 NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (FT

ARM) issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM

Treasury's Financial Reporting Manual to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS foundation trusts. Below is a list

of recent standards issued but not yet adopted in the NHS. It is not known or it is reasonably estimated that when these accounting

standards are adopted they will not materially affect the Trust's annual accounts.  

Accounting standards issued and not adopted

This is an amendment to the standard to require additional disclosures where financial assets are transferred between categories (e.g.

'Fair Value through Profit and Loss', Loans and Receivable etc). It is applicable from 2011/12. The change should not have any

significant impact on the Trust because it does not generally transfer financial assets between categories.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

This is a new standard to replace - eventually - IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Two elements of the

standard have been issued so far: Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The main changes are in respect of financial assets

where the existing four categories will be reduced to two: Amortised Cost and 'Fair Value through Profit and Loss'. At the present time

it is not clear when this standard will be applied because the EU has delayed its endorsement.
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